HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Board of Directors Meeting

August 2018




MINUTES



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT SE
828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

July 12, 2018

. ROLL CALL

President Woo called the meeting to order at 9:00 am. Director Rupp conducted the roll call.
Directors Fuller, Latt, Rupp and Woo were present. Director Hecathorn was absent. Director Fuller
left the meeting at 2:10 pm. General Manager John Friedenbach, Superintendent Dale Davidsen,
Business Manager Chris Harris and Board Secretary Sherrie Sobol were present. Pat Kaspari, John
Winzler and Nathan Stevens of GHD and Paul Brisso, District Legal Counsel were present for a
portion of the meeting.

. FLAG SALUTE

President Woo led the flag salute.

. ACCEPT AGENDA

Under the Ralph M. Brown Act, a legitimate immediate need can be acted upon even though it is not
on the posted agenda. The Board must determine that there is an immediate need to take action and
the need arose after the agenda was posted. Under the Ralph M. Brown Act, in order to add a
qualified item to the agenda, it must be publicly identified so that interested members of the public
can monitor or participate in the consideration of the item in question. Also, the Board must agree by
consensus to discuss the item.

Based on the above-mentioned criteria, Mr. Friedenbach stated he would like the Board to consider an
addition to the agenda under Operations. Yesterday, Mr. Davidsen received a bid for the Ruth Cabin
Remodel that requires Board approval and cannot wait until the August meeting. The Board agreed
by consensus to add the item to the agenda. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Latt,
the Board voted 4-0 to accept the agenda as modified.

. MINUTES

Minutes of June 8. 2018 Special Board Meeting and June 14, 2018 Regular Board Meeting

On motion by Rupp, seconded by Director Fuller, the Board voted 4-0 to accept the minutes of the
June §, 2018 and June 14, 2018 Board meetings.

. PUBLIC COMMENT
There was no public comment.

. CONSENT AGENDA
President Woo requested Item 1 be pulled. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director
Fuller, the Board voted 4-0 to accept the Consent Agenda less Item 1.

Item 1 Letter from District to Ruth Lake CSD re: quagga article
President Woo stated she sent the letter to Ruth Lake CSD based on previous discussion to keep

communication lines open and keep them informed on topics of mutual interest. After brief
discussion, the Board requested staff look into costs of mussel dog services to assist with the quagga
inspections at Ruth Lake.

. CORRESPONDENCE

Letter from Humboldt LAFCo re: Election Results-Special District Appointment to Humboldt
County Consolidated Redevelopment Agency (RDA) Oversight Board

Mr. Friedenbach shared the letter from LAFCo announcing the election results with Director Rupp
winning the election. Board-and staff congratulated Director Rupp.




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7 Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

July 12, 2018

Letter from District to LAFCo re: Proposed Langlois L.ane Annexation
Last month, the Board discussed the response to LAFCo regarding the Langlois Lane Annexation.
Mr. Friedenbach shared the resulting letter sent to LAFCo.

Letter from District to OAL Reference Attorney re: proposed Dam Inundation Map regulations
DWR requested comments prior to their adoption of the proposed Dam Inundation Map regulation.
Mr. Friedenbach shared the District’s comment letter noting that we are regulated by FERC and
already have approved inundation maps in place with our Emergency Action Plan to FERC. The
letters note that regulations on inundation maps for FERC and DWR are similar but not identical,
however none of the differences materially affect the implementation of the Emergency Action Plan
or the response of emergency personnel. The proposed requirement by DWR to revise existing
inundation maps is overly burdensome, unnecessarily redundant and costly for dam owners with
existing FERC compliant inundation maps.

2017 Quagga Inspection Report from Ruth Lake CSD
Mr. Friedenbach stated the report is for the 2017 calendar year. We normally receive the report in

January and discuss it at our Joint Board Meeting with Ruth Lake CSD. Given the management
changes, we did not receive it until after the joint meeting. Director Fuller inquired how this report
compared to previous ones and Ms. Harris provided a graph noting the differences. The Board
expressed concerns regarding the thoroughness of inspections based on feedback from recent boaters
at the lake. They suggested sending a letter to Ruth Lake CSD expressing concerns and offering a
refresher course on the Quagga Inspection process.

. CONTINUING BUSINESS

Water Resource Planning

Mr. Friedenbach stated there is not much to report. He signed the grant agreement for the instream
flow project and is waiting for the executed agreement and notice to proceed. Once the notice to
proceed is received, a meeting will be scheduled with the grant partners to discuss next steps. Later in
the afternoon, he received the finalized agreement and notice to proceed.

Cannabis Grows affecting Mad River Watershed
The County is now allowing hoop houses in the flood plain. They are supposed to be temporary from

April to October. The Board and staff expressed concern regarding follow up and enforcement of
regulations.

RCEA Public Agency Solar Program

As previously noted, the District is participating in the program. Data is still being gathered to
complete a feasibility study. Mr. Friedenbach stated he will bring the study to the Board once he
receives it. He also shared the names of several other public agencies participating in the program.

NEW BUSINESS

NCRP Prop 1

Mr. Friedenbach stated the next round of solicitations will be out in early 2019 and due to the
DWR in April 2019. He suggested the District request a grant for Collector 2 rehabilitation,
however package it differently from previous grants. The Board liked the idea of the project and

new approach.

Agreement with City of Arcata re: meters on District lines
Ms. Harris stated that a new project on Alder Grove Road in Arcata is requiring the installation of




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

July 12, 2018

a fire water service line. The City of Arcata has asked to connect the new fire water service line
directly to the District’s transmission line. She provided background on three other meters that
were installed on West End Road in the 1970’s that connected directly to District lines. In the
past, it was clearly documented that the City of Arcata is the entity selling water to the facilities
and providing the billing. The District only reads the meters. Staff has discussed the new request
and is supportive. The District would include any water consumption on the monthly wholesale
invoice, and the City of Arcata would again be responsible for billing the customer for the
additional fire line service. Management staff is also supportive of the City of Arcata completing
the required work with District staff onsite to observe. Staff requests permission to draft an
agreement to be reviewed by the District’s legal counsel outlining the District’s position for the
meters on the HBMWD lines. The agreement will note any water usage through the meters with
the monthly wholesale invoice for the City of Arcata, as well as give the responsibility of billing
the retail customers to the City of Arcata. Once drafted and reviewed, staff requests approval to
enter into an agreement with the City of Arcata. The Board concurred and directed staff to enter an
agreement with the City of Arcata for the new fire service water line.

Conlflict of Interest “no amendment required” filing
Ms. Harris stated the Conflict of Interest Code is reviewed biennially to determine if the code is

accurate and meets all current requirements. Staff reviewed the Fair Political Practices
Commission website for new releases or changes to our code as amended on August 2014. At this
time, there are no recommendations for amendments. Staff recommends the Board approve the
District’s 2018 Local Agency Biennial Notice with a response of no amendment is required. On
motion by Director Fuller, seconded by Director Latt, the Board voted 4-0 file a notice of no
amendment required.

REPORTS (from Staff)

1. Engineering
Blue Lake-FG CSD Water Line Replacement over Mad River (funded by Prop 84

NCIRWMP grant and FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant)

Staff received an updated construction schedule. The drilling contractor will be starting a few
weeks late due to problems on other job. This means the valve replacement and shut down
will now occur in early September. Customers will receive written communication as well a
phone call prior to the shutdown. Mr. Kaspari stated the letter to County certifying the CEQA
document was sent out for the Prop 84 grant.

Surge Tower Replacement
Mr. Kaspari stated there’s not much to discuss. Staff submitted the latest quarterly report and
the project must be completed by the end of 2019.

12kV Replacement

Mr. Kaspari stated that CEQA on this project will likely be a Negative Declaration. Mr.
Friedenbach provided background on the negotiations with North Coast Rail Authority for the
lease of their property for the 12kV Switch Gear sight which is out of the flood plain. A new
license agreement was drafted for a term of 50 years. This is much better than the previous
version with 30 years. Also, the previous termination time frame was a notice of 6 months.
The new notification period is 60 months. Legal Counsel Paul Brisso was present for the
discussion given the legal agreement and the recent proposed legislation SB 1029 Sponsored
by Senator Mike McGuire. SB-1029 proposes to abolish the NCRA and replace it with the
Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District (SMART) and the Great Redwood Trail Agency
(GRTA). GRTA would receive the “rights, privileges, and responsibilities, excluding any




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7% Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

July 12, 2018

— e —— — —

preexisting liability related to debt, litigation, or contractual obligations, related to its [NCRA]
right-of-way north of mile post 142.5”. President Woo inquired what becomes of our
agreement with NCRA if the legislation goes through. Mr. Brisso stated the agreement would
be binding on the successor agency so it would still be valid. Staff recommended approving
the revised agreement with NCRA. The Board expressed concemn regarding the “landlord”
agency not extending the license agreement after 50 years. Mr. Brisso stated the District could
potentially exercise eminent domain. It is a different legal test versus a private individual.
When one public entity is trying to get property from another public entity, we would need to
prove that our need, the ability to provided clean, reliable water, is greater than the other
public purpose. Director Latt concurred. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director
Fuller, the Board voted 4-0 to approve the revised NCRA agreement.

Collector Mainline Redundancy Hazard Mitigation Grants
Mr. Kaspari stated the grant application was submitted and we are awaiting a response.

Reservoir Structural Retrofit Hazard Mitigation Grant Application
Mr. Kaspari stated this grant application was submitted by the July 1 deadline. There was a

change in the Local Match Fund Commitment Letter. The original grant was in the amount of
$2,686,500. The correction version that was sent in with the application is for $2,742,750.
The match amount increased by $18,750 from $895,500 to $914,250. He apologized for not
getting an accurate letter to the Board the first time.

Single Line Industrial Slough Crossing Hazard Mitigation Grant Application
The grant application for this project is due September 1% and staff is working on it.

Matthews Dam Spillway Analysis NOI
There is nothing to report as CalOES has not yet responded.

Axel Property Development

Mr. Friedenbach shared the letter to the City of Arcata Community Development Department
continuing to oppose the Axel development as proposed. The District continues to oppose the
project because the buildings are up against our easement. The easements are in place to allow the
District access to the water line in case of emergency or repairs. As designed, if the District
needs to access the water line, their buildings could be potentially taken down to allow the
necessary access. John Winzler concurred and added that he has concerns regarding construction
of the buildings on the property. Given the close proximity to the District’s water line, if heavy
equipment is on our easement, it could cause the line to collapse. Based on the design drawings,
they will have to be on the District’s easement to construct. Mr. Friedenbach stated he suggested
all parties meet to discuss the concerns and the meeting is scheduled for the 27% of this month.
Legal Counsel Paul Brisso and District Engineer Pat Kaspari will be attending as well.

Financial

Financial Report

Ms. Harris provided the June 2018 financial report. She provided a revised Statement of Fund
Balances which reflects the current balance at the end of the fiscal year since all the numbers are
in. Director Latt reviewed the bills and stated all looked good. He did request additional
documentation on one of the bills which was provided to him. On motion by Director Rupp,
seconded by Director Latt, the Board voted 4-0 to approve the June financial report and vendor
statement in the amount of $319,349.83.

.



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7t Street, Eureka

S

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

July 12,2018

FY 2018/19 Budget — presentation of proposed total budget and revenue estimates

Ms. Harris provided a quick recap of the proposed budget. There are no changes except for the
Employee Benefits portion of the budget. Staff recently learned from JPIA that there will be no
increases to health insurance rates. As a result, the employee benefits budget was reduced by
approximately $17,000. This results in a corresponding reduction in charges to wholesale
customers. Staff is also recommending a 3% COLA. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by
Director Fuller, the Board voted 4-0 to approve the 2018/19 budget as proposed with a 3%
COLA.

Letter from County Treasurer summarizing interest earned report for quarter ending March 2018
Ms. Harris reviewed the Interest Apportionment Rate letter from the County. During the quarter

ending March 2018, District funds in the County Treasury earing an annualized interest rate of
1.5% compared to LAIF which earned 1.51%.

Water Loss Audit Reports and Validation

Ms. Harris stated that since Governor Brown declared a “State of Emergency-Drought” on
January 17, 2014, there has been an increase in legislative and regulatory items that have
impacted water use and reporting in California. One area, water conservation by means of
identification and reduction of both real and apparent water losses through urban water
distribution systems has become a major focus to improve the efficiency of the state’s water
systems. Beginning with this year’s Water Loss Audit Report due on October 1, 2018, all
agencies that are required to complete this report have the additional requirement of having it
reviewed and validated by a third-party Water Loss Audit Validator. This new third-party
validation directly impacts the District and four of the seven Municipalities the District provides
water service to. The American Water Works Association (AWWA) is tasked with certifying
Water Loss Audit Validators on behalf of the SWRCB. Certification requires familiarity with the
Water Loss Audit Reporting software, the components required to complete the audit, as well as
completion of required validation training and certification exam. Ms. Harris attended the two-
day training and stated it was one of the more difficult exams she has taken, but she is now an
official certified Water Loss Audit Validator. She is currently one of only 66 certified Water
Loss Audit Validators in California. The Board and staff congratulated Ms. Harris on her
accomplishment.

Ms. Harris thanked the Board and stated that with this certification, there is also the potential to
validate other municipalities. Revenue (if any) generated from this service would be refunded to
the District’s Municipal Customers via Price Factor 2 reconciliation at the end of the year. Staff
shared with the Board four options for providing validator services. After discussion, staff and
Board concurred that Ms. Harris would only validate other agencies currently being serviced by
the District, time allowing, at no charge, based on the PF2 reconciliation. Director Latt suggested
an MOU and one year trial on the process.

Operations
June Operational Report

Mr. Davidsen provided the June Operational Report. Mr. Dean Adams of the Humboldt County

Hazardous Materials Unit conducted an inspection of the Essex facility. He found everything in
good order and there were no violations. The rebuilt transformer was installed in Collector 2, the
log boom and spillway at Ruth were inspected and there were no issues. Staff attended a variety
of trainings including: Water Systems Security, Forklift Safety and practical test were conducted

5



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7t Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

July 12, 2018

at the Safety Meeting, and First Aid/CPR/AED training also took place. Mr. Davidsen reported
out on his attendance at the AWWA annual conference where he was a co-presenter along with
Henry Hunt. They discussed the Ranney well lateral replacement. Mr. Hunt used the District’s
Collector 1-1A rehabilitation project as his presentation project. Mr. Davidsen also attended
training sessions on topics such as decontamination of pipelines, cyanotoxin risk communication,
solving problems with Sodium Hypochlorite Systems. Director Rupp thanked Mr. Davidsen for
representing the District and co-presenting our Collector 1-1A project, Mr, Davidsen thanked the
Board and Mr. Friedenbach for supporting his attendance at educational forums such as the
AWWA.

Surptus Equipment

Mr. Davidsen provided a list of pump motors no longer needed that he’d like the Board to declare
as surplus. On motion by Director Rupp, seconded by Director Latt, the Board voted 3-0 to
declare the items surplus. Director Fuller left the meeting prior to the discussion.

Ruth Lake Cabin Remodel

Mr. Davidsen shared that he just received the Ruth Cabin remodel bid from True North
Constructors yesterday evening. The bid came in higher than anticipated at $500,842. Staff and
the Board discussed several options, including consideration of a manufactured home. On motion
by Director Latt, seconded by Director Rupp, the Board voted 3-0 to counteroffer with $475,000
and if not accepted, go back out to bid. Director Fuller was not present for the discussion.

K. MANAGEMENT
CSDA
Mr. Friedenbach shared the Humboldt Area Chapter minutes from the June meeting. He also stated
the local chapter is hosting a Sexual Harassment Prevention Training on August 6%,

Ruth Lake CSD (RLCSD) Minutes

As part of the effort to improve and keep the lines of communication open, Mr. Friedenbach included
the March and April Board minutes for RLCSD.

Generator claim to JPTA

Mr. Friedenbach stated he made an erroneous assumption that the District’s deductible for the
generator was $25,000. The deductible is actually $50,000. As a result, the District will not be
receiving any reimbursement from JPIA for the generator.

L. DIRECTOR REPORTS & DISCUSSION
1. General -comments or reports from Directors
Director Rupp stated he will not be able to attend the September 13 Board meeting.

2. ACWA -JPIA
Director Rupp stated he attended the Employee Benefits Committee meeting. There will be no
increase in the cost of health insurance. They will instead absorb the costs with their reserves.
They also selected a new pharmaceutical manager and expect to see some substantial savings
over the next three years.

3. ACWA
Director Rupp stated he attended the ACW A Finance Committee. They discussed the fact that
OPEB will be required to be shown on the Balance Sheet. ACWA’s is around $500,000. Ms.
Harris noted that the District currently shows OPEB on our balance sheet.




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7 Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

July 12, 2018

Mr. Friedenbach stated he received an email from Tim Quinn of ACW A regarding participation
in a Greenhouse gas reduction working group. The ACWA Board of Directors has identified the
area of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions reductions and renewable energy policy as a priority
policy for 2018-19. To help facilitate this a Working Group is being established to help develop
policy principles in this area. Mr. Friedenbach inquired if the Board felt the need for a staff
member to participate on this committee. They did not.

4. Organizations on which HBMWD Serves: RCEA, RREDC
President Woo reported out on RCEA. She has been working with their legal counsel on their
Conflict of Interest Code, there is a new budget committee, and a wind energy contract is being
worked out. She also noted their minutes are improving.

Director Latt reported out on the RREDC meeting. He stated Michael Kraft, senior project
manager and consultant with Sequoia Personnel Services was the guest speaker. He shared that
unemployment rates in Humboldt County are at an all-time low. The new direct flights from
Arcata to Los Angeles seem to be going well.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 3:49 pm.

Attest:

Sheri Woo, President J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer



CONSENT



secTion_T|_paeNO. L.

RUTH LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Minutes of May 10, 2018
Board of Directors Meeting

|. Call to order
Flag Salute

A. Meeting was called to order at 4:04 pm by Dennis Johnson
B. Board Members present: Susan Gordon, Debra Sellman, Brian Nicholsan, Dennis Johnsan
C. Board Member Absent: John Wise
D. Other present: Mike Francesconi, Margaret Kiser, Cynthia Lofthouse, Gillian Toerpe,
Ann Krupa and Melony Higgins

Il. Approval of the Agenda:
A. Consider Approval of the Agenda
1. Motion: Brian Nicholson and Susan Gordon to approve the Agenda for May 10, 2018.

ll. Approval of Minutes:
A. Consider approval of minutes of Regular Board Meeting April 12, 2018, April 16, 2018
B. Motion: Motion was made by Debra Sellman and seconded by Brian Nicholson to approve
the minutes of April 12, 2018 and April 16, 2018 with corrections.
Motion Carried: Brian Nicholson, Susan Gordon, Dennis Johnson and Debra Sellman.

V. Public Comment:

A. Melony Higgins with STVFD asking for a donation. This would help provide
maintenance for the Ruth truck and repair the jaws of life for Hetten Valley
and Mad River. This will be but on the agenda in June to give STVFD $15,000

B. Ann Krupa from STAR asking for a donation for new ambulance. This will be
on the agenda in June to give STAR $15,000.

V. Supervisor’s Report:
A. None

VI. Correspondence:
A. Projects being approved for Lease Holders. Communication through email from

Lease Holders helpful.

VII. ttems for Board action and Investigation:

A. Mike Francesconi is looking for a Marquette to be placed out near the road this
item is not very cheap. Mike will bring more information to a later meeting.

B. Water filtration for Hobart and Barlow test source Potable Water from both
places. Both systems well chlorinated, drinkable water. Negative for E-coli and
other test items. All test done in Arcata.

C. Marina steps will be done in the fall. Mike will get an estimate and have that



secrion_I)_pacENO. 2~

Information for the August Meeting.

D. Widen of Old Ruth boat ramp. Need to get number count of boats using the ramp.
Will get an estimate for August meeting.

E. Approve to put Cynthia as check signing.

VII. Board ltems:
A. Salary schedule is ok.
B. Camp host for Hobart Eric Godlewski will be the night watch person. Mike spoke to the
Attorney in regards to job duties. Will hire on and he will do lite duty jobs.
IX Manager Report and Update
A. Looked over Financial
B. Letters will be sent out for past due lease payments.
C. Community Hall
1. Board agrees to having the blood bank at the Community Hall.
D. New patio boat comes in on 5-11-2018.
1. Boat count 1100 for 2017 season. Down from other seasons.
F. Fishing Derby being held May 19, 2018.
G. Long term parking policy needs to be put in place.
H. Leases all approve on tree removal.

X. Closed Session: 6:06pm
A. Personnel|
1. Legal updates
2. Updates on past employee.
3. Payroll summary.

Adjournment: 6:20pm ///)

Lo S
C"‘f i’ull-b'-i—'\ =3
sdbmitted by Date pprmﬁa by Date
o

v




SECTION_~|__ PAGENO.D___

RUTH LAKE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Minutes of June 14, 2018
Board of Directors Meeting

I. Call to order:

Flag Salute

A. Meeting was called to order at 4:05 pm by Brian Nicholson

B. Board Membeérs present; Debbie Sellman, Susan Gordon, Brian Nicholson
C. Board Members Absent: John Wise and Dennis Johnson

D. Other present: Mike Francesconi, Gillian Toerpe, Cynthia Lofthouse

Il. Approval of Agenda:

A. Consider Approval of the Agenda
1.Motion: Debra Seliman and Susan Gordon approved the Agenda for June 14,
2018.

1. Approval of Minutes:

A. Consider approval of minutes of Regular Board Meeting May, 10, 2018.

B. Motion: Motion was made by Susan Gordon and seconded by Debra Seliman
approve the minutes of May 10, 2018 with corrections.
Motion Carried: Brian Nicholson, Susan Gordon, Debra Seliman.

IV, Public Commient:
A. None

V. Supervisor's Report:
g A. None

V1. Correspondence:

VII. Updates of District Projects:

A. HBMWD/RLCSD overview of meeting
1. Clean up of lake debris along the shoreline, Mike is also checking on the
abandoned docks. Will send out letters'to owners to have docks repaired.
2. John and Mike are looking into grant programs.
3. Clearing of trees.
4 Water filtration registering Hobart with the state. Barlow does rot have a
chiorination system.,



SECTION_[Z]__ PAGE No.ft___._

3. Mike will continue to test for E. coli at Barlow send out for testing to keep compliant.

6.Dennis and Mike are reviewing the widening of the ramp at Old Ruth. Cost could be
large amount,

7..Mike has a class for water certification in Redding on September 15, 2018. There will
be another class in November 2018 or January 2019.

VII. Items for Board Action and Investigation:

A. Payment approvals,
1. Payment to Ttinity Waste Management was approved by Debra Seliman.
2.Motion to pay SDRMA General Liability $14,280.87 was approved by the board
3.Motion to pay SDRMA Workers Comp $ 9,508.33 was approved by the board.

B. Lease Lot Transfers and Changes.

1. Lease lot transfer #40 from Richard & Patricia Cahill to The Richard and Patricia
Cahill Living Trust. Was approved by Susan Gordon, Debra Sellman second the
motion. Approved by the board.

2. Lease lot # 95A Jerry and Virginia Meadors would like to be removed from the
lease and assign who are already on the lease Ted and Angela Murray.

Paper work needs to be completed before board will approve.

C. Humboldt T.R.A Summer Festival.
1. We allow the use of campsites. Buck donates a boat. Gillian & campsite.

D. Coast Central Signature List.
1. Omit Valerie Davis and Margaret Kiser.
2. Keep Buck. Mike wanted to remove Gillian Debra felt that it was a good idea to
have four signers.
3. No pre-signed checks in safe.
4. Motion to keep Gillian, Buck and Mike and add Cynthia. Motion to approve
Debra, second the motion Susan. Board was all in favor.

VIll. Managers Report and Update,

A. Financial

1. Marina up income Campground down per report.

2. Lease payments still outstanding Patricia Greggi, Mark & Heidi VVarshock and
Michael Megowan. We had a in correct address for Donald Thompson this has
been corrected and a new statement has been sent.

- Lease site unpaid letters have been sent out to the above leasers.

. One more payment has been made on Attorney fees.

. Lehto has paid for returned check and lease.

. Returns check should be charge at $20.00. Place on statement.

. Marina sticker count for up from last year at this time,

. Campground quiet.

QD ~N O oW



secTion_{-|__paceN0. D

Information for the August Meeting.

D. Widen of Old Ruth boat ramp. Need to get nhumber count of boats using the ramp.
Will get an estimate for August meeting,

E. Approve to put Cynthia as check signing.

VIII. Board ltems:
A. Salary schedule is ok.
B. Camp host for Hobart Eric Godlewski will be the night watch person. Mike spoke to the
Attorney in regards to job duties. Will hire on and he will do lite duty jobs.
IX Manager Report and Update
A. Looked over Financial
B. Letters will be sent out for past due lease payments.
C. Community Hall
1. Board agrees to having the blood bank at the Community Hall.
D. New patio boat comes in on 5-11-2018.
1. Boat count 1100 for 2017 season, Down from other seasons.
F. Fishing Derby being held May 19, 2018.
G. Long term parking policy needs to be put in place,
H. Leases all approve on tree removal.

X. Closed Session: 6:06pm
A. Personnel
1. Legal updates
2. Updates on past employee,
3. Payroll summary.

Adjournment: 6:20pm

Lt DS Fane ,7%

Slemitted by Date /Kaﬁzro%a b‘\r/ g Date




&

O
&

i

"9 "AON 51 AB(q U0
‘uoyD.ys1bay-1a
-104-suoloayg /069 /bao
‘aoBploquny 1e onsqom
SuomDary Jo 82O Lunoy
. IPIOQUMY sy sl ‘mopn
| -euuopm azom pue syeos

Gado jo 151 [y e 104
‘EYoIny pue pepyupyy,
BRIy ‘puepeatny Noa1)

Aqooep ‘ayey ang ‘uood

-eT 819 ur spieoq [ooyos
Amyeuwep  pue PLsIq
[ooypog  worup Ploqumgy
UqoN ‘PLsyy woposy
“0ld A eEOIV S uo
§1295 uado ospe are axay,
“SSlfrurey ey
PUB soApswey 105 soue
-XOSUl WSy eorpaw aae0
-3l ospe Aoyy ‘surexSoxd
Smpesuneo jo Ljorma v SI9]
30 M ‘uerd soueysisse
3afoidud a1y ur pafjous
3% pue ouemsuy [ejusp
PUB UOIsIA oafe0al Aoy,
‘Suneom SIPIIWod yoea
10} 0g$ pue Suneaw preoq
1od o9tg pred axe sIaquIam
PIEOg "Bare uayn) omyy pue
B2y ‘epruely ‘syet angg
“SIALUDPW ‘eeory 105
Terddns spesejogm oy} st
UMWEH 8, 'syess aso
10} Un1 oy spnsip asoy
Ur aAf 1snw nof sueam
B4 Pmslq yanog ey
10J.8uo pue piosiq yyig
M 10y suo ‘slopaxyg jo
PIBOS QMWEH 2@ uo
51eds uado omy ame Eicligg
PUsIq em Edpm
My A=g Ipjoqumyy .

g

Bur
-1UM Yo3YD a1 [[B 10§ ajes
-uadwoo 0} yuowr e Srig
BIXS UB 3yew [|,nof ‘1soy
-J0 2oueuy a1y se pajujod
-de are nof j 's3unesm
[Ewads 10y 0S¢ pue o
-199W Ip[nIa1 yoea 10] 064
wres nof ‘pspofe ame nof
J1 ‘pexmbas somyeudis oy
"[PEWO]S Suons e saey pue
PIOSIp o umpm Supay
1830A paigysiSar p 3q 1snum
nox 51834 Jo ajdnoo se7 o1y
1940 BWEIP JO aIvYS J[e} S)1
U935 SeY QoM ‘preoq spp
U0 3[qe[reae sjeas omy aIe
B, :PLOSIJ SIOIAIIG
Aoy epuey .

. eIy Ut 1§
YIS 9z ke ‘suonmaly jo soy
J0 Aoy fpjoqumy sy
e dn ulig ‘001§ enxe we
8umag jusprsard Y Pm
‘puowt & ooty jo puadns
B 9AI3031 SIOUOISSIUIMNG)
‘(eowreg  ‘eamnyg)  noy
UOISIAI( 10§ a0 pue (aye]
anig BURI ‘ByEary) sarqL
UOISIA] 10} 3uo ‘sjeas
uado omy are ameyyp :sao
-“HoIssfIwo) jo paeog

. _v_.-.uma ﬂoﬁn?-om:cb

' puE  uonEamay

‘aoq
~TeH Aug jploqumny .
"auf[peap ay Surpiedax
B Au) peprupsy, oy ey
-uod ‘Smuns uo ueyd nof

" 31 PEPMUY, uppym paiajsy

m idn u8rg ;umoy oAk

-8a1 s19104 wog samjeus;s.
OT 1583] Je UrEIqo Isnin pus
Sy A0 943 urgum. Suag
| 81310A pasdsidar aq jsnwx
j S91epIPUE) “SULZRID Mof[R)
|19 Jo ssoumpwen; Suy
| -PUa-IA3 a1y pue Ieayp

pood ‘41013 M pojesuad:

-UI0d 31k Inq ‘tpuow & 0S¢
AMEW LU0 sIsquiemmyn
-uno) -38e[A apisess oy
0] oumod payoed-uon

=08 30} UO S[qEjIRAR S)Eas-

aaI) are atoyp foumoy

A pepromyy
"“Supsaw pieoq Te|

-n3a1 1ed S2rg Surddogm &

e [,noA ‘sjeas Teak-moy
33 JO 3UO0 UM NoL JT “eax
- W 1S Qg 92be ‘suon
-93[F Jo VYO Amoy 1pjoq
-y a1 03 o8 ‘dn uSis o,
somyeudis topes op posu

1u0p nof pue dn uflis o3
1800 ou s 2191, ‘saurepumoq
SPISp oy urpm Jupay
19]0A paxsifag v aq isnm
nof ‘preoq agy 1oy wnx oL,
AMOJ, YoRN up lamod jo
1838 oy si A[ear 1omsip
3@ Inq ‘Axa3s 00} punos jou

w1 ey, Spafoqunyopy uy |

uonearar pue syred ‘soven
-2uew eds uado ‘syysy
-1920s ‘1ejem ‘Temas soas
~13A0 pIeoq [ERUGNpY Sy,
TPUNod A0 & Jo uoisioa
sAymurmos  payerodios
~Ulum oty st siy Y, “si0kex(

9AIIS 03 Apeas nof m.ix I U0I3I33

9V +» NOIDIH
*SIIUUI] J9OMS JUIOS
31e 3SOYJ, "30UeInSUL f[eay [ty pue ¥8°'g99¢ jo m.ﬁ.ﬁmm B
9A19021 SIAQUISWOUNOY “SYU A310 9Y3 UIAM SSOIppR ue
12 paIalsI3al SI9J0A W0l saImIeuss o Jo wnwum 8 19
~q63 1SN 893epIpUE,) “eywory “15 . 9EL ‘[[BH L) Ereory
18 9[qefrese axe szaded uoneuruion "SI A0 eyeory o
UM Suial] s1s)0A Pa123s13a1 o Jsntu sajeprpue) -erdoy
-002 1o ur semod Jo speumd ay; st YoM ‘mOUNCD |
U0 81825 uado om} are aloy], :dUNO)) A1) weday .
" 'sqe1d 1o dn syeas ai jo swos a1e Mmopg
*Sr “3ny
‘Aepsaupap “wd § oy Papualxa aq [m sul(pesp a1 usgy
‘aoet re[nonaed & 10] uni 0y dn uS(s 0} s[rey JUaqUINDY we Jy
"urd § 12 o1 ‘8ny ‘Aepu sy dn Suruis oy surppesp ay,
. “qof ays 305 17 ax,n04 yerp sioquiteu
Mok sourAtod pue dn udis sy Op 0} pasu noX [Ty “auop aq
Pmoys s3utq moy suofrars Moqs pue fjor diysiapes] e

- ey ‘parosp 3193 ued noA ‘ang ST JUSUILIBA0T Moy moqe

Bumurerdwios pue anuo AEYoUIe UB Sulaq uetp Ioyjey

) *SpIeoq {00rs
pue SPLRSIP feads ‘Spouncy An uo S[qe[leae s1B3S sno
~ISUMU 31 313y, *} Jo 1ed 2ur033q 0y INq “Yuow 5’
-U18A08 [eoo] susnpur Ajuo jou 0} IBQUISAON STq] o
Aunueddo we asey SJULpISAI Auno) proqun

sajepIpued poo3

M9] Y ‘pajuepm
1VI4OLIAI NOINA

JO pIROg SO 9Tf3 UO S1EDS

usdo sanp are a19Y] s8I0}

-3y Jo paeog 1PLY

-SI@  SIdTAIAG  Aumin

o) Jfrakaunyop -
SV NOYS &

S10€ gy
O Fa0R) P



Eureka Times-Standard (http:/www.times-standard.com) SECTIONESL PAGE NO ;_2
i ' e

Years later, Evergreen Pulp likely not to pay for Samoa pulp mill emergency cleanup it
caused

Company could walk away without repayment of $16M emergency response

By Will Houston, Eureka Times-Standard
Friday, July 6, 2018

The company deemed responsible for nearly causing an environmental
catastrophe on Humboldt Bay and the Samoa Peninsula may be
walking away while public agencies pick up a more than $16 million
.f price tag for the cleanup, according to local and federal officials
contacted by the Times-Standard this week.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has deemed Evergreen
Pulp Inc. as responsible for allowing tanks filled with caustic liquors
at the Samoa pulp mill site to deteriorate and fill up to the point where
~ the next major rainfall could have caused the chemicals to spill into
the nearby bay.

The EPA states it paid $15 million for the 2014 emergency cleanup — five times more than was first reported to
the Times-Standard in 2014 — in which tanks containing the pulp liquors were drained and loaded into trucks
bound for a Washington state pulp mill where the chemicals would be reused.

EPA officials previously told the Times-Standard that the plan was to have Evergreen Pulp provide repayment
for the costs. But it appears the EPA is not the only entity looking for repayment from Evergreen Pulp.

“EPA investigated Evergreen Pulp, and believes it to be a liable party, but the investigation also revealed a long
line of unsatisfied creditors ahead of EPA,” agency’s spokeswoman Margot Perez-Sullivan wrote in an email to
the Times-Standard.

Perez-Sullivan did not respond to a follow-up question by Friday evening on whether Evergreen Pulp is
expected to walk away without providing any form of repayment.

What the EPA plans to do next is unclear.

Asked what the EPA is seeking from Evergreen Pulp, Perez-Sullivan replied, “Future enforcement decisions are
not appropriate for comment.”

The Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District now owns the pulp mill property, having
bought it from its previous owner, Freshwater Tissue Co., in 2013. The district took a $1.25 million loan from
Coast Seafoods Company to pay for the liquor transport costs of which $1.1 million is still owed, according to
the district’s Executive Director Larry Oetker this week.

Oetker said he does not want to dwell on the past. Instead, he said the district is looking toward fulfilling its goal
to transform the brownfield site into a economic driver for the county, a process which he said is already
showing economic benefits.



SECTION /=52 page NO. 2

“T just can’t emphasize we’re turning the corner and trying to work cooperatively to try to revitalize a pireviously
blighted area,” Oetker said. “We’re looking forward as opposed to backwards.”

The harbor district and the EPA also came to a repayment agreement in which proceeds from salvaging materials
and infrastructure going to the EPA, according to the Perez-Sullivan.

“No proceeds have been sufficient,” she wrote.

The agency does not anticipate being able to recuperate all the costs of the cleanup, but the Samoa pulp mill is a
Superfund site.

“This is the purpose of the Superfund, to pay for responses where no liable party has means to pay for the clean
up,” Perez-Sullivan said.

Oetker said the district went through the whole property to do a complete inventory of the equipment that could
be salvaged. While they requested bidders, the district was not able to get any proceeds from the salvaged
material, Oetker said.

“The core problem is that everything out there is supersized. It’s a big industrial operation,” Oetker said.

Inside the 17-story building at the pulp mill is a giant boiler, which alone would cost the district $2 million to
remove to salvage it, while the boiler itself would be salvaged at a value of about $1.3 million, Oetker said.

“The building is perfectly good,” Oetker said. “So if we remove the boiler, then we have a whole 17-story
building.”

In the meantime, Oetker said the district has received a $200,000 brownfield site grant from the EPA to remove
various soil and debris piles from the site and take some samples to test for contaminants. Oetker said the district
plans to go out to bid on this project this summer.

Since the harbor district acquired the property, Oetker said 18 different businesses have moved in, which is set to
bring in $700,000 in annual revenue to the harbor district. A 740 kilowatt solar power system has also been
installed, which he said powers not only the businesses in at the pulp mill site — which has since been
rechristened Redwood Terminal IT — but all the properties the harbor district owns and operates.

“We have also begun the aquaculture pre-permitting project where we have spearheaded the start of new
aquaculture operations inside the docks out there,” Oetker said. “From the harbor district’s perspective, it’s
really about how do we take this blighted piece of property and then turn it into an economic success story for
Humboldt County?”

The harbor district is also working to allow aquaculture to use the pulp mill’s ocean outfall pipe to discharge
aquaculture waste. A project to connect four trans-Pacific broadband fiber lines to proposed data storage area
that would be located at the pulp mill site.

Oetker said that project is currently on hold until the completion of the Digital 299 project, which would deploy
fiber broadband lines between Redding and Arcata along state Route 299.

Will Houston can be reached at 707-441-0504.

URL: http://www.times-standard.com/general-news/20180706/years-later-evergreen-pulp-likely-not-to-pay-for-samoa-pulp-mill-emergency-cleanup-it-caused

© 2018 Eureka Times-Standard (http://www.times-standard.com)



SECTION =2 PAGE No._ﬁ__

£ P

News Flash

County Administrative Office

Posted on; July 19, 2018

Study: Humboldt Bay at highest risk of sea level rise on U.S. west coast

Humboldt Bay is at the highest risk of sea level rise on the entire U.S. west coast. The County has
completed a sea level rise vulnerability assessment indicating three communities are at risk of
being inundated by sea level rise. Nearly 400 residential parcels are vulnerable in the
unincorporated communities of King Salmon, Fields Landing, and Fairhaven.

Community members will have the opportunity to learn about local sea level rise and participate in
planning conversations at two public workshops focused on these three communities. The first
workshop will be for the communities of King Salmon and Fields Landing on Tuesday, August 7 at 6
pin at the Humboldt Agricultural Center, 5630 South Broadway in Eureka. The second workshop
will be for the community of Fairhaven on Tuesday, August 14 at 6 pm at the Samoa Women'’s Club,
115 Rideout Ave, Samoa. Refreshments will be provided.

Local sea level rise planner Aldaron Laird of Trinity Associates will present the results of the
vulnerability assessment and lead the discussion.

“The first thing we want to do is educate the people who live there, own property there, have a
business there or just use those areas recreationally. By 2040, King Salmon could be tidally
inundated at least eight times a year, and that's most of the residential lots. That's going to be
problematic with the existing development in King Salmon,” Laird said. "There’s a limited amount
of time; by 2070, King Salmon and Fields Landing could be inundated on a daily basis by mean high
water. And it’s not just these three communities with something at risk. By 2100, the PG&E power
generating plant is expected to be tidally inundated on a monthly basis, and that would affect all of
us.”

Residents, property owners, business owners, utility service providers, stakeholders and other
interested community members are encouraged to participate in the workshops. Attendees will
have the opportunity to ask questions and contribute to the discussion of potential adaptation
strategies.

“The first thing that needs to be explored is how can we protect these existing communities?” Laird
said.

ok

For more information, contact:

Michael Richardson, Supervising Planner

Humboldt County Planning & Building

707-268-3723

mrichardson@co.humboldt.ca .us

Local Coastal Plan Undate



—

SECTION./=Z_ pagE NO,_~_
Climate change brings new flood risks and new challenges for water storage

managers. In California, one local water agency is taking on the big task of
modifying its primary storage reservoir to be ready for these changes.

An aerial photo of the Yuba County Water Agency’s New Bullards Bar Dam on the North Yuba River in California. A
proposed secondary spillway would be built just to the right of the existing spillway at an estimated cost of $160
million. Photo courtesy Yuba County
Water Agency

AMONG CALIFORNIA RIVERS, the
Yuba is one of the most dramatic.
Draining the Sierra Nevada just
north of Lake Tahoe, it is steep and
flashy — one of the most flood-prone
rivers in the state.

Yuba River floods have killed people
- notably in 1955, 1986 and 1997 —
and climate change is making such
floods more likely. As the
atmosphere warms, more winter

: precipitation falls as rain rather than
snow. This boaosts the amount of runoff coursing downhill in any given storm.

The Yuba County Water Agency has been working for years to strengthen levees along the river to
handle additional runoff, together with the cities of Marysville and Yuba City downstream. Now the
water agency plans something more ambitious: a major modification of New Bullards Bar Dam on the
North Yuba River, its primary water storage reservoir, to handle bigger and wetter storms.

It plans to build a second spillway at the dam to boost its water-release capacity, at an estimated cost of
$160 million. The larger spillway will allow dam operators to release water sooner and faster to prepare
for approaching storms.

State and federal agencies have undertaken such complex projects, notably at nearby Folsom Dam on
the American River, a billion-dollar project recently completed by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. But
the New Bullards Bar project is a rare example of a local water agency undertaking costly dam
modifications in response to changing hydrology.

“If you can evacuate water faster from the reservoir when there’s channel capacity, then you have more
space in the reservoir for those peak flows,” said Curt Aikens, general manager of the Yuba County
Water Agency. “Definitely, this will help to the extent climate change produces bigger storm events and
bigger peak flows.”

A new spillway would boost the reservoir’s flood-control capacity when warm, wet storms are
predicted. Also, the additional operating flexibility it offers could boost water storage at certain times of
year, a major benefit to the agency’s agricultural water customers and hydroelectric power generation.

New Bullards Bar Dam, completed in 1970, is one of the most spectacular impoundments in the state. A
graceful concrete-arch dam, it soars 645ft high over the North Yuba River, providing a storage capacity
of about 1 million acre-feet.

The existing spillway at the dam has a relatively small release capacity of 19,000 cubic feet per second.
Also, it is relatively high on the dam’s face — just 16ft below the typical full-reservoir water surface
elevation. This means it can’t release water until the reservoir is nearly full, which limits options when
responding to an approaching storm.



SECTION /52 _ pagE No. [a

“With the current spillway, we can’t make big releases because we’re just waiting to fill up the reservoir
to the point where you can release lots of water. That’s the point of this new spillway,” Aikens said.

The project involves tunneling through the mountainside on the dam’s right abutment. The tunnel
would be 38ft wide and 28ft high, with operable gates and a concrete chute directing water into the
Yuba River below the dam.

) New Low-LeveI QOutlet
.}‘;, \ _ ((tLO)
& New LLOFlip =

Bucket

The Yuba County Water Agency proposes to build a new, larger spillway at New Bullards Bar Dam on the
North Yuba River. The new spillway would involve tunneling through the mountainside next to the
existing spillway. (Photo credit: Image courtesy Yuba County Water Agency)

It will have a release capacity of 45,000 cubic feet per second —more than double the existing spilway.
And it will be 31.5ft lower than the existing spillway gates.

As a result, when a big storm is forecast, dam operators can release water a lot sooner to free up empty
space in the reservoir. This means the potential impact of downstream flooding is reduced, because the
peak flow can be spread out over a longer period of time. Aikens said the new spillway could reduce the
flood peak on the Yuba River downstream at Marysville as much as 2ft, significantly reducing stress on
the city’s levees.

The agency also looked at raising the dam 10ft as an alternative. But that was rejected because it would
cost a lot more, cause more environmental impacts and would not improve operational flexibility. The
new spillway’s estimated cost of $160 million is about 46 percent less than raising the dam.

The South Yuba River Citizens League, an environmental group that has fought for decades to improve
flows and habitat in the river, supports the concept of a new spillway, said Rachel Hutchinson, the
group’s river science director.

She said the project is especially welcome after the disaster at Oroville Dam in 2017. Both spillways at
Oroville, operated by the California Department of Water Resources, were severely damaged during
heavy storm runoff, forcing thousands of downstream residents to evacuate amid fears the dam itself
might collapse.

That disaster also churned up gobs of sediment and debris that clogged the riverbed and the Feather
River salmon hatchery.

“I think having a little more safety surrounding our dams would help to protect the resources that we
have in the river, instead of allowing them to be another victim in a potential dam crisis,” Hutchinson
said. “The human population and safety of the dams, of course, is paramount. But when a dam fajls, the
environment also loses.”

A larger spillway would also provide a new kind of drought protection.



sEcTIoN F2__paceNo._7__

Normal operations require dam operators to keep lots of empty space in reservoirs during winter to be
ready for floodwaters. The greater release capacity of a new spillway could allow the agency to keep the
reservoir full more often, providing an important hedge against dry winters.

Recent storm patterns in California, for instance, have produced wet conditions in December sufficient
to fill many reservoirs. But operators were required to release water to be sure there was room for
floodwaters later in winter. But then January and February turned out dry, leaving reservoirs only
partially filled by the time winter ended.

To take advantage of this winter flexibility, Yuba County Water Agency also plans to adopt a new
strategy called forecast-informed reservoir operations. This would change flood-control rules at the
dam, allowing the reservoir to be kept nearly full in winter if weather forecasts indicate no storms are

approaching.

If forecasts show a storm is targeting the Yuba watershed, the agency could still create enough flood-
control capacity by dumping water quickly with the new, larger spillway.

“Being able to manage the flood pool at New Bullards Bar is going to be more complicated in the
future,” Hutchinson said. “With more of our precipitation falling as rain rather than snow, it’s going to
fill more early and they’re going to want to hold onto that water. This should give them more flexibility
with how they store water.”

Aikens said the agency plans to develop the new operating rules while the second spillway is under
construction, so both are completed at the same time. Construction is expected to start in 2022, with
completion three years later.



ssc‘non,fé.z,,, PAGENO._

Hot Weather, Land Abuses Fueling Algal Blooms in Westem Waters

Toxic bacteria produced by some algae are a threat to public health. Climate change
may be one reason algal blooms have become a growing concern for many
water agencies.

WRITTEN BYMatt Weiser PUBLISHED oNo July 30, 2018 READ TIMEApprox. 10 minutes

48 | A team from HAB Aquatic Solutions prepares to apply
alum at Pinto Lake in Watsonvﬂle Cahfornla in 2017. The alum is meant to neutralize and cap
phosphorous in eroded soils on the lakebed to prevent algal blooms. Catherine Bosley, HAB Aquatics
Solutions, LLC

THE WEST IS known for summer wildfires. Now it seems Western summers will be
distinguished by another kind of flare-up: algae blooms.

This summer has witnessed an explosion of algae problems in Western water bodies. Usually
marked by a bright green mat of floating scum, the blooms are unsightly and unpleasant for
water lovers. More concerning are potentially toxic cyanobacteria often produced by the algae,
which can be deadly to pets and livestock and cause illnesses in people.

These harmful algal blooms have popped up in freshwater lakes and streams for years. But in
recent years they seem bigger and more widespread than ever, resulting in closed beaches,
public health warnings and risks to drinking water in a few locations.

Blooms are even popping up in unlikely places, such as high-elevation mountain lakes.

But there is currently no federal drinking water standard for algal toxins and in many places,
data monitoring of blooms is still scarce.

“This is really a devilish problem,” said Craig Cox, a senior vice-president for agriculture and
natural resources at the Environmental Working Group who is tracking the issue. “The more I
look into it, the more stunning the state of play seems to me.”

While the cause of each incident is not always known, two of the main known drivers of algal
blooms are excess nutrients in the water and extreme heat. As a result, algae-coated lakes could
become one of the most visible consequences of rising global temperatures.

Understanding the Problem

The most serious incident recently occurred in May in Salem, Oregon, where a health advisory
was issued to more than 200,000 customers of the city water department following the
detection of algal toxins in the drinking water supply. Young children, the elderly, pregnant
women and people with certain medical conditions were warned not to drink tap water for most
of the month of June.



sscnon_/_::’_'__, PAGE N0,

5 o L R i Detroit Lake and Dam on the North Santiam River, a
source of dnnking water for Salem Oregon, the state capital. A toxic algal bloom at the lake in May and June resulted
in @ weeks-long public health advisory in which children, the elderly and other sensitive groups were urged not to
consume Salem’s drinking water. (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers)

Salem officials still don’t know what caused the toxic bloom.

“That’s the million-dollar question that everybody wants to know,” said Lacey Goeres-Priest,
water quality supervisor at the Salem Public Works Department. “There’s a lot of different
factors that play into this type of event.”

The algae and the bacteria involved in harmful blooms are all naturally occurring and are
important building blocks of all life on Earth. But the two main causes of the blooms are not
natural.

Erosion and excessive fertilizer are to blame for the high levels of nutrients. For the second
factor, warm temperatures cause algae to bloom more aggressively and climate change seems a
likely culprit. Scientists at Tufts University in Massachusetts published a study in 2017
predicting toxic algal blooms would increase as the climate warms.

“They like it hot, and this helps them outcompete beneficial phytoplankton,” said Ali Dunn, an
environmental scientist at the California State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) who
studies blooms in that state. “It’s definitely been a catalyst for their growth.”

Closing the Data Gaps

Algal blooms are unpredictable, typically resulting from a suite of biological and environmental
conditions. Most algal toxins come from a class of cyanobacteria present with some — but not
all — algae. So the mere presence of algae does not mean a toxin is present.

The only way to detect algal toxins is through laboratory testing of water samples. This can take
days, adding significant delay to any public health response.

“Each lake, river, water body kind of has its own story to tell,” said Dunn. “The drivers are going
to be different and unique to that system.”

No one knows precisely how often blooms occur because there is no monitoring of the problem
on a national scale.

Cox, based in Ames, Iowa, and his team at EWG decided to gather their own data by recording
how often algal blooms were mentioned in the news media. He admits this was a crude method,
but no other data was available. In their resulting report, released in May, they documented 169
blooms in 2017 — up from 51 the year before.

That is certainly a low estimate, because many blooms probably don’t get reported in the media.



SECTION_/ = _ pAcE no._/0_

Case in point: in 2016, the SWRCB launched its own algal bloom reporting program. It is based
entirely on volunteer reports. Even so, in 2017 it recorded 181 algal blooms just in California, an
increase from 91 the year before. Of the 2017 blooms, 141 were serious enough to prompt health
advisories.

One of the 2017 reports illustrates how algal blooms are popping up where they once didn’t
seem possible. On Sept. 8, a bright green lake-wide algal bloom was reported at Rim Rock Lake,
a natural water body at the 7,000-feet (2,130 meters) elevation deep inside Lassen National
Forest in Northern California. Water samples revealed four species of cyanobacteria, but none
was producing toxins at the time.

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) conducts a National Lakes
Assessment every five years that sheds a little more light on the issue. The most recent
assessment now dates back to 2012. It found cyanobacteria and microcystin, a key algal toxin,
had increased 8.3percent and 9.5 percent, respectively, in the nation’s lakes compared with
2007.

In addition, the presence of phosphorus — a main nutrient from fertilizers that feeds algal
blooms — also grew significantly worse. Eighteen percent of lakes showed increasing phosphorus
concentrations compared with 2007. And 40 percent were recorded as having excess
phosphorus.

“We’ve been able to show, with our occurrence data, that toxins are present across the country in
all surface water types,” said Keith Loftin, a research chemist at the U.S. Geological Survey in
Kansas. “But in terms of an exact count year to year, we do not have that data.”

To close this gap, Loftin is helping develop a new national Cyanobacteria Assessment Network.
He’s part of a team that includes the EPA, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
and NASA. They plan to use satellite sensors to detect and monitor harmful algal blooms
nationwide. It will include a smartphone app to make the data widely available.

: : A e 1" sentinel 2:MsI
: ; """“’?ig".;,', - fuly 05‘,‘%"8)
= This satellite image shows the state of
an algal bloom in July at Diamond
. Valley Lake near Riverside, California,
~a critical storage reservoir for the
_ - Metropolitan Water District. In June,
e < thedistrict closed the lake to
- recreating as a result of the bloom.
| Pl - (Image Courtesy
L > Cyanotracker/University of Georgia)

The system is being tested now and Loftin hopes it will be publicly available within a year.

Data produced by the system could help develop new algae management techniques and
regulations.

A Drinking Water Crisis

The EPA, the nation’s water-quality police, has only issued recommendations and has yet to
impose federal drinking water standards for algal toxins. As a result, many utilities are forced to
improvise when an algal bloom strikes.



SECTION /52 pAGE NO. yis

Tk s et

Such was the case during Salem’s recent crisis.

The first indicator came on May 8, when an algal bloom appeared at Detroit Lake, a U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers reservoir on the North Santiam River. Salem draws its drinking water from
the reservoir, which is also popular for boating, swimming and fishing.

Because it had experienced blooms before, Salem already had a weekly testing program for algal
toxins. Now it increased testing to twice weekly, sending samples to a laboratory in Ohio.

It wasn’t until May 25, just before Memorial Day weekend, that test results from a sample of the
city’s water confirmed the presence of a type of cyanotoxin. Consulting with the Oregon Health
Authority, the city took a wait-and-see approach to the problem over the long holiday weekend,
Goeres-Priest said. It tweaked the water treatment process to try to control the toxin, and
tapped a backup supply from the neighboring city of Keizer to help dilute the water.

But the bloom continued. So on Tuesday, May 29, the city issued a health advisory urging
sensitive groups not to drink the tap water. It affected not just Salem, but three neighboring
communities that draw water from the city.

With help from the state, Salem began distributing bottled water and the National Guard
mobilized tankers to dispense clean water at two dozen sites for residents who brought their
own containers.

The city lifted the health advisory five days later, on June 2, after two consecutive days of clean
water samples.

Then the bloom roared back, and on June 6 Salem was forced to impose the advisory again,
adding to public confusion. It was finally lifted on July 3, only after 12 consecutive days of clean
water tests.

Algal blooms had struck Detroit Lake before, but none had ever lasted that long or required
health warnings.

“What is different about this year than previous years? At this point, I don’t know the answer to
that,” Goeres-Priest said. “We're still learning a lot about the toxins themselves, and trying to
understand what triggers that toxin release.”

A forest fire may be one new contributor. The Whitewater Fire, which started in July 2017,
burned 14,000 acres of forest in the Santiam River watershed east of Salem. Fire ash contains
phosphorus, a nutrient that could have fed this year’s algal bloom. Goeres-Priest doesn’t know to
what extent that was a factor.

The algal bloom episode was costly for Salem, she said, although a full tally is not yet available.

Initially, the city spent hundreds of thousands of dollars on water sample testing. Later, to avoid
the delay of sending samples to Ohio, the city bought its own testing machine at a cost of
$35,000. It also bought a cryofreezer because laboratory protocol requires samples to be flash-
frozen and thawed three times before testing.

Salem also had to upgrade its water treatment plant, adding a process involving powdered
activated carbon to remove algal toxins from the source water.



SECTION 22 PAGE NO. /2=

B ~ A Salem, Oregon, city employee prepares water samples for testing
to determine the presence of algal toxms The city purchased new testing machines during a recent toxic algal bloom
to avoid delays in sending water samples to a lab in Ohio. (Photo Courtesy city of Salem)

In response to Salem’s travails, the Oregon Health Authority imposed its own interim water
quality standards for algal toxins. It now requires all water agencies to test for them regularly
while it develops permanent standards.

Solving the Problem

One thing that’s clear about toxic algal blooms is that treating the outbreak doesn’t solve the
problem. They are likely to recur until the root cause is corrected. Watsonville, California,
provides an example.

Pinto Lake, a Watsonville city recreation site, began experiencing algal blooms as early as the
1980s, said Jackie McCloud, the city’s environmental projects manager. The lake drains into the
Pajaro River, then into Monterey Bay.

The blooms were not a drinking water concern, because the lake isn't used for that purpose. But
the algae problem became unavoidable when sea otters, protected by the state and federal
Endangered Species Act, began turning up dead on the bay shore in 2007.

Necropsies cited liver failure as cause of death in 33 sea otters. That, in turn was caused by
exposure to microcystin, an algal toxin that accumulated in the tissues of sea urchins and
shellfish eaten by the otters. It was the first time the freshwater toxin had been documented to
survive in seawater and cause the death of marine mammals.

The toxin was traced upstream to Pinto Lake.

McCloud said the lake’s algae problem dates back to the earliest days of settlement in the area.
Vast redwood forests in the coastal mountains draining into the watershed were cut down for
building materials, and the resulting erosion coated the bottom of the lake with nutrients —
specifically phosphorus. Farming, road building and housing development sent more
phosphorus-laden runoff into the lake.

“We were just seeing massive amounts of erosion from the watershed coming into the lake,”
McCloud said.

The city took a two-pronged approach: stop the algal blooms and stop the erosion.

To control the blooms, the city hired a consultant who applied alum, a chemical compound
meant to neutralize and isolate phosphorus in the lakebed. McCloud called this a “Band-Aid”
measure because the real solution lies in the watershed upstream.

But the city has no land use authority in the watershed, so it began working with Santa Cruz
County and the local Resource Conservation District, an organization that helps farmers
improve land use practices.



sEcTiIoN_[=2_ paGENO. /2

Landowners were encouraged to adopt erosion control measures, such as water bars on dirt
roads to manage runoff and buffer strips of vegetation to capture it. The county adopted similar
measures on its public lands in the watershed, including Mt. Madonna County Park.

All this work, including the alum treatment, was funded by $900,000 in EPA grants
administered by the SWRCB. McCloud called it a success: there have been no algal blooms since
the work began.

But she knows the job isn’t done. The alum treatment will eventually wear off, and erosion
controls require ongoing maintenance.

“We’re going to see more of these hot, intense weather events where we don’t have a lot of water
coming into the system anymore and we’re concentrating this phosphorus,” McCloud said. “We
knew the lake was the biggest problem, but we realized we're not going to solve anything by just
looking at that one spot. You have to look bigger than just your lake.”



SECTION %, PAGE No. /%

circle of blue

where water speaks

WaterNews
Regulators Will Soon Know A Lot More About
Algal Toxins in U.S. Drinking Water

July 10, 2018/in Algae Blooms, Water News, Water Quality /by Brett Walton
For the next two years, water utilities are required to test for ten cyanotoxins.

An algal bloom swirls in the western basin of Lake Erie, in September 2017. Photo courtesy of
USGS/NASA

By Brett Walton, Circle of Blue

Authorities in Salem, Oregon, lifted a drinking water advisory on July 3 that had been in
place for children and the elderly since Memorial Day weekend, when algal toxins were
discovered in the city’s water system.

How many other water systems are at risk from the foxin-producing scum that grows in
rivers and lakes, particularly in the warmer months? Thanks to U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency monitoring requirements, regulators will soon have more
comprehensive data on how often such toxins show up in drinking water supplies and at
what concentrations.

For the next two years water utilities are required to test for 10 cyanotoxins and their
variants. The requirement stems from a Safe Drinking Water Act provision designed to
help the EPA understand how frequently contaminants that are not regulated at the



-
SECTION J=2._page N0, |/

federal level appear in drinking water. The data are used when considering whether to
set mandatory safeguards.

“It's going to be helpful,” Alan Roberson told Circle of Blue. Roberson is the executive
director of the Association of State Drinking Water Administrators, the organization that
represents state water regulators.

Produced by cyanobacteria, nourished by excess nutrients, and amplified by warming
temperatures, the toxic blooms are a growing health threat in drinking water, both for
humans and pets. The toxins target the liver, nervous system, and skin, and can cause
nausea, rashes, stomach pain, and in rare cases, death. The EPA established drinking
water health quidelines in 2015 for two toxins — microcystin and cylindrospermopsin —
but the guidelines are not enforceable.

To inform its regulatory decisions, the EPA periodically orders utilities to gather data on
unregulated contaminants in their treated water. During this fourth assessment cycle,
utilities must test for 30 such contaminants. In addition to cyanotoxins, the list includes
the pesticide chlorpyrifos and metals like manganese and germanium.

The roughly 4,000 water systems that serve more than 10,000 people must participate
in the testing. For smaller systems, the EPA randomly selected a group of 800 to
monitor for cyanotoxins and another 800 to monitor for the other 20 contaminants.

Though testing of rivers and lakes to protect swimmers and boaters is common, few
states require utilities to test drinking water for cyanotoxins.

Ohio is one of the leading states in addressing algal toxins, Roberson said. That
leadership grew in large part from a shock: four years ago, the city of Toledo, which
draws water from Lake Erie, made headlines for shutting down water service to some
400,000 people for several days due to detection of cyanotoxins. Blooms in recent
years also fouled the Ohio River and dozens of lakes used as drinking water sources.

In Ohio now all utilities that draw water from rivers and lakes have mandatory
cyanotoxin monitoring requirements. They also have to demonstrate the ability to
remove cyanotoxins from drinking water.

When it issued the monitoring rules in June 2016, the Ohio Environmental Protection
Agency argued that it could not wait several years for its federal counterpart to gather
data and write regulations.

According to the Ohio EPA, since the rules went into effect no utility has issued a
drinking water advisory for a harmful algal bloom.

“The rules provided regulators and system operators with greater awareness of the
scale and scope of the problem,” James Lee, an agency spokesman, told Circle of Blue.

Oregon regulators, meanwhile, responded to the Salem incident by tightening their
rules. The Oregon Health Authority issued testing requirements on July 1 for water
systems that draw from sources that are vulnerable to algal blooms. The rules, which
apply to 95 water systems, are a temporary, emergency patch until the authority goes
through a public rulemaking process.




SECTION "% _page N0,/

July 24, 2018 | Written by Jared S. Mueller

Members of Congress Propose Sweeping
Reforms to the Endangered Species Act

Several members of the House of Representatives have proposed bills seeking to reform the Endangered
Species Act (ESA) before the end of this legislative session. Enacted 45 years ago, the ESA was last amended
in 1988. With several targeted measures, the House Western Caucus’s “Bipartisan ESA Modernization
Package” includes the following key changes:

¢ H.R. 6356, the LIST Act, authorizes the Secretary of the Interior to promptly de-list currently endangered or
threatened species based on scientific studies demonstrating that a species is recovered, while
empowering states, researchers, and other groups to notify the United States Fish and Wildlife Service
(USFWS) when recovery has occurred.

* H.R. 6345, the EMPOWERS Act, requires federal agencies to consult states before making the decision to
list a species, and to provide an explanation to such states to the extent that a decision deviates from the
state’s findings or advice.

* H.R. 6344, the LOCAL Act, declares clear statutory channels and codifies longstanding incentives for parties
engaging in voluntary conservation activities by way of Species Recovery Agreements and Habitat Reserve
Agreements.

* H.R. 6355, the PETITION Act, reforms the listing petition process to protect against frivolous petition filing
or “petition backlogs” subjecting the USFWS or the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) to litigation.

* H.R. 6364, the LAMP Act, permits the Secretary of the Interior to enter into cooperative management
agreements with state and local governments, tribes, and other groups seeking to facilitate constructive
interaction amongst stakeholders and federal agencies.

* H.R. 6360, the PREDICTS Act, codifies agency regulations for Habitat Conservation Plans, Candidate
Conservation Agreements with Assurances, and Safe Harbor Agreements in an effort to provide certainty
and incentivize cooperation between public and private entities.

* H.R. 6346, the WHOLE Act, requires consideration of all conservation measures prior to any federal actions,
including actions undertaken outside of designated critical habitat.

» H.R. 6354, the STORAGE Act, excludes from critical habitat designations limited reservoir and artificial
water delivery land lacking characteristics that would contribute toward species recovery.

« H.R. 3608, the Endangered Species Transparency and Reasonableness Act, requires data used by federal
agencies for ESA listing decisions to be made publicly available and accessible through the Internet, while
also requiring the USFWS to track, report, and make available online all funds spent responding to ESA
litigation, the number of employees dedicated to litigation, and the attorneys’ fees awarded in the course of
ESA litigation and/or settlement agreements. This bill also caps the hourly rate awarded in ESA citizen suit
litigation based on the Equal Access to Justice Act, which limits prevailing party attorneys’ fees to $125.00
per hour.



SEC"ON.EQ; PAGENO. /7.

In addition to this activity in the House, Senate Environment and Public Works Chairman John Barrasso has
proposed an overhaul package requiring greater input from states on listing and de-listing decisions, recovery
goals, and habitat objectives. Chairman Barrasso's discussion draft bill, which was the subject of a committee
hearing on July 17, 2018, also includes greater transparency in litigation, requiring publication of any ESA
citizen suit complaint, notification of states and counties of any proposed settlements, and disclosure of
attorneys' fees paid to any person in connection with an ESA citizen suit.

If you would like copies of any of the bills or contact information for any of the sponsors, please contact Jared
Mueller at jmueller@somachlaw.com.

Somach Simmons & Dunn provides the information in its Environmental Law & Policy Alerts and on its website
for informational purposes only. This general information is not a substitute for legal advice, and users should
consult with legal counsel for specific advice. In addition, using this information or sending electronic mail to
Somach Simmons & Dunn or its attorneys does not create an attorney-client relationship with Somach
Simmons & Dunn.



j 2 ; SECTION /Z5-_PAGE NO._ [_i(_ )
%@Mﬁﬂﬂﬂgg @mﬁ} PAGEN

insidenstGuideitolPlanningl&linfrastructure

July 26, 2018 - From the July, 2018 (/issue/july-2018) issue

Water Efficiency Standards for Water Agencies & Local
Governments Now State Law

Tags:

Laura Friedman (/tags/laura-friedman) Water (/tags/water) drought resilience (/tags/drought-resilience)

Governor Brown (ftags/governor-brown) Glendale Narrows (/tags/glendale-narrows)

As part of a package of water related legislative reforms championed by both Assemblymember Laura Friedman and State
Senator Bob Herizberg, California established landmark water efficiency standards and enforcement mechanisms when
Governor Brown signed the bills in May. Sitting down with TPR, Asm. Friedman explains how her AB 1668 (along with
Herizberg's SB 606} codifies the many of the goals outlined in the Governor’s Water Action Plan. As the new laws are
implemented by SWRCB and DWR over the next several years, they will dramatically change how local water suppliers plan
for, report and achieve water use efficiency and drought management within their service areas. Friedman explains how the
new water use standards for various industries take a balanced approach, and provide guidance for water agencies to help
facilitate drought resiliency. Friedman also provides an update to the Glendale Narrows Riverwalk project in Los Angeles
which now plans to create a bridge to Griffith Park.

You and Senator Hertzberg authored AB 1686, now signed into law, to
establish new water efficiency standards for various industries and to provide
guidance for California’s water agencies. What are the new law’s primary
objectives?

Laura Friedman: The first goal of this law is to make every water agency and every
user of water across the state highly efficient over time. Right now, different water
agencies have different levels of efficiency based primarily on their access to water.
We have districts that didn’t have meters until recently, and districts where
multifamily housing still doesn’t have meters. There are areas where water
efficiency has not been a priority, while in other parts of the state, agencies have
had to become highly efficient because of drought.

Water, obviously, is a statewide resource that is precious, and all of us, no matter
where we live, should be efficient in our use of water, This law is an attempt to, over
time, create a situation where all water agencies work with their users to become
efficient.

The second goal of this law is to make sure that all water districts, large or small,
have better planning to deal with drought. We discovered during the recent drought
that some agencies were well prepared with very good contingency plans, while
others fell short. We want to make sure that everybody has good plans that are
workable and approved. - .



You have served in local government, both as a councilmember in Glendale
and on the board of the Metropolitan Water District. How will AB 1686 affect
the practices of water agencies and local governments?

Local government has a role to play, both as overseer or customer of water
agencies and as the representatives of water users. Local governments work
directly with residents and businesses on efficiency and can coordinate efforts with
water agencies, who may be a bit further removed.

It's the agencies themselves that have to live within the water budget; any impact
on individual users is fairly limited. The agencies will aggregate the number and
types of users they have and be given a budget for indoor and outdoor use. Then,

secron £2_paeno, 17
"Water is a

statewide
resource that is
precious, and
all of us, no
matter where
we live, should
be efficient in

they can work closely with local governments to figure out how best to get to that our use Of
efficiency goal over time. water." - Asm.
o , o Laura
In some districts, that might mean working with local government to make sure that .
Friedman

users are aware of rebates for water-smart appliances like low-flow toilets. In some
districts, it might mean working to get individual water meters on older multifamily
housing units. There are all sorts of ways to get to these efficiency goals.

Metropolitan’s project to replace water-thirsty turf with more drought-resistant landscaping was highly successful in getting
homes to reduce their outdoor water use. | expect that we'll see more of that type of cooperation between residents,
businesses, local governments, and water agencies.

Another point to keep in mind is that many agencies lose a lot of water within their own system, and there’s never been any
real penalization for that. We know that there are water agencies losing as much as 60 percent of their water to leaks in their
system. That's pretty outrageous considering how important water is. We're hoping that the punitive part of this law, even
though it rolls out over time, will make agencies realize that it might be more cost-efficient in the long run to fix their leaky
systems than to have to pay penalties to the Water Board for failing to do so.

How challenging was it to include and win acceptance for penalties and enforcement provisions in SB 6067

The whole process has been difficult. At our first hearing, we had a line of opponents that went through the committee room,
out the door, and down the hallway. They were from water agencies across the state. In some cases, their argument was
simply: “We don’t want anyone to tell us what to do. We want to run our agency the way we want to run it, and we certainly
don’t want penalties or forced conservation. If there’s no drought order, we should be able to sell as much water as we can.”

Water agencies certainly understand the need for conservation, and they want to help with it, but at the same time, they have
to sell water. Like any other retailer, they have an incentive to sell a lot of their product. That's how they pay for their systems.
And when they're selling less because of a drought order or mandatory conservation, they still have fixed costs. They still
have employees and lines that they have to maintain. Meanwhile, Proposition 218 and other measures make it difficult for
them to recover their costs.

In some ways, water agencies are going to have to rethink their model. But for now, it’s a real problem for them when they're
told to sell less water. For the state to tell them, “We're going to cut back what you can sell, and we’re going to do it forever,
and continue to ramp that number down,” is a real concern for them. That was an inherent issue we were up against, and we
had to come to terms with it.

But we worked very closely with them for a year and a haif, and we got the bill to a place that they felt that was doable. They
understand the long-term goals and are on board with making efficiency a way of iife in California. And we'll be working with
them to get them there.



SECTION_52_ PAGE NO. W

At the end of the day, water agencies are not the enemy—wasting water is the enemy. | stand ready to offer agencies the
support they need to make this doable for them. | think they want to be efficient, so we need to make sure that they are able
to do that.

1,5-' UL @umman . (simpleads/redirect/14922)

Advertisement

Let’s pivot to the state’s newly approved $8.6 billion water and parks bond—Prop 68, which passed in June—as well
as to the water bond on the upcoming November ballot (https://www.planningreport.com/2018/05/11/november-water-
bond-promises-89-billion-towards-securing-california-s-future). How do these bonds contribute to the objectives of the
governor and the Legislature with respect to the intentional management of California’s water supply?

Any funding that goes into more water infrastructure helps fulfill the goals of this legislation, because water agencies are
going to need resources to invest in the infrastructure that will help with efficiency. Leak detection, smart meters, incentives for
water-saving devices for businesses and individuals—all of that costs money. Even though it pays itself back in the long run
because you're paying for less water use, help is often needed with those upfront costs.

We’ve got systems out there that are 100 years old. We've seen what happened in Los Angeles when they weren't able to
invest fully in their infrastructure: exploding water mains and the like. No one wants to see that happen.

More locally, you've long been involved in the Glendale Narrows Riverwalk project. Share the project’s importance
and what progress has been made.

If I could point to one accomplishment in my first term in the California Assembly, it would be this, | never thought I'd be able
to get this project financed, and | did. I'm grateful to the governor and Speaker Rendon for their help with that.

The first two phases of the Glendale Narrows Riverwalk Project created a pedestrian and bike path on the eastern side of the
LA River, from the Burbank border through Glendale. But that path essentially dead-ends when you get to the southern part.
Now, Phase lll will create a bridge to Griffith Park.

That part of Glendale—and really the whole east side of the LA River—is cut off from Griffith Park by the LA River and the 5
Freeway. They can only get there by taking the 134 Freeway or by diverting all the way into Burbank or LA to Los Feliz
Boulevard, which is very unfriendly to pedestrians and cyclists. It's also very congested, and taking cars off that road is a real
imperative for the district

This bridge will provide a safe way for people to walk and bicycle across the LA River to Griffith Park. It's the missing link for
the whole east side of the river to get to Griffith Park safely. Moreover, it will create connectivity from Burbank and Glendale to
the LA River Bike Path, which is also inaccessible from our side of the river.

What makes this project even better is that Los Angeles is planning to run a small shuttle all around Griffith Park, and the
bridge will be one of their shuttie stops. Now, 100,000 people who live within a mile of the bridge site will be able to walk or
bike across the bridge and then take the LADOT shuttle to get to the Observatory, the zoo, the Hollywood Sign, the theater,
and all the other destinations around the park.

We got $20 million in the state budget for the bridge, and hopefully the city of Glendale will move quickly to get it built. It's an
astoundingly important project for bicycle and pedestrian commuting and for getting cars off of Los Feliz Boulevard and the
134, and it's a game-changer for residents on that side of the river.

The Planning Report has been tracking Los Angeles County Supervisor Sheila Kuehl’s work on the stormwater
parcel tax measure for the November ballot. Speak to the importance and opportunity of that proposal.



o SECTION 52 pagk NO #L_
We have an EPA decree and a lot of regulatory mandates to comply with when it comes to stormwater=1t'we-don't take action;

we could face huge penalties from the federal government—millions or even a billion dollars. If we don’t do it, there will be a
lot of financial costs on the other end, not to mention a lot of wasted water.

I hear from people all the time about how frustrating it is, when we're being asked to conserve water, to see so much water
wasted because it runs into the sewer drains and out to the ocean.

This is very necessary infrastructure. The question then is how we pay for it in a way that is equitable—that doesn't just fall on

the shoulders of coastal cities, but is spread more evenly around the county. | know the county has spent years negotiating
this particular scheme, and [ think it's really important that people give it the utmost consideration.

Log in (/user/login?destination=node/15531%23comment-form) to post comments

Advertise with us (/advertise)

PLANETIZEN
Courses

Advertisement

Online planning
courses taught
by experts.

(/simpleads/redirect/14897) (/simpleads/redirect/14924)

PLANNING
& VISIONING

VWEBSITES




SECTION £-2_ PAGE NO%..

California drought legacy: State approves $2.5
billion to build new dams, water storage
projects

{Gary Reyes/
The North Fork Pacheco Creek Reservoir is the site of a newly planned $969 million reservoir in the hills
of Eastern Santa Clara County near Gilroy, Calif., on Tuesday, April 11, 2017. The reservoir would hold
140,000 acre-feet of water, making it the largest reservoir in Santa Clara County. (Gary Reyes/ Bay Area
News Group)

By PAUL ROGERS | progers@bayareanewsgroup.com | Bay Area News Group
PUBLISHED: July 24, 2018 at 11:52 am | UPDATED: July 24, 2018 at 2:53 pm

In a historic vote, the administration of Gov. Jerry Brown on Tuesday approved spending
$2.5 billion to help fund eight new large water projects across California — four new
dams and four underground storage projects — including two in the Bay Area.

The funding came from Proposition 1, a water bond approved by voters in November,
2014, during California’s five-year drought. It is believed to be the largest commitment
of state money to construct new dams and water storage projects in California since 1960,
when voters approved a bond to build Oroville Dam and the State Water Project.

“This meeting represents a huge step forward,” said Armando Quintero, chairman of the
California Water Commission, a state agency that approved the funding Tuesday on an 8-
0 vote.

The vote followed several years of public meetings and evaluations of a dozen projects.
Among the top-scoring projects that received the most money Tuesday are two in the Bay
Area: $485 million to the Santa Clara Valley Water District to construct a new 319-foot-
tall dam at Pacheco Pass in rural southern Santa Clara County, and $459 million to the



SECTION /-2 PAGE NO

S g, o s SR

Contra Costa Water District to raise the height of the dam at Los Vaqueros Reservoir in
eastern Contra Costa County by 55 feet, increasing the lake’s size by about 70 percent.

The new funding would pay roughly half the cost of each project.

The local agencies still need to raise the rest of the money through other sources,
including asking for federal funding, partnerships with other water districts, and raising
local water rates. If they are unable to complete those steps by Jan. 1, 2022, they will lose
the state funding, although backers of both Bay Area projects say they expect to meet that
deadline.

The estimated total cost of the new Pacheco Reservoir is $969 million. Construction
would start in six years after the Santa Clara Valley Water District purchases thousands
of acres of ranch land surrounding the site just north of Highway 152 near Casa de Fruta,
completes engineering and environmental studies, raises the rest of the money and
secures water rights.

“It’s important for the residents of Santa Clara County to have another source of water
that’s reliable,” said Richard Santos, chairman of the Santa Clara Valley Water District’s
board. “I think it’s the right thing for the future. I’m very proud of what we are doing.
We’re going to get more droughts. And temperatures are getting hotter. Having a new
reservoir really is an insurance policy.”

The Santa Clara Valley Water District provides water to 2 million people in San Jose and
other parts of Santa Clara County. It has 10 reservoirs. If completed, the Pacheco project
would hold 140,000 acre feet of water — enough for the annual needs of about 700,000
people. The new reservoir would be built on top of a small reservoir of only 6,000 acre
feet that was built in the 1930s. It would become the largest in Santa Clara County,
surpassing the 90,000-acre foot Anderson Lake near Morgan Hill, which was constructed
in 1950.

The Los Vaqueros expansion would construct a reservoir even larger.

In that project, whose environmental studies are already completed, the total project cost
is estimated at $980 million. The Contra Costa Water District would raise the height of
Los Vaqueros Dam in eastern Contra Costa County by 55 feet to 273 feet high. That
would expand the reservoir’s capacity from 160,000 acre-feet to 275,000 acre-feet,
providing more water for Bay Area cities during droughts and some for wildlife refuges
near Los Banos. Already 15 water districts, including East Bay Municipal Utility District
and San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, have expressed interest in helping fund
the project and sharing its water, said Jennifer Allen, a spokeswoman for the Contra
Costa Water District.

“It’s a positive step forward for a project we have been looking at for quite some time,”
Allen said. “This is a good opportunity for us locally, and for other agencies around the
Bay Area and Central Valley.”



SECTION_-52_ PAGE Noéﬁ-

L =T Sk - ' ¥ A pair of anglers fish at Los
Vaqueros Reservmr on Monday, Oct 2, 2017 in Brentwood Cahf Los Vaqueros is currently 95 percent full, and
would be expanded by 70 percent under new plans that won state funding Tuesday. (Aric Crabb/Bay Area News
Group)

Environmental groups, who often file lawsuits to block new dams when they block rivers
and kill salmon and other fish and wildlife, have supported the Los Vaqueros project.
Among the supporters are the Nature Conservancy, Audubon California and the Planning
and Conservation League.

Plans call for ground to be broken in 2022, Allen said, with the project finished in 2028.

Water for both Los Vaqueros and Pacheco would come from the Sacramento-San Joaquin
River Delta. For Los Vaqueros, water already is sent through the Contra Costa Canal
from the Delta into Los Vaqueros, which is currently 95 percent full, and which provided
a cushion to Contra Costa County residents during the drought.

For Pacheco, the water would be piped from nearby San Luis Reservoir, where Santa
Clara Valley Water District stores water is purchases under state and federal contracts
from the Delta.

The water commission on Tuesday also approved funding for four groundwater storage
projects. They are $280 million to the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District to
treat recycled wastewater and provide it to farmers in Sacramento County, along with
$207 million to the Inland Empire Utilities Agency to store recycled water in a
groundwater storage bank in San Bernardino County for use by local cities, businesses
and farms; $67 million for the Kern Fan groundwater storage project near Bakersfield
and $95 million the Willow Springs groundwater bank 50 miles north of Los Angeles
near Rosamond in Kern County, which would add 500,000 acre-feet of new storage.

The funding from Proposition 1 is not without controversy, however.

Some of the-projects approved, such as funding for Temperance Flat Dam in the Southern
Sierra east of Fresno and Sites Reservoir in Colusa County will face certain lawsuits from



secTIoN 22 pacE N0, 22

environmental groups. Temperance Flat, a $2.6 billion project, was awarded only $172
million Tuesday under a scoring system in which state officials required supporters of
each project to document in detail the public benefits of each project in a cost-benefit
ratio.

And Sites was awarded $816 million. Its total cost is estimated at $5.2 billion.

Jay Lund, director of the UC Center for Watershed studies, noted that Proposition 1 was
the first time in California history that the state agreed to fund large water projects with
general obligation funds, which are repaid from the state’s treasury. Other water projects
have been funded with revenue bonds, in which money from each water district paid off
the bonds thorough local taxes and water rates.

“It is taking money from the state general fund that provides for schools, prisons and
everything else and gives it to some of the most well-off water districts in the state,”
Lund said, noting the state must repay the bonds, with interest over decades. “Every
billion of that is going to be taking $50 million out of the general fund every year for a
long time.”



SECTION S22 pace Nl o

THIS JUST IN ... Commission Approves Investing $2.7
Billion in Eight Water Storage Projects
July 24, 2018 Maven Breakina News

Proposition 1 Funds Conditionally Committed to Add 4.3 Million Acre-Feet of
Storage Capacity

From the California Water Commission:

= ‘-\__/

o o fd
YYA \f [ R I\/\}\A SO0 Eight proposed projects that would boost California’s
water storage capacity by 4.3 million acre-feet are in line to receive nearly $2.7 billion in
Proposition 1 funding following action today by the California Water Commission.

The Commission approved conditional funding amounts for the projects, which range from
expanding existing reservoirs to boosting groundwater storage to building 21st century
surface storage facilities. Applicants must complete remaining Proposition 1 requirements,
including final permits, environmental documents and commitments for non-Proposition 1
funding, by Jan. 1, 2022, to receive a final funding award from the Commission.

“Today marks a major milestone for the Commission and project applicants,” Commission
Chair Armando Quintero said. “After an intensive process, the Commission has concluded
that these eight storage projects will ensure the strongest return on the public’s investment.
We applaud the applicants for their hard work to get to this point, and we are confident they
will use this momentum to do the remaining work needed to secure these crucial

investments in California’s water future.”

The Commission also approved requests from three applicants to receive a portion of their
funding early to help complete permits and environmental documents. The three projects
are Sites Reservoir, Los Vaqueros Reservoir Expansion, and Pacheco Reservoir
Expansion. Proposition 1 allows applicants to receive up to 5 percent of their Commission-

approved conditional funding amount as early funding.

Moving forward, the Commission will continue meeting with applicants, state agencies and
stakeholders to review the status of each project. Once an applicant has obtained all
necessary permits, contracts, and documents, the Commission will hold a final funding

hearing.



secTion 22 page N0..2 7.

Below is a summary of the Commission-approved Maximum Conditional Eligibility

Determination (MCED) and early funding for each project.

Project

Pacheco
Reservoir
Expansion
Project

South County
Ag Program

Los Vaqueros
Reservoir
Expansion
Project

Temperance
Flat Reservoir
Project

Chino Basin
Conjunctive
Use Program

Sites Project

Kern Fan
Groundwater
Storage Project

Willow Springs
Water Bank

Proposition 1, approved by 67 percent of California voters in 2014, created a competitive
process for funding projects based on their public benefit aspects. The projects were

Final
Expected
Return for
Public
Investment
Score

82

77

76

73

70
61

54

53

Rank

Totals

Commission-
Approved
Eligible
Amount
(May 2018)

$484,550,000

$280,530,000

$459,000,000

$171,330,000

$206,900,000
$1,008,280,000
$85,660,000

$123,290,000
$2,819,540,000

Applicant
Request
(May 2018)

$484,550,000

$280,500,000

$459,000,000

$171,330,000

$206,900,000
$916,620,000

$85,700,000

$123,290,000
$2,727,890,000
Total Available

Commission
MCED
(July 2018)

$484,550,000

$280,500,000

$459,000,000

$171,330,000

$206,900,000
$816,377,686

$67,537,315

$95,405,999
$2,581,601,000
$2,581,601,000

evaluated and ranked on criteria established in the Water Storage Investment

Program regulations.

Early Funding
(Portion of MCED)

$24,200,000

None Requested

$13.650,309

None Requested
$40,818,884
None Requested

None Requested
$78,669,193

Proposition 1 dedicated $2.7 billion for the Water Storage Investment Program. As noted at

the beginning of the application process, 2 percent of that amount is set aside for bond
financing and 2.5 percent is set aside for state administrative costs over the life of the

program, so the total funding available is $2.582 billion.



ACWAL sECTIoN /72— pace N0, 25

CWC MARKS MILESTONE, APPROVES
FUNDING AMOUNTS FOR WSIP PROJECTS

BY WILL HOLBERT JUL 24, 201B WATER NEWS

The California Water Commission (CWC) today approved nearly $2.7 billion in Proposition 1 funding for
eight projects through its Water Storage Investment Program (WSIP).

The conditionally approved funds will pay up to half the total cost of the projects, with proponents
responsible for funding the rest. The eight projects would boost California’s water storage capacity by
a total of 4.3 million acre-feet. The projects include the Sites Reservoir Project, Kern Fan Groundwater
Storage Project, Willow Springs Water Bank, Temperance Flat Reservoir Project, Los Vaqueros
Reservoir Expansion Project, Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project, South Sacramento County
Agriculture Program and Chino Basin Conjunctive Use Environmental Water Storage Program.

“This decision puts California on the road to add more than four million acre-feet of new storage
capacity to the state water supply system,” said ACWA Executive Director Timothy Quinn. “The majority
of these funds, about 75%, will go to new surface storage capacity, with the remainder expanding
groundwater storage. This action moves us toward an integrated system that is highly consistent with
the storage policy goals identified by ACWA's Board in 2015.”

The CWC also approved requests from three applicants to receive a portion of their funding early to
help complete permits and environmental documents. The three projects are Sites Reservoir, Los
Vaqueros Reservoir Expansion and Pacheco Reservoir Expansion. Proposition 1 allows applicants to
receive up to 5% of their CWC-approved conditional funding amount as early funding.

Temperance Flat’'s proponents also requested early funding, but it was effectively denied after the
eight-member CWC split evenly on granting the full amount requested — $8.5 million — and again on
approving half that amount.

Moving forward, the CWC will continue meeting with applicants, state agencies and stakeholders to
review the status of each project. Once an applicant has obtained all necessary permits, contracts, and
documents, the CWC will hold a final funding hearing.

Proposition 1, approved by 67% of California voters in 2014, created a competitive process for funding
projects based on their public benefit aspects. The projects were evaluated and ranked on criteria
established in the WSIP.



SECTION "2 _page N0 2]

s o i

Proposition 1 dedicated $2.7 billion for the WSIP. As noted at the beginning of the application process,
2% of that amount is set aside for bond financing and 2.5% is set aside for state administrative costs
over the life of the program, so the total funding available is $2.582 billion. For more information and
approved conditional funding for each project, see the CWC news release.

© 2018 Association of California Water Agencies



SECTION 22~ page N0 50

California commission votes to eliminate Sativa Water District
over brown water issues

A California commission unanimously voted to eliminate the Sativa Water District, which
serves parts of Compton and Willowbrook, over the issue of brown, smelly water.

By Carlos Granda
Wednesday, July 11, 2018 08:07PM

DOWNTOWN LOS ANGELES (KABC) --
Compton and Willowbrook residents wanted to make sure their message was heard loud

and clear during a hearing,.
"We should have clean water here," one resident said.

Inside where a meeting was being held, residents told their stories. For months they
have complained of brown, murky and smelly water coming out of their taps.

"It's very heartbreaking to see that we get dirty water. But it's more heartbreaking to get
no response from Sativa," resident Martha Barajas said.

There are allegations the district has been mismanaged and it operated without enough
oversight.

"They can't be trusted with the funds if they have sat up there all these years and
nothing's been changed, they're not going to change," resident Karen Lewis said.

At the end of the meeting, a unanimous vote was made by the Local Agency Formation
Commission to eliminate the Sativa Water District, which serves about 1,600 customers
in Compton and Willowbrook. Supervisors said the county is ready to take control.

"We're going to start taking over and begin looking at their books to make sure that the
district is running properly," Supervisor Janice Hahn said. "In the meantime, we're
going to be looking for an agency to replace Sativa."

Attorney Mark Ravis said private companies could step up to provide some people with
bottled water and relief until the situation is resolved.

The changes will take some time to take effect as all of it has to be approved by the State
Water Board.



SECTION /=22 page N0, 2/

Western Water July 13, 2018 Gary Pitzer

VEXED BY SALT AND NITRATES IN CENTRAL VALLEY GROUNDWATER,
REGULATORS TURN TO UNUSUAL COALITION FOR SOLUTIONSSPOTLIGHT: LEFT
UNADDRESSED, SALTS AND NITRATES COULD RENDER FARMLAND UNSUITABLE
FOR CROPS AND FAMILY WELL WATER UNDRINKABLE

An evaporation pond near Kettleman City in Kings County, with salt
encrusted on the soil. (Source: California Department of Water

Resources)

More than a decade in the making, an ambitious plan to deal with the vexing problem of salt and
nitrates in the soils that seep into key groundwater basins of the Central Valley is moving toward

implementation. But its authors are not who you might expect.

An unusual collaboration of agricultural interests, cities, water agencies and environmental justice
advocates collaborated for years to find common ground to address a set of problems that have

rendered family wells undrinkable and some soil virtually unusable for farming.

“It’s a better solution because it was developed by people from different areas of Califarnia and they
could raise issues we might not have been considering if we were only looking in Kern County or Colusa
County,” said Jeanne Chilcott, environmental program manager with the Central Valley Regional Water

Quality Control Board.

“If not addressed, economic impacts of salts and nitrates on the Valley are estimated to exceed $3
billion per year.”

~Central Valley Salinity Alternatives for Long Term Sustainability.

The nitrate problem mainly stems from more than 50 years of spreading fertilizers on the nation’s most
productive farmland; the salts come from simply irrigating any crops. Nitrates in drinking water can be
harmful for human health, particularly for infants. Salts can stunt plant growth, encrust the dirt, and —
in the Central Valley — squeeze the productive life out of some of the most fertile soils in the world. In
the Middle East, centuries of irrigation in the floodplain of the Tigris and Euphrates rivers have left a
thick crust of salt on the land and soil hardened by salt deposits, a result Central Valley farmers and

others hope to avoid.

The regional water board approved the Central Valley Salt and Nitrate Control Program May 31 that calls
for bottled water to be delivered to some affected communities as part of the development of nitrate

management zones. The State Water Resources Control Board will vote on whether to approve the



SECTION_J-22-_PAGE N0,

program next year. The program, a result of the Central Valley Salinity Alternatives for Long Term

Sustainability (CV-SALTS), a deliberative process that seeks to stem nitrate discharges while

acknowledging the longer-term challenge of cleaning up aquifers and returning them to productivity.

~ ACentral Valley salinity coalition workshop. (Source: CV-SALTS
coalition)For years, growers, water providers, regulators and
others have recognized that something needs to be done about
the salt and nitrate in the soil and groundwater of the Central

Valley, particularly those areas where contamination is so bad

that it has hurt agricultural production and put the safety of
public water sources in jeopardy. In 2012, researchers with the University of California, Davis reported
that based on continuing trends, 80 percent of the people in the Tulare Lake Basin would be affected by

nitrate-contaminated groundwater by 2050.

Addressing legacy contamination

The program’s path began in 2006 when state officials invited people to discuss salt accumulation in the
valley and whether a solution could be fashioned as opposed to “watching the valley eventually become

a desert,” Chilcott said.

“That regulatory framework as it was set up to deal with nitrates in groundwater did not work well for
anyone. It didn’t fix the problem and it put agricultural and other industries that discharge nitrates to
groundwater in a position that they couldn’t comply with the regulations.”

~Farmer David Cory, chairman of the stakeholder-led Central Valley salinity coalition.

People quickly recognized that a broad-based stakeholder perspective was needed and “not just one
agency trying to frame a solution” to a problem that has existed for decades and has to be addressed

even while discharges continue, Chilcott said.

“We are trying to deal with a situation where we have legacy contamination on a broad scale both for

nitrate and salt,” she said.

Farmer David Cory, chairman of the stakeholder-led Central Valley Salinity Coalition, said something had

to be done about the problems in a manner that didn’t put farmers out of business.

“That [existing] regulatory framework as it was set up to deal with nitrates in groundwater did not work
well for anyone,” he said. “It didn’t fix the problem and it put agricultural and other industries that

discharge nitrates to groundwater in a position that they couldn’t comply with the regulations.”



SECTION_J3__ pacE o2

The program revises the regional water board’s two basin plans (Sacramento/San Joaquin and Tulare
Lake) that cover the Central Valley and set the water quality rules that are implemented through
permits, known as waste discharge requirements, that dischargers must follow. Actions taken depend
on the specifics of each field, though Cory noted that “the first step is to increase nitrogen-use

efficiency” through correct application rate, timing and source of fertilizer.

Cory, who grows cotton, alfalfa, wheat and rice on about 2,000 acres in the Los Banos area, said shutting
down farming operations to stanch nitrate discharges “wasn’t going to help the drinking water problem
and certainly was not going to help the small towns and the folks affected by nitrate.” That, he said, was

“a lose-lose situation.”

Cory said the program is the result of more than 10 years of extensive consultation and negotiation. “By
sitting in a room together at least one day a month for many, many years, we really got to understand

each other’s issues and tried to come up with a way that we could solve this problem, and all coexist,

he said.

Tess Dunham, an attorney with Somach Simmons & Dunn in Sacramento,
was one of the chief architects of the program. She represents agricultural
interests. (Source: CV-SALTS coalition)Tess Dunham, one of the chief

@ architects of the program, said the approach was the result of a

broad stakeholder process that sought a bottom-up means of dealing with

the problem.

“[Former regional board Executive Director] Pamela Creedon in her tenure basically directed the
stakeholders that either you all can come together and help put together the salt and nitrate
management pian or we are going into the regional board offices and write it ourselves and you may not
like what comes out at the other end,” said Dunham, an attorney with Somach Simmons & Dunn in

Sacramento.

‘Do no more harm’

The program emphasizes the ability of local and regional groups to develop site-specific management
plans that first provide safe drinking water and then implement cost-effective measures to balance salt
or nitrate loadings and begin restoring groundwater. Its primary focus for the first 10 years is to reduce
the level of nitrates affecting groundwater supplies used for drinking water and provide safe drinking
water for users currently affected, such as the hardest-hit high-priority parts of the Central Valley: the

Kaweah, Turlock, Chowchilla, Tule, Modesto and Kings groundwater basins and subbasins.

“There are basically three goals,” said Daniel Cozad, executive director of the coalition. “The first is to

provide safe drinking water. The second is what we call ‘reaching balance’ ... essentially a ‘do no more



secTion /22, paae o, 97

harm’ kind of a thought, and then ultimately, where possible and feasible, remediate the basin back to

»”

where it meets all of the water quality goals.

oL gﬂﬂ Nitrate hot spots in the Central Valley are highlighted in

%;'”:‘.:';:”::;':"‘m orange and red (Source: National Park Service , CV-SALTS

1 Upper Zone Ambient

""" 5 - 4 sl coalition)Chilcott, with the regional water board, said the
28-58mgt

— et program aims to “empower localized solutions” that

B s 0omp

work best for groundwater users, especially those with

impacted drinking water supplies.

“Obviously, short-term, what we anticipate is initially
\ probably buying bottled water, but we want that to
expand and, in some areas, it means doing wellhead

treatment,” she said.

Advocates for disadvantaged communities affected by
¥ nitrate-contaminated wells laud the program’s goals of
I " providing drinking water, achieving a salt/nitrate balance

and aquifer restoration. Although they were part of the

coalition, they believe a more aggressive approach is warranted.

“Unfortunately, only the provision of drinking water is actually required with the clear standards of
oversight by the regional water board, whereas the goals of balance and restoration are only required
where ‘reasonable, feasible and practical,’” said Debi Ores, Sacramento staff attorney with the
Community Water Center, a nonprofit environmental justice advocacy group based in the Tulare County

city of Visalia that was a coalition participant.

Community Water Center would like to see the program returned to the regional board to correct what

its advocates say are deficiencies and to strengthen the focus on returning affected areas back to health.
Tackling such a major problem as salt and nitrate required a staged, incremental approach, Cozad said.

Daniel Cozad, executive director of the CV-SALTS coalition, said the goals are to
provide drinking water to those who need it, stop the nitrate and salinity
problems from getting worse, and eventually to restore the groundwater basins.

(Source: CV-SALTS coalition)“It’s a comprehensive, long-term plan,” he said. “It

doesn’t change the world in a minute. It doesn’t even promise to do that. What it
does is to lay out for two constituents — salinity and nitrate — a path to compliance for people who

discharge as well as for improving groundwater quality.”



SECTION 22 PAGENO.Z2__ °

Cozad said the idea is to give people more time and flexibility to achieve nitrate compliance subject to

the oversight of the Central Valley regional water board.

“It is a trade-off,” he said. “We can’t regulate ourselves into getting clean water for people. No matter
what you do today, it will still take 20 to 50 years in many cases to get ciean water and that’s not a

solution anyone would say solves anything.”

Getting people clean water

Nicole Gleason, a Sacramento attorney representing agricultural interests in the development of the
program, said the program essentially recognizes that it’s not technically feasible for dischargers to
reduce their concentrations to the amounts regulators believe are necessary to meet water quality

standards.

“For the very first time, we are just going to focus on finding all the people that are drinking dirty water

and getting them clean water,” she said. “We have never done that before.”
Yet Gleason said she is concerned about some of the compliance aspects of the program.

“My stress ... is how are those folks going to figure out those management zones in a short period of
time and how are they going to ever feel comfortable proposing that they are going to take this action
on replacement water when they don’t even know if the people [farmers] they have invited to

participate in this proposal are going to accept,” she said.

“Unfortunately, only the provision of drinking water is actually required with the clear standards of
oversight by the regional water board, whereas the goals of balance and restoration are only required
where ‘reasonable, feasible and practical.”

~Debi Ores, Sacramento staff attorney with the Community Water Center, which participated in the

salinity coalition.

Meanwhile, the salinity component is more difficult to solve. Every time a field is irrigated, or
wastewater is discharged, water with higher salinity is left behind. This is a problem in the parts of the
Central Valley where little or no drainage exists. Salt accumulation has taken 250,000 acres out of

production and impaired another 1.5 million acres.

“If not addressed, economic impacts of salts and nitrates on the Valley are estimated to exceed $3

billion per year,” the CV-SALTS says.

Stakeholders know that the magnitude of the problem requires framing the response in the proper

context.



SECTION S pace NO.2 L

“’Solve’ is a strong word,” Cozad said. “l would say ‘manage’ is a much better word.” The program
provides for about 10 years to figure out all the details and put together governance and the
environmental plan and funding to deal with that. In the meantime, he said, it provides for people who
are managing their salt currently to be able to participate in the salt solution as opposed to having meet

mare rigid regulations.

Still work ahead

Drinking water providers at the San Joaquin Valley’s drainage outlet in the Delta worry the program

doesn’t adequately address water quality issues.

“No matter how difficult, complex, or expensive, and no matter how long or for what reasons the
discharge has been allowed to proceed, it is the discharger that the law ultimately requires to address,
manage, and solve those problems,” said a May 2018 letter from the Alameda County Flood Control and
Water Conservation District and the Contra Costa Water District to the regional water board. “The cost

of the water quality protection that discharges can cause should not be shifted to other parties.”

“We can’t regulate ourselves into getting clean water for people. No matter what you do today, it will
still take 20 to 50 years in many cases to get clean water and that’s not a solution anyone would say

solves anything.”

~Daniel Cozad, executive director of the Central Valley Salinity Alternatives for Long Term

Sustainability coalition.

Contra Costa Water District relies on the Delta as its sole water source and has invested more than $1
billion in the past two decades to manage its water quality and to achieve the delivery goal to its

customers, said Yuan Liu, associate water resources specialist.

“We are not sure how salty the Delta water would be due to the [program],” she said. “The regional
board claimed that they would maintain the water quality as it is today, but we don’t see a guarantee

for this.”

Cozad said the program makes no substantive changes to the existing water quality objectives for
surface or groundwaters and that the requirement for the Central Valley regional water board to
conduct anti-degradation analysis, evaluate downstream impacts and protect water quality remain in
place. The state’s anti-degradation policy requires “best practicable treatment or control” of discharges

to high-quality waters.

Cory, the Los Banos farmer, acknowledged that there’s still work ahead to solve the salt problem.



SECTION /-2 paGE NO. 2%

“We need to figure out where do we want these salts to go? We've got to acknowledge it and we can’t
just say, ‘You're not putting it here, you’re not putting it there.” You've got to look at it on a Central

Valley-wide basis,” he said. “That’s the next step, what | call CV-Salts 2.0, is looking at long-term salinity

planning.”

Members of the Central Valley salinity coalition meet to hash out
elements of the long-range plan to control saits and nitrates in the valley.

{(Source: CV-SALTS coalition )Now that the program has passed through

= the Central Valley regional water board, Gleason, the Sacramento

attorney, believes it is imperative for those affected by its provisions to take notice.

“Even though they tried their best to bring in agencies and to bring in the other dischargers, it’s still
going to catch people by surprise,” she said. “I think everybody that is subject to CV-SALTS should
anticipate that once they start on a path of providing replacement water, that they are never stopping.

It's going to be a very long time before the science catches up to this problem.”

Chilcott with the regional board said her agency had the option of pursuing its legal authority with
cleanup and abatement orders for salt and nitrate, but that going that route would have been a “recipe
for litigation.” Instead, the decision was made to facilitate local solutions that protect users, control

contamination and then work on restoration.

Cozad acknowledged that the program puts a burden on people, but said that it also provides the

opportunity for creative, local solutions to the discharge dilemma.

“That’s a lot different than just saying ‘You've got to comply with this and pay this much or do these
things,”” he said. “When you do risk assessment, it’s the risk you can control versus the risk you can’t

control, and if you can control it, you are willing to take a much bigger risk.”



secTioN [P, pace N0 3.

About Contact FAQ Donate

PAGE ATES STS NEWS !

CALENDAR ABOUT

daagoater, verbatin.

The unintended consequences of water
conservation

[ July 18,2018 & Maven ke Conferences and Seminars

Dr. Kurt Schwabe discusses the impact of water conservation on
recycled water; Yorba Linda Water District GM discusses effects
of 36% water conservation on his district

During the recent drought, conservation mandates were imposed across
the state with some areas mandated to cut their water use by one-third
or more. However, reducing water consumption by one-third means a
significant reduction in the flow of water through distribution systems,
creating challenges for water managers.

What were the unintended consequences of the water conservation
mandates? A panel at the Orange County Water Summit discussed the
unintended consequences and impacts of the conservation mandates,
First, Dr. Kurt Schwabe, adjunct fellow at the Public Policy Institute of
Californians Water Policy Center and professor of Environmentat
Economics and Policy at the UC Riverside, discussed the technical side
of the effects of indoor conservation on wastewater recycling; next, Marc
Marcantonio, general manager of the Yorba Linda Water District, spoke
about the impacts of a 36% conservation mandate on the system and
the community.

Support
MAVEN’S NOTEBOOK

MAKE A TAX-DEDUCTIBLE
DONATION TODAY!

(o nu NOW ONLINE

L= A reservoir of
‘ useful information
www.CAWaterLibrary.net

Enter your search term
here to search all posts;

L]

Browse posts, filtering by
category and/or tag:
| Al Categories - C
All Tags e
Submit



DR. KURT SCHWABE: Drought, water
conservation, and wastewater reuse:
Identification of some unintended

consequences
Dr. Kurt
P -] E:.’}l- ol ot
Schwabe UCRIVERSIDE =il
began his Drought, Water Conservation, and Wastewater Rense:
presentati ldentification of Some Unintended Consequences
on by " Thara is only one differance Kurt A, Schwahe
betieen & bad sconomist and & V'rofevar of Eavirenmontst Foonemses umd 1olby
presenting good ana, ihe bad economis! Schoul of Public Poticy
confines Fimself to tha wsibie effect, | wis ersity of € 'wlefurmia — Rirersde
aslide the good ecanons! fakes inte Adjuigr Folom, W arer Pedicy Cenier, Pubbic
aceaun! both the effect that can be Palicy Instltwmte of Californin
with a ssen and those aKedls that must be Adjunes Professer, Center for Fond and
foressan * [Bastiat, F. "Whal is Seen Rosnwrces, Umbversity of Adelaide
quote by and What is Not Seen” July, 1850]
Frederick
Bastiat
about
accounting
for the full

range of impacts of decisions: “There is only one difference between a
bad economist and a good one: the bad economist confines himself to
the visible effect; the good economist takes into account both the effect
that can be seen and those effects that must be foreseen

Dr. Schwabe said that the quote expresses the idea that good
economics and good cost-benefit analyses account for unintended
consequences; Ben Franklin said something similar in a letter he wrote
to a friend where he the idea of 'prudential algebra’, which was sort of a
cost-benefit analysis of that time,

“These unintended consequences are hot one-time events; they are
pervasive," he said. “/t was the genesis of environmental economics,
where back in the 60s we realized that market transactions, while good
for the market economy, often overlocked unintended consequences
and externalities, so we started to bring that into our models. It's not
one-time events. Every consumption and production activity creates an
externality or some type of residual which often leads to pollution, so it's
around us, it's everywhere, and it's pervasive.”

There are a number of unintended consequences with water
conservation, something that Dr. Schwabe and others have been
researching. Low flush toilets lead to more flushing, low flow
showerheads lead to longer showers, front load washers lead to more
rinse cycles, and so on, and Jevon's Paradox states that increases in
irrigation efficiency often lead to more water use, he pointed out. There
are also positive unintended consequences in that reducing water use
leads to a reduction in energy use.

That led Dr. Schwabe to the question, are there unintended
consequences from water conservation on recycling of wastewater?
*This is really important because conservation is a demand side

SECTION /- L _ PAGE NO.

Sign up for free email
service and enjoy the
convenience of receiving all
the Notebook's news in your
inbox. Daily emails arrive by
9am; Weekly emails are
delivered Fridays at 10am.
By subscribing to Maven's
Notebook, you'll always be
one of the first to know!

* indicates required
Email Address *

Subscribers

U Daily Emails: Full
Service (6 days + Breaking
News)

. 1 Daily Emails: Monday
through Friday only; no
breaking news

-J Weekly emails from
Maven's Notebook

Email Format
html
O text

Want your news sooner
than gam? Enter your
email address for this list
and you'll receive an
email instantly, every time
there's a new post!

Enter your email address

Signh me up!

__Tffe de—bél_ta. pn;m'ned




managem
Some “Unintended Consequences®™ with Water Conservation* ent
Low flush tptets lead o more strategy lo
i address
Low fiaw shower heads lead 1o drought
knger showers
" and water
6 smmmmmm) 107! l00d clothes washers lead scarcity,
te more cyeles
and water JuL
Somal norm messaging about : :
| D waler use reduces energy recy Clmg Is ';]H?
econsumphon by 1.2 to 2.2% kind of a
p— . Improvements in irigation supply e
WS IS technology cen lead to more . 20
a o water use [Jevor's Paradar) side, =y
eln = a7 Sews el augmentat JuL
fon 23
strategy.” he said. "Do they work in concert together or is there MON
sometimes friction between the two and should we be aware of that JuL
friction?' 24
TUE
He
: | Schex of
presented UCRIVERSIDE % i,
aslide Are there unintended consequences from water conservation on
. recyclingireuse of wastewater?
with two
' &
graphs. y
The graph &L ;
S~ 1 N
on the left S, D g’
shows the e ST o
i — s .0 ~ J 1
reduction * \X;— YA
. :_ . : . e - '!
in gallons / ™~
»
per capita . i JuL
per day &0
WhiCh Wiaker usage vi. Reuss in U3 1350-2016
Winkdi s 7 .0 {Tan Schraibe and oy IE&
shows a

significant reduction in water use because of the state mandate for
conservation. He noted that the nationwide trend has been a reduction
in per capita water use nationwide, while wastewater recycling has been
increasing as well, as shown in the graph on the right.

To answer the question, what are the impacts of conservation and
recycling strategies, Dr. Schwabe gave a simple analysis: If one person
in a water district consumes 100 gallons of water, 50% indoor and 50%
outdoor, and there is no wastewater recycling, their gallons per day is
100; their use of source water is also 100 gallons. If that water is
recycled, assuming 20% of indoor use is consumed and 80% is
wastewater, then although the overall gallons per day is still 100, the
gallons per day from source water drops to 60 units, or a negative 40%

secTioN 32 page No. 2.

Delta Protectior
B8 19 Jul @ 05:30 p

Delta Heritage F
820 Jul @ 09:00 a

WEBINAR: Calit
23 Jul @ 11:00 a

California Wate
&2 24 Jul @ All-day

State Water Res
24 Jul @ 09:30 a

Water and Almc
B24 Jul @ 11:30 al

BROWN BAG S
Decisions

B4 24 Jul @ 12:00 p
Flood-MAR - U:
8% 24 Jul @ 12:00 p

Delta Stewardsl|
8 26 Jul — 27 Jul ¢

USGS Lecture:
26 Jul @ 07:00 p

Please

reduction already in terms of the use of imported or source water. If a
conservation mandate imposed on society and both groups decide to

STAY

conserve and reduce their water use indoors by 20%, then the no
recycling situation leads to a 10% reduction in imported water use,

in f




whereas if
UCRIVERSIDE 7, [T
Indoor Conservation, Recycling, and Imported Water: wastewate
An Example of Two Hypothetical Cities ris
&umm~ . Regycled .
BoComerwionbiandete  0iindeorReducion  water recycled, it
Ko Recycli fecyckrg  Nofeoydey  Recrcheg. decreases lead
. il = by 20% only leads
Total Waze Dewmand 108 300 ] . o
Indaor Water Use E i L toa 34
Tundooe Waker e SO M - 5 __TOS likely .
Recyeied Water Mslabin 0 7] 3 "0 7 increnses reduction
Irported Wiater Purchases 100 & % 54 .
= in water
Efcierey AR Relatively
N 100 0 ineffectve use.
GRCD [lrpeirt Water ) 100 ] a n / at reducing
N Change s mport Watee e 0% an 10% mports ‘Soif
i_hrg;ﬂ_ ‘p\_he; mc_\ Eng_m;c is pn:sc:l, ;clu:el: ﬂ?l\.fc;x;n;)ﬂa;‘;c: n;;n:\‘s Joinh.
§depends an relats e Irectiom of mdonr versizs gusdoor conseration : recy cled
b Hindk camserration mlu;'m:d then ren;[w« mu} rm!bc mcb;w.!nrnmj s qwen mngﬂab el walter
decreases

by 20% because of the indoor water conservation, it's likely going to lead

to an increase in TDS and other conslituents in our wastewater, and it's
relatively ineffective in reducing imports,” Dr. Schwabe said. “So you
could say then that when recycling is present, the degree to which
conservation reduces imports or source water use depends on relative
fraction of indoor versus outdoor conservation. And therefore if indoor
conservation is adopted, then recycling may not be as drought proof as
people always claim it is’

What does
the :
evidence IEVA - RP1 inflows vs., wastewater produced per capita
5 in the 1IEVUA - RP1 service area (2011-2015)
SUQQeSt' 8 TTA - RIM Average Tiflaag Fimy
—5— TFLIA - R Wirsewasx Prixliset fror € i)
Dr, w‘@n ,1?;' ALY ',m‘u ’,ﬂn‘“
Schwabe st A i 1 ; faed
presented g2\l i~ TN it 1 B
E‘:”' | I’."}‘ ~ N Y ' I\ —Tv:aug
a graph & i I~ UH ¢ Jw:d
‘-L_i “;\ qT 4
from the 3~ Vi W N
< £ e 4 mg
Inland g e £
Empire 2 v ] ot
LR SRR (e P i ""'#'A-v‘”
Utilities ,;;av;}&_é}&‘@# i
Agencys (Tran st al 2017}
regional

recycling plant #1 (RP1). The left hand axis shows average inflows in
millions of gallon per day showing the trend. which has generalty been
decreasing over time from 2011 to 2015. He acknowledged that there
can be storms which can cause flows to go up, but the general trend is
less water going to the recycling plants. The red dots represent
wastewater produced in terms of gallons per capita per day; he noted
that there is also a trend of flows going down over time which is
consistent with the trend in water use,

SECTION PAGE NO. _%.L_

———.ﬂ

d consequences of water
conservation

July 18, 2018 (13)

RaL3TENs

JDAILY DI

A CALIFORNIAY
FROM ARQUR

he Valley floor is smklng
affecting ability to deliver
water; Regulators turn to
coalition for solutions to
salt and nitrates in Valley
groundwater; Bills
proposed to amend ESA;
House Democrats want to
keep Interior official from
working with former
clients; and more ..

July 13, 2018 (768)

4ﬂwmog<r>o

.
REERHI 118

DAILY DI

K51 -
O CALIFORNIA

FROM.ARQUN
hirsty vineyard, Big Ag
test landmark aquifer law;
Sinking Central Valley
floor is wrecking a key
irrigation canal; Rising
seas could cause
problems for internet
infrastructure; What Gavin
Newsom said - and didn't

H=HmMEU=<r»0



UCRIVERSIDE .52,

IEUA - RP1 Influent vs. Effluent

UCRIVERSIDE =22,

Fall 2 E. LR M I CH
— o

= 5 ; o
5 ~ P = i i
b | .’ ]z A | | i
E 3 "B 4 ! I ]
el Ry .-"ﬂ,' F mx; i }
! -1 !!,1‘_\. PO ¥ i i
gx| AN . E
il il l .
i : | |
‘.1:;.\9‘.&-.;,&&;-‘::};. SR — -

What about TDS concentrations? “My theoretical model suggests it
should be going up and it is, and it's going up for two reasons,” said Dr,
Schwabe. “First of all, as the drought hits, your water supply often
becomes a little more saline, and so your source waler increases in
salinity, but also if people engage in indoor water conservation, then the
waslewater becomes more concentrated, and | think that is what
explains the differences here over time from 2011 to 2015. The dotted
red line on the graph (above, left) is the NPDS permit, and four violations
occurred at this plant since 2011. So that is the anecdotal evidence'

. — What
UCRIVERSIDE 5 ey about

Analysis of Conservation Mandate and Drought on WWi'P

. g systematic
Influent Quality and Flow ¥
(Sudewaby, Analn. Jussby, Tran, Jants, Castidun, & Water Pulicy Center, PPICY evidence?
fiegrersion Anatysts
Cquations The next
Wl X oBXY, ¢ B0, 0 B, < Uy AR « A2 .
. . step was
e
19 e P
Lt n:rm .:::*r, T8 comcentration)  x3x plans Design flew tO gather
= data from
'« Deata 32 WWTP gver 48 months (2013.2016)
« Fixed Effects OLS " 21
Psliminary Resulls. wastewate
Mradsis had 8 -
Effiyeni-gominated Streams r treatment

* negative and statistically Stream Flow = gi¥1, Y2, )

signiffcant impact an aiivent foew Stream Quality = (Y3, Y2, )

+  positive and statistically « One moaitonng point 8o far
significantimpad on = {Tued 70T a 48-

month
period, including their monthly flow rates and their monthly TDS
qualities; that was related to the state mandate and the stress test after
the state mandate was rescinded while controlling for other factors that
would influence flow and TDS at the plant; they then did a regression
analysis.

plants over

"The results suggest that the mandate had a negative and statistically
significant impact on influent flow; it had a positive and statistically
significant impact on effluent TDS, similar to what the theory was
predicting and what we know as anecdotally he said.

The next stage of the study is to relate that to an effluent-dominated
stream and see how flow and quality are affected by changes at the
wastewater treatment plant; Dr. Schwabe said some streams will be
affected while others aren't. They are still gathering data for this part of

SECTION 5L pac N0, A2

July 17, 2018 (764)

0w sHdnCc-nIH

ecretary Laird sends
letter opposing riders to
exempt Cal Water Fix and
other water projects from
Jjudicial review

July 17 2018 (734)

o sHNC-0 I

eps. McNemey and
Garamendi offer
amendments to protect
California water rights and
ensure tunnels comply
with environmental laws

July 17, 2018 (628)
- D

AL LR AI

DAILY DI ¥

G

A" ¥ E
SACALIFORNIAN S
FrROM ArQuR T

What the $8.9 billion
water bond would buy;
Why aren't there more
controlled burmns?;
Preparing for extreme
weather by planting trees;
Trump's big
reorganization plan gets
second and third look;
and more ..

July 16, 2018 (617)

<r

20T A Ty
cawaterjobs.org

MTNSTNS
g W N

-



the study, so he isn't in a position to speak about any results just yet until

more data is collected.

At the
recycling
plant level,
if inflow is
going P ==
down and !‘/ : ‘\'1
constituen :
ts are
going up, ' =

how N o

should the . L; !
plant ) i
operator
respond?

Cost-Effective Treatment to Mitigate Poorer Quality Influent
During Drought: Regional Water Reuse Decision Support
Model-RWRM (Tran, Schwabe, & Jassby 2016; 2017)

Dr. Schwabe and his colleagues have developed a plant level model
that considers the rising levels of constituents; the model looked at
blending techniques to cost-effectively address the increase in salinity
and other constituents in the wastewater which can be blended into
‘purposed water' to meet the water quality requirements for the
particular type of demand, such as golf courses, turf, or orange groves.
“The model illustrates how you can do these blending techniques and

identify cost effective blending techniques,” he said.

UCRIVERSIDE 5525,

A censtrained aptimization groundwater model in Southern
California: Evaluation of Management Options under Uncertainty
{Tran, Schwabe, Ajami, and Jassby, 2018)

Possibip i i}

+ Impact of climate chenge
and eatural recharge
variability on groundwater

vRIRA sustamablity and

(Y% mansgameant

oy § S » Role of recycling on

" groundwater recharge

e + impact of demand-side

management on recycknp
wnd graundwater use

< linpaet an mureaps) braness

B and groundwater jecharge
(e, i from providing recycled
water o agrisulture

=> Ui ded

sbound

Example.
Bunker Hill Basin ™ & &

For
dealing
with the
flow, a
much
broader
model is
needed, so
Dr.
Schwabe
and
colleagues
have also
developed

a regional model. Currently, they've modeled San Bernadino Valley
Municipal Water District and the Bunker Hill basin, looking at natural
recharge and stochastic recharge over 50 years, as well as changes in
demand, changes in prices, and changes in recycling. “We can answer a
lot of interesting questions that get at this idea at understanding what
the unintended consequences are," Dr. Schwabe said. "/t's very complex,
and without a model like this, it's hard to understand how changes in the
price of agricultural wastewater affects.the whole system in terms of
recharge and in terms of the water quality going to the stream’

STmmﬁ%%mEmh '

Click here to visit Maven's
photo library on flickr,



Dr. Schwabe then gave his conclusions. “So / would summarize then by

saying that UCRIVERSIDE i,
recycling S

ummary
and y

. Recyeling and conservation ane integrat parts of Califarnia’s
conservati porifolio to address water scarcity and drought
onare Evidence suggests that conservation efforts and the drought —
. inciuding the siate mandate —impacted wastawater treatmant
integral influent flow and quality
parts of “unintended” conservation efforts may
California's « increase wastewater reatment costs
portfolio to « reduce recycling opportunities
address » impair surface water flows and qualities (especially in areas
with effiyert dominated sireams

water « Policy makers need to recognize the potential dependence of
scarcity recycling on conservation, particular indoor water conservation
and
drought.

The evidence does suggest that the conservation efforts in the drought
and the state mandate impacted wastewater treatment influent and
quality; these unintended conservation efforts may increase wastewater
treatment costs, reduce recycling opportunities, and impair surface
waler flows and qualities, especially in effluent dominated streams.
Basically it suggests that there's an argument to be made that
policymakers need to recognize the potential dependence of recycling,
particularly when the conservation is indoors’

MARC MARCANTONIO: The effect of 36% water
conservation mandate on Yorba Linda

Marc
Marcantoni
oisthe
General
Manager
of the
Yorba
Linda
Water
District.
The District provides water and wastewater service to about 80,000
people in the cities of Yorba Linda, Placentia, Anaheim, Brea, and
unincorporated Orange County. The area was originally an agricultural
community which has transitioned into the sixth richest city of California
with large residential lots, hobby farms, and horse and view properties.
The community has a large amount of recreational properties; the two
largest customers are the city of Yorba Linda and the school district.
The district is adjacent to the wildlands of Chino Hills State Park with
more than 16,000 homes bordering the state park.

“1 bring out these points to illustrate that Yorba Linda Water District has .
very high irrigation need, especially since rainfall is extremely limited in

SECTION 22— pace No, 241



our area," he said.

The
District has
11 wells,
four

connections with Metropolitan for imported water, 14 underground
reservoirs totaling 54 million gallons, and 12 booster pump stations for
20 different pressure zones, due to the steep terrain present in the area.
He noted that the different colors on the service area map represent
different elevations throughout the system. “Each one of those is a
different pressure zone, which makes managing the system somewhat
unique," he said.

The District has almost completed a project to replace and expand the
40-year old Fairmont booster pump station; completion of the project
will mean that the District will now be capable of pumping both
groundwater and imported water to their entire service area, giving them
two completely redundant sources of supply should any one be lost.

Mr.
Marcantoni
o then
reviewed
key points

v

EMERGENCY Drought Regulation & Impacts

©,~.0 -.@

AREIDNE

from the
most
; . recent
gt drought.
“When the
Governor
asked for a voluntary 20% reduction in 2014, our customers exceeded
that goal’ he said. “When the emergency was declared in 2015, Yorba
Linda Water District was required to reduce our consumption from 2013
levels by 36%, the highest in the slate. While nobody thought we could
do it, our customers complied and exceeded the 36% requirement,
When reason prevailed and the stress test was implemented, Yorba
Linda was shown fo be drought resilient, and our requirement was
reduced to o’

He pointed out that their customers have been becoming more efficient,
reducing their usage over the past 5 years from 35 million gallons a day
down to 20 million gallons per'day, despite more populétion and more
water connections.

SECTION |-

Lt

PAGE NO. 2



The District immediately realized many unintended consequences of the
emergency drought regulation and water conservation, Mr. Marcantonio
said. He noted that the 100% of their wastewater is reused, purifying it
for potable use and returned to the aquifer for reuse and the stormwater
system routes runoff to settling ponds which recharges groundwater, as
does the water used for irrigation.

i

"The soils in our area our extremely well drained, which is why Orange
County Water District locates their settling basins adjacent to us and
why our wells are located where they are,” he said. *Virtually all of our
water is reused locally, with the exception of that which is lost to
evapotranspiration and reused through the hydrologic cycle. | would
contend that water is a local issue, unique to every area, so water K
conservation solutions should follow and also be local. Due to the

recent emergency drought declaration, our mandate of 36% of water \
reduction did not prevent water waste in our district, nor did it provide a
single glass of water to East Porterville'

Public health and public safety is more of a concern than water supply
for him, he said, and the District's terrain along with the community's
experiences have led to their water system having some unique issues.

One of those issues is providing sufficient fire flow for domestic and
commetcial building fires, as well as the added challenge of being
adjacent to the state park and having to deal with wildland fires. He said
generally, up to 60 to 70% of any water district's costs can be for
supporting the fire flow requirements of the city or county authority
having jurisdiction.

Public Safety -Fire

He presented photos of the 2008 Freeway Complex Fire which occurred
in their service area, noting that the speed of the fire was overwhelming
and the intensity was devastating. “Our average day at peak demand is
20 million gallons a day, but during this fire, it increased to 45 million
gallons a day." he said.

The fire burned over 30,000 acres and Q0% of the Chino Hills State Park;
112 homes in Yorba Linda destroyed and 314 residences damaged or
destroyed in the cities of Yorba Linda, Brea, and Anaheim. “This resulted
in an inverse condemnation judgement of $69 million against Yorba
Linda Water District for failure to protect, and continues to instill fear in
our community, especially when water is restricted,” he said. *We all
know fear is a powerful motivator, which resulted in the public insisting
that we invest in infrastructure that is oversized.

SECTION J 2 PAGE No._ﬁl_@_



They have

several 2008 Freeway Complex Fire
reservoirs
that are
oversized,
including
one that
serves
only 112
homes and
should be
about a half a million gallons but instead was built to hold 2 million
gallons.

This
Unintended creates a
Consequence:
Public Health CORCEH
EWiher Quality) for water
R .
( '. - . \ quality and
. | . v _‘- J public
\_/ e A - G f
i e health that
is
magnified
& during
water

conservation periods as the key to maintaining water quality in the
distribution system is circulation and consumption, Mr. Marcantonio
said. With less water flowing through the system, pathogens and
unhealthy chemicals may accumulate and be less diluted throughout
the distribution system, so if water consumption decreases, flushing of
the distribution system must be increased to maintain water quality.

The water quality starts out as being excellent, but long detention times
in mains and reservoirs can lead to stagnation. Where distribution
systems involve rugged terrain, including hills, ridges, and valleys, there
are many places where water does not get circulated or consumed, he
explained. One-way water mains, oversized reservoirs, oversized pipes
and pumps all contribute to water stagnation, especially during
conservation and even with water use efficiency measures.

*Water quality depends on maintaining a good disinfectant residual to
these extremities of your distribution system and to prevent nitrification
and disinfection byproducts and the only way to ensure this is the
flushing of all dead ends," Mr. Marcantonio said.

Yorba Linda Water District disinfects their groundwater with free chlorine
and the import water is disinfected with chloramines; with decreased
water use, they must carefully monitor the water quality in the
reservoirs, especially to prevent nitrification in reservoirs filled with
chloraminated water.

SECTION /2 _ pagk No.

f]



The red dots on the map illustrate over 5000 dead ends, most of which

SECTION =

v s

are fire
hydrants
and mains
that are
not looped
due to
terrain
issues. “All
must be
routinely
flushed to
maintain water quality’ he said. “The less water consumed by
custorners, the more we must flush!

There were financial consequences at well. He pointed out that public
and private water districts provide a service; their expenses are directly
related to the service of water treatment, storage, pumping, and
delivery. These expenses include operations, and the repair and
replacement of infrastructure.

‘We provide fire service, but few districts list the charge on customer
bills for fire flow service and most customers simply do not realize that
they pay for service,” he said. “As an industry, we don't help things by
charging customers as if we're selling them water as a commodity, like a
retail store might sell products”

Water
providers
typically
charge a
base fee
anda
consumpti

Unintendexd

on charge:
because
they
reused

their water prior to the drought emergency, most of the costs were
recovered with the consumption charge, thereby keeping the basic
service charge artificially low. *This financial model worked well for the
district for over 100 years, but it failed when the state took the
unprecedented action to mandate a 36% rationing of our water use or
face fines up to $10,000 per day!" he said. "The sudden loss of
consumption revenue put Yorba Linda Water District upside down on
our bond debt covenant ratio, requiring a dramatic increase in the basic
service charge. In our case, the unintended consequence was that
water bills increased especially for those with low water use, since water
sales were reduced 36% '

_reeno. A%



The district also lost revenue that was planned for water use efficiency
projects. Their distribution system was designed and built over many
years, and optimized to provide high volumes of water for fire
suppression. Water use efficiency is good, whereas water conservation
can strand expensive infrastructure assets, he said.

Perhaps

the Unintended

hardest Consequence:
— W s Fablic Trust

unintende N 8&}3{’ m‘fé Hmeie

d — e B Gservice | R

consequence was the damaging of public trust. “The newspapers in
Northern California called Yorba Linda profligate and touted our
relatively high water use as being wasteful and entitled, but never once
mentioned that we are the model agency for water reuse he said.
*Locally we went through stages of public denial a drought even existed,
then accusations of gouging, harassment, death threats to the staff, and
humiliation on public talk shows. We were recipients of a referendum
movement to overturn a valid Prop 218 rate increase that the customers
approved. We were the recipients of a lawsuit and a recall election and
even more'

*Because public water agencies are critical to life, public trust is
imperative Mr. Marcantonio said. “Believe me, it's very easy to lose and
very difficult to restore’

“Soin

our own

r.,:_,-} victims of

conclusion
- we are
success,
he said.
“Our
customers
wake up
every
morning, flush their toilets, and the waste disappears magically. They
turn the faucet handle and safe drinking water always comes out. This
reliability of service has made inconsequential life's most critical
elements. We need to make a paradigm shift and educate the public
how difficult and expensive it is to provide safe and reliable drinking
water. We need to tell our story. We need to promote our business as a

service, instead of a commodity’

secmion F2=_maaevo.



“Confusing conservation with efficiency is like confusing motion with
progress. As water providers, our primary mission is public safety and
public health. We can't ignore this for the sake of conservation or
efficiency!”

Audience question. Regarding the Freeway Complex Fire, how did they
decide that you were responsible, and what about the other
communities peripheral to the Chino Hills there, why weren't they in the
same situation you were?

“I'm not an attorney and so my opinions that | will give you on that are
from my observations and education,” Mr. Marcantonio said, noting that
he wasn't even here during the Freeway Complex Fire. *Ultimately, if you
boil it down to one thing, we were responsible to repay for a small group
of homes because in that particular area, the fire hydrants lost water. In
all the other areas of our district, even where all the other homes were
lost, the system didn't fail. Water was still available in the fire hydrants. It
Just overwhelmed the infrastructure’s capability”

*We all build for fire flow and that why all of our systems are as large as
they are: it's not for drinking water, it's for our fire fighting mission. It's
designed for domestic fires and commercial fires, not wildfires.
Nobody's system can really handle that type of a fire. But a small group
of homes burned because the fire hydrants ran out of water, because
the fire burned the pump station down and shorted the pump and the
heat deprived the air of oxygen, so the backup gas generator couldn't
operate because of being starved for oxygen - those hydrants didn't
have water, and the court decided that because we're a public entity, we
took the homeowners use of those facilities away and they needed to
be compensated for that. In the areas where water continued to flow,
we weren't found liable’

(Visited 357 times, 13 visits today)
Share this:
Tweet | shares]  [share] ¢ submit
& Email

® y

Leave a Reply

Enter your comment here...

MAVEN Feed

SECTION -6

IR W e )

0
PAGE NO.2D_Y



Eureka Times-Standard (http://www.times-standard.com)

SECTION {2 PAGE no2l

Rail with trail: a great idea with unintended consequences

By Bruce Silvey
Friday, July 20, 2018

Most people in our county would love to have an excursion train sharing the right-of-way around Humboldt Bay with the yet to be completed
Humboldt Bay Trail. The cities of Arcata and Eureka built their amazing sections of the Bay Trail to incorporate the rails, and this possibility, at
considerable extra expense. The county of Humboldt will build the remaining four miles in the same way.

State Sen. Mike McGuire’s bill — Senate Bill 1029, the Great Redwood Trail Act, which passed the State Senate and is currently working its way
through the Assembly — is not a threat to the rails around the bay. The true problem is the condition of the rails and the cost to bring them up to
standard to support a train. Sen. McGuire’s office estimates that cost to be $17 million to $20 million just around the bay, and a million dollars a mile
for every mile south of Eureka to South Fork.

No credible source believes that there is state funding of that magnitude to support an excursion train. Also, despite the best efforts of the North Coast
Railroad Authority, in the 20 years the corridor has been dormant the NCRA has been unable to find a rail operator willing to make that type of
investment. If a rail operator ever did find a financially viable enterprise in Humboldt County, they could apply to the Surface Transportation Board to
reconvert any part of the rail-banked line back to active railroad.

Besides the huge costs to repair the rails, building rail-with-trail (where old rails are left in place and the trail is built next to them) has been estimated
to cost 40 percent more than rail-to-trail (where the rails are removed and the trail utilizes the existing rail bed). This extra cost, on the prayer that
someone will eventually invest the millions to repair the rails, could sink the Great Redwood Trail and its real economic and recreational opportunities
for our communities.

I recently attended a meeting of the Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District. It is the district’s mandate to support commerce,
recreation, and conservation of the bay. At their regularly scheduled meeting on May 24, district commissioners reviewed SB 1029-McGuire. After a
discussion of all the potential uses of rail around the bay, the commissioners overwhelmingly agreed that there were no economically viable
possibilities in the foreseeable future. One commissioner observed that attempting to strap SB 1029 with the extra costs of building rail-with-trail could
kill the trail for no achievable purpose, and leave the bay without a major recreational opportunity. The commissioners voted to support the bill as
written.

That observation speaks to the potential unintended consequences of continuing to push for rail-with-trail in Sacramento. SB 1029 has a very good
chance of being passed by the Legislature and being signed by the governor, but the funding to make it happen has to be allocated by the governor’s
office. The NCRA was created by legislation, but was never funded. That, plus Mother Nature and changes in our economy, has led to an NCRA debt
in excess of $8 million and an incredible, but neglected, transportation corridor that is now a liability instead of an economic driver for the North
Coast.

I believe that it is time for the North Coast to stop hoping for a miracle to save the trains, and to support the miracle and beauty of this right-of-way
becoming a world-class trail for everyone to enjoy. Whether it is a short walk with a baby stroller along the bay, a student commuting to CR, ora
multi-day ride by visitors who come from around the country and the world to enjoy the recreation and the sights, we will all benefit.

The competition for state funding is fierce. The more the community stands divided, or insists on funding that is not available, the more likely we will
end up with what we have had for 20 years, a deteriorating corridor that is of no use to anyone. Please act now and call Gov. Brown’s office to say you
support SB 1029 and request that the governor support it with the necessary funding. Phone 916-445-2841, fax 916-558-3160. Thanks.

Bruce Silvey is on the Board of Directors of the Humboldt Trails Council and resides in Kneeland.

URL: htip:/fwww.tl dard /opinfon/20180720/rall-with-trafl-a-grest-ides-with-unintended-consequences

© 2018 Eureka Times-Standard (http://www.limes-standard.com)



SECTION["2—, PaE N0

Eo
-Woo s £q pasoidde uay
Pue supfusp 4q papuoosss

SEM Yomm “zana( 9] puas |
01 uonow - apem meIg .

Saany 19qWow QAo
"848 Joya] s

[® 832 pay Juewodun Ajje

-21 S1I2ALY pepy s ‘IMradag

“UDPA ut ajdoad 103 asned,”

9RLM1 U Tan5q oA “Jeary
PEIL 2@ page Aenuajod
P[noo jey Jusmdopasp yo
pupy Aue 10 ‘Yuawdoeasp e
-Ensnput yo pupy swos ynoqe
Supfuny exnod p ‘foy,, s10s
-1azedng jo preog 211 01 sTRU
315 Jou0] a pres 1axpny,

« 31 UL UIIMS 0] Jrem

. M pUE Y U] ST 0} Juem am

130 100 Yuup 0 yrem aMm pe
-1qjod 31 Juem ,o0p am pue 1
[ oM pur AWOSOME S| ToAry
PEI 9@ 120y 57 230y Ay ogm
91doad jo anpea {ejusurepuny
YL, ‘Pres Jpn, , ‘sangea s A
-lURWmWo? 1mo jo uonospai v
Afeas sem anss; 3} Jano L
=m0 Ayunurmen sy sem Teq
WOy Yool | jeym jng Guam
puesures m:gbmﬂh.uuouug
S[04M am jo anssy sy,
*Asrasonuod T9SB1J-J921a ]
O} W0y Jans] oy aowerstp
01 1y8nos ospe ypong,
« PRIIIUOO [fe 51 Jayem 3y,
‘™ meq Ay wr 1syem pue
W ur pavid @m qm peq
1noi inoqe Julp  ‘Iaary
PEIN 91 ay)| oA © Jnoqe
AR nog, JeAu a1y yepun
empunoid  pue  iagem
BNS UIIMIDG UBIAYIp
°4 uo wy payBram 4sidojo
714 ssuegsy e oxony
« ¥ 107 0 “1o1307 ST AjLIM
O] JUem nof J “a9m9 sAn3
nok i jo pupy sy sy,
"Pres 0op ,‘Aes o} sus 107 dn
S I [99) A[fearyuop T,
00 payse
Y  d123em 2y 30§ suonoey
-0xd Jueagrugis 521373 1993

——

nof o(,, “19aRy PRI 913 J0
so8yd U suonwazoud enue;
-qus. Apeaie are azoyy 'Y
.9PBW 3q pPmMod juawmSn
UE e pres pioydaqg
’ R.M:g ENUM’M@M
® 1snf 4jeaz s31 -Suppim
fes 1usaop Afyess L, "panug
-uoo poydeys | ‘gng-py
® 1snf 5T [19139f o) jusu
“Wod st ‘Afjenuessy,,
) E.vqma h.E HH
SUIES 31 Ul 3U0 [fe 5 3], pre:
“pue up padum( piaydayg
«“8umroddns ynoqy
SupiTer am axe 10 “TesB1-100
-1 Bugseqar om ary, st
0] oopy paydwroxd STL,
‘[oq09[e spess
P00} 01 payuny oq prom
Kioey ' monoenxa siqeu
~UB2 31} Je pasn waaq aaey
PINoM e seomwemp ot
ey} pareyumeo proydayg
*A&10308] UOTORY
X siqeuues pasodoxd arp
40 11 o 03 Burnagyaz ‘pres
00M ,'3YE} pmogs jotnstp
93 [} | ue ysu 1eysm
B SEM Jer) oW 0} ‘Ys| aAn
BRI 9 Inoqe  Suppe
31 am USYM 05 puy,
‘Tesodoad 1aseg-s0010y oty
PUE 191eM somsip ap jo
4a1es a1 noqe oopy payse
°H ‘19foxd 1eseig-Te010py
27 03 pxeSa1 ym sysoddo
91 01 50661 ay woy Juaw
N8 sy paSuepy e
o Aym aropdxe 01 juem
0F  pawess  piaydogg
“UOII 01§ JO 3500
® e fimoey uononpey An
“PIqI, Groqyedsyy 1 pAory
o1 "Pa[[ed mou s yeym Juy
“PERg dn pepua pue umop:
PYORq PINsIp 1srem o

j 8q 01 pareadde praydeyg

‘“Ajerewmn() “Aressoosu jom

sem Jueld wonenmy sy 10§
-3191 “J9IBM 30ELMS wom
SJUINYPUI P2IIP ® INOIM
S[PmM  Iajempunold  woy
QuIEd I9jem Iy Jery) pandre
S[eIoggo JotsIp suwios ‘swy
3@ 1v "Aipiqimy sonpax o
juerd wopenyy e PImMq o
WLOSlp 9| pajuem Aels
Yy, ‘sULAD WI0)S LABay
Suunp isyem  Suppuup
SPWSsp ag ur Appiqim
Y817 1noqe pawrsouco swres

| -3q (SHQ) SoWlag sy

jo wounredeq erwIonpE)

! om qmim sEepmo. usym
j ‘80661 a3 wr aoerd Yooy

“Tajem punols 1o Jajem
3JE1INS SBAGATY PR aq3 ap

-un sfem s woyy sdumd 3 -

19IEM ) PILISSER WLOSTp
oM O JoegM Jnoqe

-00M  papanb  pideyg

“ISAIT 3y pue jomsIp ey
moqe suogsenb tomsue oy
S0UEpUSYIE U] SeM 00 0L
S wey Edonmpy Aeg
IP[oqun] 51 0} SAYEIUASAT
~da1 pLasI L o foom
weYs Joj suomsenb pey
“Yoofoxd 135EI-19000] At
Jo Joaey wi pajoa pue uwols
-SImuwe) Surumed Auno)
POqUNY 3y} UO sIAlss
oym ‘progdeyg usg Jaqureur

OVIDPPIN ‘TaAsmoy
: . L Mou st ySe Sw
-PIoMm o) {1 Sqerlofmon
Aarey w1, Surdes ‘tausy o
3oy 110ddns padjoA supjuap

WASY IqiuenI JYADPIN
‘PRI 24y s199g7e Jeyy
uoIsIp Aue Suppew axojaq
«39IMY YU, o3 s1os1atadns
Sjuem ay. jeyy Suippe ‘pres
pPnL ATy pEW s
Inoqe areo op Aear afuaks|
-UDIOJA] UT 3M Je)) stosiarad
“Ns KJunod a1 03 uLIyyea: 0)
judwaje)s e Af[eolseq . sem

[enay ap] u g g,
« IMOSA IumBItiod
9[qesor[dainy sty Jo Juam

-3UBU> puR UoPeAiasard
‘uonoaoad ey azntioud oy
stosiatedns Qo ypjogq
-WInE .97 23in 9p4 “eare

N0 Jo Lineaq [eInyen St 0}

Sppe pue Awoysy e suioddns
‘sapruniioddo [euonease:
sopord ‘rayem  Sunyuup
JO 0ImMOs IO Se $9Alas 1
-ARY PE 24, -souelroduny
Isounm jJo aq 0} J9ATY pepy
3@ Jo JUeWsdURYUS puE
wonoayord o sapisuoo
SJUepIseI - smadamnpepy
120 JGBIYAY 0) Jwem op,
‘Wed Uy ‘sayers ‘soon £q
paredesd  ‘zoya| ayj,
~o o LY NOY

e} sjusumsBre Burualeyen

Al 1] oM pue swosame:st, I2ALI YT, | I9AIlY pPen

ZV < YIAI QVIN
‘Pres 19300, ,‘asnoy Lw woay
9191 [BM UED 9 *3WR 0] awyy Woay
1aARy PEIN 243 Wl WiMs PRy A, “qsy
01 aoe(d remdod e st pue yem Sy
-{ULIp § AITMWIos sy 3o 32inos ap
St ‘Mo pajuted ssyony, ‘reaut ey,
"Para)
-01d 11 S)TRM UMO] BY Mo puE Iaany
PEW 91} jo aduenodun oy
Inoqe JuAUIAMS [eiousd -
e 0] IBNMUWOD 3i pa
-iues oY pres 1oyony, Sfex)
QU JYAOW Ing
“Tady w wefod”
s paddorp yaserq-eosepy
‘UMINEH 310 Aq103(01d ot
Jo Teaoxdde suorssiunmo)
Jumuelq o1y jo esdde we

hmv_u:.._ Sip1y

pue vonysoddo Sumoss Suwey -1ees
Si wqres esodoxd Aropey am wo
ut ySem Jou pip U Yy os
‘suoneondde Jmisd [eeds uo Sm
SJUSUITIOD WIoY] DPIWWOD oy )
“qmoid smeidq sOVpDPW oy,
“ISHInD) pue vy ‘epuey
"E)EDIY ‘3[BpusD ‘axer] anjg “yooiq

~~PPY - S[pAfSUDPW 0] senddns oy

“EM J[esa[ogm auy ST .yoIgM
(amman) wwsiq 191eM
Edprmp feg poqumy
9 WO ISAL I SsOIOE
Pa1R0o] weaq saey pmom
Kiopg oqy, oEpualy ur
13ATY PRI JO sAuEq 91 Uo
£10108) * wonpeNXe sIqBU
-UBD B PIING 0] JoseL]-Iao
-IBW Aq reof stp araes

Tesodoad Eﬂu>o..m=8 . Aq “ued ug
‘paxinds sem 1oxs] oy 10y vap] gy
“JULSqE SeM YLIsurary
UBA 0RO JOqWIIN 3OO SpTM
‘I9R9] a3 uo Sugoa woy paureisqe
BUUTIZI03) eIeqreqg pue pasydoyg
uag siaquiew s3Iy sa3pa usa
“ISSM PUE WIS[INoS 5,umo) 3y Suope
Aem syl soxeus gomm “IsAu ay jo
somenodan ey Suissans SI0SIATSd
-Ns 03 1a39] ¥ urpuss yo 10aef W Sz
AMp 1o 0-S pajoa SRIIIIED Yy,
"I9ATY PEJY 9} 30uryua
pue aAresald ‘wate1d o stosatadng
Jo preog o Fwim st (Gyppop) o3
~Hunuoy) A10s1apy Tedwrumyy syjiadeq
“UDIPI YL - FTTIAXTINDIOIN

wEyIng Yoer

19AIY PR 343 3333044 DVIANIN

m.._.d;muZH.MUS o

..ﬂ~wm3<
Ua U | LMy pow



CORRESPONDENCE



|
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DS 0s&%s._meeno. [ __

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO BOx 95 » EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-2918

FAax707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EMAIL OFFICE@HBMWD.COM
Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHERI WOO, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER

BARBARA HECATHORN, DIRECTOR

MICHELLE FULLER, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER July 25,2018
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

Mark Andre, City of Arcata

Mandy Mager, City of Blue Lake

Brian Gerving and Wendy Howard, City of Eureka
Rick Hanger, Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD

Dave Hull, Humboldt CSD

Chris Drop, Manila CSD

Greg Orsini, McKinleyville CSD

Dear Municipal Customers:

This month, Humboldt Bay Municipal Water Districts’ Board of Directors approved the FY 2018/19 budget. Attached for
your information are the following items related to the approved budget.

Attachment 1 presents the estimated wholesale water charges for each customer. These are gross charges based on the
approved FY2018/2019 budget plan.

Attachment 2 presents the Price Factor 2 (PF2) reconciliation from FY2017/2018, in accordance with Section 7.2.4 or
Ordinance 16. The total PF2 credit is $37,888.85.

This credit results from non-water revenues (such as our share of 1% property taxes, interest earnings and miscellaneous
receipts) coming in higher than budgeted, and expenditures coming in lower than budgeted thus offsetting our costs to
you. The impact of the PF2 credit/charge on individual agencies is calculated based on the following factors: Rolling
Five-Year Average, Peak Rate Allocation, and Assessed Valuations (from Humboldt County).

This total credit/charge will be applied to your FY2018/19 monthly billings.

Attachment 3 presents your estimated net wholesale water charges after this PF2 credit/charge has been applied.

If you have any questions, please call me.

Sincerely,

;.7(({/ /é[é /4&//‘{&/ A

John Friedenbach
General Manager




Attachment 1

SECTION G [ __ PAGENO.. 2=

%9'€1 } TEE'0E8S £2T900°L$ 168°691°0% J[ESIAOYM [EIOL
%9'€1 | The‘oess €22°900°L$ 188°691°9$ STUN [E)0
%L'T1 ' Y06°LS 891°0LS ¥9T°79% dsD e[uen
%T'ST } TS6°TTS$ T6EVLIS 0Py 1SS dso Yooiqp[aig
%L €l i ESP8TIS 6¥Z°990°1$ 96L°LE6S dsD S[MALSTUrON
%8S t T99°9K1$ €EETLOTS 1L9°5T6$ dso wpoquiny
%T11 L 06£°81$ LOS‘Z8T$ RIS oxeT anig
%€l L 99006 1§ vrO‘T1ZE TS 8L6Y91‘1$ ejeory
%6'C1 | 16°6SES 6TT611°ES SIE'€9LTS ejoIny
01§~ 0$ 01$ :[erysnpuy (g3
H019) 0$ 018 IS1T J0qTery/ TN ding
% : $ 3e3png 193png
uospredwo)) 61/8107 8T/L10T

(UOLEIIOU0ISY T 10}0R4 S0LIJ 16D X -IOLI] JO9JIY 10U Op YoTyMm sag1ey)) ssoin)
393png paydopy uo paseq sddaey)) Jowojsn,) I[BSI[OYAA JO Adewiing
193png 61/8102

PLYSIQ 1d)epp [edPIUN Aeg Jpjoqunyy




\
1
0
/1
(o]
=z 93eq Aq panpgasy
¢ @
g Vet |
]
m..w {9LeL) {9c:zr0vT) 6rezz'st)  (zorsse) {92°529) v9°059 {08€v8'2) (13puN)I2A0 : 1813 QLA SA jeNDIY
w S8'888°LE L'EL 9L°ZT0'PT 6L°LTT'ST 29°S5L 9£°529 {r9-059) 0B'ErR'L BJUIBHIP 1L]4 [2I0) AJ SA jendY
Sm 00'LL8'VIL'Y  OV'ZRE'9Y  95°ZET'EOL TE'9EY'SPL  09°666'0ZT 08'60Z'VTT'Z  8TW6T'9CT $0'ZZE'898 1830) YIuo - 338 O} Jea [ ISy
=
9 0U'L8VTLY  OV'Z8E9Y 95 CET'€0L Te9E9'SP.  09'666'0C1  0BGOCPITZ . 8CTPELOC1 v0°ZTE'898 12301
2
M 00°248veL'y SL'GEL'E6E  0T'S9B'E  BE'UES'SS 9€'9ET'79 0E'E80°0T ST'Y8T'9LT 6T'915°01 L1'09€°2L gi-unp
STLET'IEE'Y SL'GEL'E6E  OT'S9B'E  BE'P6S'SS 9E'9ET'Z9 OE"E80'0T ST'YRT'9LT 6T'91S'01 LT'09E'2L 8i-Aewy
05'L6€E'LE6'E SL'6EL'E6E  OZ'S9B'E  SE'VES'BS 9E'9ET?9 0E°E80°0T ST'P8T'9LY 61°91S'0T LT'09E'2L 81-Jdy
SL'ISY'EVS'E SL'GEL'E6E  OT'S9B'E  BE'PES'SS 9E°9ET'T9 0E'E80'0T ST'PRT'9LT 6T'9TS0T LT'098'2L BT-aeN
00°STE'6YT'E SL°6EL'EEE 0Z's9g's 8E'¥ES'RE 9E'9ET'79 0E'£80°0T ST'YET'9LT 6T°9TS'0T LT'09E'TL 81-934
ST'BLT'ISL'T SLGEL'E6E  07'S9B'E  BE'PES'SS 9€'9€T'29 OE"E80°0T ST'PRT'9LT 61°9TS'0T LT'09E'TL 81-uef
0S"8EV'Z9E'2 SLUGEL'EEE  OZ'S9B'E  BE'PES'ES 9E'9ET 29 Q£°€80°0T ST'PST'9LT 6I°9TS'01 LT'098'2L L1930
SL'869'896'T SLUGEL'S6E  OT'S9B'E  BE'PES'SS 9€'9ET'29 O0£'E80°0T ST'H8T'9LT 61°9TS'0T LT'09E'TL LT-AON
00'6S6'vLS'T SL'6EL'E6E  0Z'S9B'E BE'PES'SS 9€'9ET'29 0g'E80’0T ST'PRT'9LT 61'915°0T LT'09E'TL L1190
STETZ'IST'T SL'GEL'E6E  O'S9B'E  BE'VES'SS 9€'9ET'T9 0£°€80°0T ST'Y8T'9LT 61'9TS'0T LT'09E'ZL L1-dag
05°6LY'28L SL'6EL'EEE  O'S9B'E  BE'VES'SS 9E'9ET'T9 OE"E80°0T STP8T'9LT 6T°915°01 LT'09E°2L L1480y
SL'6EL'E6E SUGEL'E6E  OZ'S9B'E  BE'WES'SS 9E'9ET'29 OE'E€80°0T ST'vRT'9LT 61°915'0T LT'09€'2L £1-nr
1y
ST'R86'989'Y ¥9'BOE9F  OB'6GIT 689 €S'80F0EL  8E'EVZ'OCT YO'vBS'ETT'Z T6'vvE'OZT vT'8Lv'008 |exo)]
S8'888'4€ ST'886'989'Y 9S'LTT'STO'T  €T'249'6  9B'£50'29T TSTUE'ELT  SYEOT'9L 0Z'TLY'GEY 65°90¥'ST T8'SE0'6BT gi-unp
99°992'699 65'0L8'T99°E  {€1°SO0'6E) SO'ETS (Te7se'62) loT'zee'ee)  (96766W) TSTET'6L SO'0EL'E (96'052'6) gi-Aew
8L7TTS'9ET TL'SLB'00LE VE'EGT VOV 05'T98'E £6'VV6'E9 9S'SLE'LY 26'102'0T TEVPR'ELT 76'680°0T 8T'SLB'PL 81-udy
LE'SL6'9YT 8€'289'96Z'c 8€'9TT'LBE  9EVOL'E  0S'88T'T9 LS'ESY'Y 92'29L'6 8ETLS'99T 9£°0L9'6 STSLLTL g1-ew
Q0'Z9t'ore 00°95¥'606'T 6ETE]'LOY 9S'EVB'E 8%'98'y9 ST'TL0'69 OLT6EQT €8°09L'pLT SL°L60°0T TB0BT'SL 81-924
¥9'bS5'pST 19629705 (28°6€THT) T2'€SL (86'95v'87) (v zev'ee)  (9s70ct) 64°2L0'6E £TLIY'Y (L2:28€'9) g1-ue(
(Ev'vEE'esT) €6'29L'57S°T T6'ST8'S6E TO'SWL'E  0E'£09'29 8699'99 9€°280'0T 88'078'691 12286 8T'E60'EL £1-%q
l9z'gez‘TOT) T0°LE6°62T'T 9Y"8ET'09S YBEET'S IS'vES'BR 0g'9za‘se Y E9tE' vt 8"TES'6ET T9T08'ET LL79V6'20T LT-AON
) SY'092's SS'869'695'T B9ETT'IOF  98'006'€  TE'SHLTO TOTTI8'%9 65°vST'OT 6Y'L96'SLT €€'99€°01 GO'8LT'YL L1-P0
SEW¥I'TY L8VLS'89T'T OL'B6T'68S  ZEW6Y'S  EL'VSO'EE EVT00TOT  ZLEET'ST 86°LT6'TST YT'605'YT 8T'/81'20T L1-das
€E°€07'807 LroLT'eLS TU'9Z6'T0E  99°LE6'T 6Gh'BIY'Sy 8£'869'8Y BY'LBL'L 60°96Y'VET 95'9L6'L ST'T95'SS L1-8ny
69°68E°LTT 90°05€°94C S0'0SE'9LT  vO'SK9'T L6OBL'SH LS'0L6'SY OF'¥96'9 60°Z68'STT SL°E06'9 YTEEL'TS LTnr
IBY pue [en)ae udamid 2}ep 0y eloj, ejlueiy w___?ﬂw_:c_us_ ploquiny }o04qpal4 2jaing ayelan|g ey
:omtmnEou pus Huopy| Yopw enppy
_ uoeqdUaday 1e|4 sA [enjdy Z Joloe edNd 81-2102
[4 Jes), jeas)d Jo yuop

UCREHIDUCOSY Z-4d
oWsIq 1eem lediouniy Aeq jpjoquiny



secTioN (5| __ PAGE NO. Lo

Attachment 3

£€°896°0$ €CT900°L$ S[es[OYM [EI0L,
PEER96°08 (688°1£%) £22°900°L$ 'STUNAT [B)0],
#60°0LS (FL$) 891°0L$ dso e[iuep
9€9°€L1$ (95L$) T6EVLIS dsD JooIqp[oL]
9€ZTSO1$ (€10'71$) 6¥2°990°1$ dSD 2IALaTurPI
901°LS0°TS (82Z°519) EEETLOTS dsD pjoqungy
LSP'E81S 169$ LO8T81$ oye anjg
10T°€TETS (rr8°L$) PO 1ZETS BjROIy
Y09811°¢$ (929%) 6CT611°ES exong
0% 0% ‘[emmsnpuy [ejoL.
0$ B/U 0% ‘ou] ‘ding uoai8Ioay
sadrey)) 8T/LT0T XA 10) 13png 61/8107
PN UONEUONY 7 Ad paaoaddy uo paseg
pajewmnsy mow.:«..—b pajewmnsy

UONBIIDU0IIY T 10)ae 3d11q Jedsi-IoLg Suneiodioduy sadiey) sswmoysn)) jo Arewung

198png L1/9107

PLOSI( Pep [edpIUny Aeq Jpjoquunyy




el Eae (. KGO SEF Qqm

HB.MW.D. AUG - 6 201 SECTION (72, PAGE NO. Lo

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ~ CALIFORNIA NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Governor

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES
1416 NINTH STREET, P.O. BOX 942836

SACRAMENTO, CA 94236-0001

(916) 653-5791

AUG 01 2018
To Whom [t May Concern:

On June 27, 2018, legislation went into effect that modified Division 3, Part 1, section
6161 of the California Water Code. The legislation clarifies the requirements of dam
owners who had an emergency action plan (EAP) for their dam as of March 1, 2017.
Please refer to the enclosures for additional information about the recent legislation
requirements. This letter is not applicable to dams without an EAP as of March 1, 2017.

If you have any guestions, you may contact Senior Engineer Kristen Martin at

(916) 227-2170 or at MapRegs@water.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

ek,

Sharon K. Tapia, Chief
Division of Safety of Dams
Department of Water Resources

Enclosures (2):

+ Notice to owners of dams with EAPs that existed as of March 1, 2017
e California Water Code section 6161




SECTION (% 2 PAGENO,

Notice to Owners of Dams with Emergency Action Plans (EAPs) that existed as of
March 1, 2017 ‘

For owners of dams with an EAP existing as of March 1, 2017 (pre-March EAP), recent
changes to the Water Code clarify the submittal and approval process for inundation
maps and EAPs. Inundation maps are approved by the Department of Water
Resources, Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD); EAPs are approved by the Governor's
Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES).,

In June 2017, Senate Bill 92 (SB 92) added Water Code section 6161(a)(1) that
requires dam owners to submit EAPs that contain inundation maps for the dam and all
critical appurtenant structures (CAS). However, many pre-March EAPs likely do not
contain CAS maps, and these maps are now required if the dam has CAS.

In June 2018, SB 854 added Water Code section 6161(a)(4) that clarifies the submittal
process for the following scenarios.

Scenario 1 Scenario 2 _
Scenario The pre-March EAP includes The pre-March EAP includes a map

inundation maps for all structures | for the dam but not all of the CAS,
that require an inundation map: where CAS exist.
e The dam only, where no CAS ’

exist, or
¢ The dam and all CAS, where
CAS exist.
e Submit the existing ¢ Submit the following to DSOD
What do |, inundation map(s) to DSOD. for approval:
the owner, e Once DSOD approves the o Existing inundation map(s)
need to do? map(s), submit the complete o Plan & schedule for '
EAP to the CalOES within 30 completion of the remaining
days of DSOD's approval. maps (due Aug. 25, 2018)

e Once DSOD approves the
existing map(s), submit the
existing EAP to the CalOES.

¢ Once you have completed the
remaining CAS map(s)
according to the approved plan
& schedule, submit them to
DSOD.

¢ Once DSOD approves the new
CAS map(s), submit a revised
EAP to CalOES within 60 days.




SECTION &52 PAGE No.?_____

It is our understanding that most dam owners with pre-March EAPs have already
submitted existing inundation maps to DSOD. If, however, you have not yet submitted
your map(s) contained in a pre-March EAP, you are ericouraged to do so as soon as
possible.

More information about inundation mapping is available on the DSOD website:
Water.ca.gov/damsafety. If you have any questions about inundation maps, please
contact Senior Engineer Kristen Martin at (916) 227-2170 or MapRegs@water.ca.gov.

More information about EAPs is available on the Cal OES website:
CalOES.ca.qgov/dams. For questions regarding the EAP review process, please contact
Cal OES at EAP@caloes.ca.qov.




8/1/2018 Law section

J arreee. SECTION (33 PAGE NO. A

'I’f_l[[’ LEGISLATIVE INFORMATION
"Home Bill Information California Law * Publications Other Resources My Subscriptions My Favorites
Code: [Select Code ¥ Section: [ Search ®
Upn << Previous Next >> cross-reference chaptered bills PDF [ Add To My Favorites @

| Highlight ; |
WATER CODE - WAT |
DIVISION 3. DAMS AND RESERVOIRS [6000 - 6501] ( Heading of Division 3 amended by Stats. 1965, Ch. 1228. )

PART 1. SUPERVISION OF DAMS AND RESERVOIRS [6000 - 6470] ( Heading of Part 1 amended by Stats. 1965, Ch.
1225.)

CHAPTER 4. Powers of the Department [6075 - 6162] ( Chapter 4 enacted by Stats. 1943, Ch. 368. )
ARTICLE 6. Inundation Maps and Emergency Planning [6160 - 6162] ( Article 6 added by Stats. 2017, Ch. 26, Sec. 88. )

6161. (a) (1) An owner of a state jurisdictional dam, except an owner of a dam classified by the department
pursuant to Section 6160 as a low hazard dam, shall submit electronically to the department an inundation map
that shows the area that would be subject to flooding under various failure scenarios unique to the dam and the
critical appurtenant structures of the dam.

(2) Before approval of an inundation map, the department shall review the map and may require the owner. to
make changes that the department deems necessary. .

(3) Upon approval of the inundation map or-maps by the department, the owner of the dam shail develop and
submit electronically to the department and the Office of Emergency Services an emergency action plan that is
based upon the approved inundation map or maps.

(4) If an owner of a dam has an existing emergency action plan as of March 1, 2017, the department shall review
any inundation map or maps contained in the plan. If the department determines the inundation map or maps are
sufficient, as described in subparagraphs (A) or (B), the owner of the dam shall submlt the emergency action plan
associated with the inundation map or maps to the Office of Emergency Services to review the emergency action
plan as follows:

(A) If an emergency action plan existing as of March 1, 2017, contains an inundation map for the dam and all
critical appurtenant structures, if critical appurtenant structures exist, and the department determines that the
inundation map or maps for the dam and all existing critical appurtenant structures are sufficient, the owner of the
dam shall submit the complete emergency action plan reflecting all critical appurtenant structures to the Office of
Emergency Services for review within 30 days of department approval.

(B) (i) If an emergency action plan existing as of March 1, 2017, contains an inundation map for the dam but not
for all critical appurtenant structures, if critical appurtenant structures exist, the department shall review a map
included in the existing emergency action pian for sufficiency. If the department approves the map, the owner of
the dam shall submit the existing emergency action plan associated with the approved map to the Office of
Emergency Services. The owner of the dam shall continue to prepare inundation maps with due diligence for any
remaining critical appurtenant structures and submit the map or maps to the department for review and approval.
The Office of Emergency Services may defer review and approval of the new or updated emergency action plan
until the Office of Emergency Services has received inundation maps approved by the department for the dam and
all critical appurtenant structures. If the Office of Emergency Services approves an emergency action plan when the
owner of the dam is continuing to prepare inundation maps with due diligence pursuant to this subparagraph, an
owner of a dam may use that emergency action plan that existed as of March 1, 2017, on an interim basis, pending
approval of a new or updated emergency action pian that includes maps for the dam and all critical appurtenant

structures.

(ii) For the purposes of this subparagraph, “due diligence” means that the owner of a dam is progressing toward
completion of the inundation map or maps for all critical appurtenant structures according to a reasonable schedule |
proposed by the owner of the dam and approved by the department When evaluatlng the time schedule proposed |
by the owner of the dam, the department may consader among other relevant factors the hazard classification of

https://leginfo.Iegislature.ca.govlfaces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?IawCode=WAT&sectionNum=61 61. /2



8/1/2018
|

_(,_Amended by Stats. 2018, Ch. 51, Sec. 49. (SB 854) Effective June 27, 2018.)

Law section

the dam, the number of critical appurtenant structure inundation maps that are outstanzﬂﬂgm\:‘m compwaxft?"bf""" ‘
the failure scenarios. The owner of a dam shall submit a proposed time schedule to the department no later than

60 days after the effective date of the act that added this spraragraph. Failure to submit a proposed time schedule '
to the department or to comply with a time schedule approved by the department may result in the imposition of
penalties, restrictions, or liens pursuant to Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 6425). After the department
approves maps for the critical appurtenant structures, the dam owner shall submit a new or updated emergency
action plan including the approved maps to the Office of Emergency Services within 60 days.

(b) (1) The Office of Emergency Services shall review and approve an emergency action plan no later than 60 days
after receipt of the plan from the dam owner pursuant to Section 8589.5 of the Government Code. To the extent
possible, the Office of Emergency Services shall give priority to a dam with the highest hazard classification as
determined by the department pursuant to Section 6160.

(2) If the Office of Emergency Services determines a proposed emergency action plan does not meet the
requirements of Section 8589.5 of the Government Code, the Office of Emergency Services shall inform the owner
of the dam and require the owner of the dam to amend and resubmit the emergency action plan for approval. The
Office of Emergency Services shall review and, if the emergency action plan meets the requirements of Section
8589,5 of the Government Code, approve a resubmitted emergency action plan within 30 days of receipt from the
owner of the dam. » : |
(3) Upon approval by the Office of Emergency Services of an emergency action plan, the Office of Emergency

Services shall notify the department and the owner of the dam of the approval. The owner of the dam shall ensure

that the approved emergency action plan is disséminated to appropriate public safety and emergency management
agencies in potentially affected jurisdictions, to the extent these agencies want to receive approved emergency

action plans.

(¢) (1) The department shall make available to the public an approved inundation map and any schedule submitted
pursuant to clause (ii) of subparagraph (B) of paragraph (4) of subdivision (a).

(2) Nothing in Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code shall
be construed to require disclosure of an emergency action plan.

(d) (1) Pursuant to the classification by the department under Section 6160, an owner of a dam shall complete and
submit an emergency action plan as follows:

(A) On or before January 1, 2018, if the hazard classification of the dam is extremetly high.
(B) On or before January 1, 2019, if the hazard classification of the dam is high.
(C) On or before January 1, 2021, if the hazard ciassification of the dam is significant.

(2) An owner of a dam who has an existing emergency action plan as of March 1, 2017, that the department
determines has a sufficient inundation map and that the Office of Emergency Services determines has a sufficient
emergency action plan pursuant to paragraph_ (4) of subdivision (a) is not subject to the timelines set forth in
paragraph (1).

(e) An owner of a dam shall update an emergency action plan, including an inundation map, no less frequently than
every 10 years, and sooner under conditions that include, but are not limited to, the following:

(1) A significant modification to the dam or a critical appurtenant structure, as determined by the department.

(2) A significant change to downstream development that involves people and property.

https://Ieginfo.Iegislature.ca.govlfaces/codes_dispIaySection xhtmi?lawCode=WAT&sectionNum=6161.

2/2



CONTINUING
BUSINESS



SECTION L, PAGENO. | ____

Sites Reservoir earns $816 million in
Proposition 1 funding

@_ﬂ -

A valley west of Maxwell would be underwater if the Sites Reservoir is ever built. (Bill Husa — Enterprise-
Record file)

By STAFF REPORTS |
PUBLISHED: July 24, 2018 at 12:36 pm | UPDATED: July 24, 2018 at 4:35 pm

SACRAMENTO — Nearly four years after voters approved billions of dollars for new
water storage in California, the state finally announced how the pie would be divided.

Sites Reservoir in Colusa County, west of Maxwell, will get the largest chunk.

The proposed reservoir has been on the drawing boards since last century. It's the largest
and most expensive proposal of the eight projects considered by the California Water
Commission on Tuesday. It received the largest award, too — $816 million.

The proposed 1.8 million acre-foot off-stream reservoir, which would fill with Sacramento
River water with the help of canals during high winter and spring runoff, is estimated to
cost $5.2 billion to build. Even before the Proposition 1 money awarded Tuesday, the
Sites Project Authority said it had enough commitments from water users to get the
project built.

As designed Sites would add 500,000 acre-feet of water to the state’s system annually,
according to the project authority, two-thirds of the total water the eight projects will
provide.

The bigger concern is lawsuits, which in California are likely to greet any effort to build a
New reservoir.

The Water Commission approved $2.5 billion in water storage funding on an 8-0 vote.
Four of the projects were for new or expanded reservoirs. Four were for groundwater
storage.



SECTION L) PAGENO. &

Other funding commitments for reservoirs included $171 million for Temperance Flat
Reservoir on the San Joaquin River, a fraction of the total cost of $2.6 billion; $459 million
for Los Vaqueros in Contra Costa County, which will pay about half the total price tag;
and $485 million to replace and expand the Pacheco Reservoir Dam in Santa Clara
County, which also will pay about half the total cost.

The groundwater projects were in Sacramento and San Bernardino counties, and two in
Kern County.

Sites proponents have argued that storing more water in wet years at Sites would give
the state more flexibility both upstream and downstream in the delta.

“Sites is the only project approved by the Water Commission that can improve water
supply reliability within the Sacramento Valley Watershed while also increasing flows on
the Sacramento River at times that are most critical to struggling fish populations,” said
Jim Watson, general manager of the Sites Project Authority in a news release.

“The Sites Project offers the unique benefit of improving water quality and habitat
conditions in the Sacramento River and delta when and where it's needed most,” Watson
said. “The project will not block fish migration, does not dam a large river or stream, and
will only be filled by storm events, when excess water is available in the Sacramento
River and after all existing environmental requirements have been met.”

Assemblyman James Gallagher, R-Yuba City, was relieved that the hard work to secure
funding paid off.

“Over the last four years | have worked closely with the Sites Project Authority to ensure
that this vital project received its fair share of funding out of the Proposition 1 water bond,”
Gallagher said in a statement. “We held town hall meetings in the district with water
commissioners, built bipartisan support in the Legislature, and were constantly reminding
the Water Commission of the many benefits of this project. Today I am proud to see that
our advocacy has paid off ... including over $40 million in early funding to help get Sites
off the ground. This has truly been a team effort that would not have been possible
without us all working together.”



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT SECTION________, PAGENO. ..
To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach

Date: August 3, 2018

Subject: Sustainable Groundwater Management Act

On September 16, 2014, Governor Jerry Brown signed into law a three-bill legislative package,
composed of AB 1739 (Dickinson), SB 1168 (Pavley), and SB 1319 (Pavley), collectively known as the
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). This law provides a framework for California for
sustainable, groundwater management - “management and use of groundwater in a manner that can
be maintained during the pianning and implementation horizon without causing undesirabie resuits.”

SGMA requires governments and water agencies of high and medium priority basins to halt overdraft
and bring groundwater basins into balanced levels of pumping and recharge. Under SGMA, these
basins should reach sustainability within 20 years of implementing their sustainability plans. For
critically over-drafted basins, that will be 2040. For the remaining high and medium priority basins, 2042
is the deadline.

In his signing statement, the governor emphasized that “groundwater management in California is best
accomplished locally.” Through the Sustainable Groundwater Management Program, DWR provides
ongoing support to local agencies through guidance and financial and technical assistance.

SGMA empowers local agencies to form Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) to manage
basins sustainably and requires those GSAs to adopt Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) for
crucial groundwater basins in California.

The Mad River Basin had previously been designated as a “very low priority” basin, which did not
require our District to prepare a Groundwater Sustainability Plan. However, in the most recent
categorization release by DWR on May 18, 2018, the Mad River Basis was scored as a “medium
priority” by one scoring point. DWR will be holding Public Meetings June 25-27, 2018 on the proposed
2018 SGMA Basin Prioritization and are accepting public comments until August 20, 2018 (extended
due date).

Staff has been reviewing the scoring criteria and data in conjunction with Hank Seemann, Natural
Resources Director at the County of Humboldt as well as Greg Orsini at McKinleyville CSD and Mark
Andre of the City of Arcata. Because the County is the lead agency for SGMA compliance, Mr.
Seemann will be preparing a staff report for the Board of Supervisor's meeting to be held on August
14", Rather than duplicate his efforts, District staff will be presenting his report to our Board at our
August 16" Board meeting to facilitate our discussions on this topic. District staff may propose that we
join with the County of Humboldt in a response letter regarding the Mad River basin’s classification by
the DWR.

If the County staff report on SGMA is not available by our board packet production date, it will be
distributed at or just prior to our Board meeting.



New Business



\ o

SECTIONZL|___ PAGE NO.
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

To: Board of Directors
Date: August 16, 2018
From: Chris Harris

RE: HBMWD Sick Leave Policy Discussion

Background

Full-Time Employees of HBMWD currently accrue sick leave at a rate of 8 hours/month (12 days/year). This accrued
time is expected to be used for personal sick days, wellness-related appointments, and kin-care days (sick family
member)". Unless retiring, this accrued sick time cannot be cashed-out and is forfeited if the employee separates
from the District for any reason (other than retirement).

Other Agencie

S
Agency Accrual Rate m Cash Out Option Service Credit* Comments

m 8 hours/month 1,040 hrs. Up to 35% at retirement Yes

HCSD

MCSD

Marin Municipal
Water District
Sonoma County
Water Agency

City of Arcata

City of Eureka
City of Fortuna
City of Redding
City of San Jose
City of Santa Rosa

City of Sonoma

Alameda County

Contra Costa
County

Humboldt County

! HBMWD Employee Handbook, rev. 01/01/18, pages 43-45



*Credit for Unused Sick Leave is mandated by CalPERS. Service Credit is 0.004/day unless otherwise noted. SECTION :F‘ PAGE NQ.__Q”~
s S

S g i -

Discussion

Unlike the other agencies researched, HBMWD limits the maximum amount of time that can be accrued by an
employee to 1,040 hours (130 days). This threshold is set specifically to cover the timeframe until an employee
becomes eligible for disability benefits, should there be a serious iliness.

Based on the accrual rate of 12 days/year, this maximum threshold takes nearly eleven years (10.83 years) to
accumulate -- without taking any sick days over the course of those nearly eleven years.

Upon retirement, and after working for the District for a minimum of ten years, the employee has three options for
their unused accrued sick leave:

1. All of the total accumulated sick leave hours can be cashed in at a rate of 35%, paid out at the most
recent rate of pay.

2. 100% of the accumulated sick leave hours can be converted to additional service credit at a rate of
0.004 for retirement purposes (CalPERS mandate}).

3. A hybrid of both the above, with the cash amount not to exceed 35% of the accumulated sick leave
hours.

While the District does currently have three employees that have reached the maximum accrual bank of 1,040
hours, the current average sick-leave hours accrued for the District’s 27 full-time employees is 388 hours. The chart
below gives examples of the three scenarios listed above; using both the maximum accrued sick-leave hours as well
as the current average accrued sick-leave hours, with the current average rate of pay ($34.00/hr.).

$4,617 $12,376
0.19 yr. Service Credit 0.52 yr. Service Credit
194 hrs. x 35% x $34 = $2,309 520 hrs. x 35% x $34 = $6,188
194 hrs.=24.25 days x 0.004 = 0.10yr. 520 hrs. = 65 days x 0.004 = 0.26 yr.
service credit service credit

* Hours divided even ly in example

CalPERS requires ail agencies to have a provision for allowing employees to convert unused sick leave into service
credit. The HBMWD CalPERS contract stipulates the most common conversion rate of 0.004 (1,040 hours = 130
days*0.004 = 0.52 yr.). While this rate is the same for many agencies, there are some that are required to allow the
employee to convert unused sick leave on a one-to-one bases.

Recommendation

The District continually works to remain competitive with other agencies in order to attract and retain high quality
staffing.” Based on the maximum accrual limit already established and the length of time required to reach the



maximum accrual, as well as the comparison of sick-leave policies with other agencies, staff believes any changes to
the sick-leave accrual policies will negatively impact staff productivity and retention.
secTIoN Z| __ PAGENO.D_—-

Attachments

1. Government Code Section 20965: PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM; Article 3 — Computation of Service
Credit

2. Government Code Section 31641.03: COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT LAW:; Article 7 — Service
3. Pages 11-12 of CalPERS Contract with the District - “Credit for Unused Sick Leave”

4. HBMWD Employee Handbook, §4001.5 Sick Leave, pages 43-45



7/18/2018 leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/printCodeSectionWindow.xhtmi?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=20965.&op_statues=199580p_chapter=37...

SECTION T |__paceNo Mt =D
GOVERNMENT CODE - GOV

TITLE 2. GOVERNMENT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA [8000 - 22980] ( Title 2 enacted
by Stats. 1943, Ch. 134. )

DIVISION 5. PERSONNEL [18000 - 22980] ( Division 5 added by Stats. 1945, Ch. 123. )
PART 3. PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM [20000 - 21703] ( Part 3
repealed and added by Stats, 1995, Ch. 379, Sec. 2. )

CHAPTER 11. Service Credit [20890 - 21054] ( Chapter 11 added by Stats. 1995, Ch.
379, Sec. 2. )

ARTICLE 3. Computation of Service Credit [20960 - 20972] ( Article 3 added by Stats. 1995, Ch. 379,
Sec. 2. )

A local miscellaneous member and a local safety member, whose effective date of retirement is within four months of
separation from employment with the employer which granted the sick leave credit, shall be credited at his or her
retirement with 0.004 year of service credit for each unused day of sick leave certified to the board by his or her employer.
The certification shall report only those days of unused sick leave that were accrued by the member during the normal
course of his or her employment and shall not include any additional days of sick leave reported for the purpose of increasing the
member’s retirement benefit. Reports of unused days of sick leave shall be subject to audit and retirement benefits may be adjusted

20965.

where improper reporting is found.

This section shall not apply to any contracting agency nor to the employees of a contracting agency until the agency elects to be
subject to this section by contract or by amendment to its contract made in the manner prescribed for approval of contracts, except
that an election among the employees is not required, or, in the case of contracts made after September 26, 1974, by express
provision in the contract making the contracting agency subject to this section.

This section shall only apply to members who retire after the effective date of the contract amendments.

(Repealed and added by Stats. 1995, Ch. 379, Sec. 2. Effective January 1, 1996.)

http://leginfo legislature.ca.gov/faces/printCodeSectionWindow.xhtmi?lawCode=GOV&asectionNum=20965.&0p_statues=19958op_chapter=379&op_s... 1/1



7/18/2018 leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/printCodeSectionWindow.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=31641.03.&op_statues=19758op_chapter=...

SECTION_T-|__ PAGE NO. _5__‘5_5;’

GOVERNMENT CODE - GOV

TITLE 3. GOVERNMENT OF COUNTIES [23000 - 33205] ( Title 3 added by Stats., 1947, Ch.
424. )

DIVISION 4. EMPLOYEES [31000 - 33017] ( Division 4 added by Stats. 1947, Ch. 424. )
PART 3. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS [31200 - 33017] ( Part 3 added by Stats. 1947, Ch.
424, )

CHAPTER 3. County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 [31450 - 31898] ( Chapter
3 added by Stats. 1947, Ch. 424. )

ARTICLE 7. Service [31640 - 31658] ( Article 7 added by Stats. 1947, Ch. 424, )

In any county the board of supervisors may provide by ordinance that members specified in the ordinance shall be
credited, for up to 100 percent of sick leave accumulated as of the date of their retirement, and that sick leave credit
shall be in addition to service credit. The additional cost to the retirement system shall be borne by the county or
district.

31641.03.

This section shall not apply to members who are employed by a district unless the governing board of the district provides by
resolution for its application to such members.

(Added by Stats. 1975, Ch. 574.)

http:/fleginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/printCodeSectionWindow.xhtmi?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=31641.03.&0p_statues=1975&0p_chapter=574 11



sectioN | _paseNo. o

9. Section 20936 Prior Service Credit for Employees of an Assumed Agency or
Function __—

An agency may provide credit for service rendered with-a ‘public agency if that agency or
a function of that agency is, or was, assumed_ by the contracting agency. The cost for
prior service credit is the liability of the/cam'racting agency. Documents of origin for the
assumed agency may be required to"determine whether the agency qualifies as a public
agency.

Employer Cost: Valuation required.

None.

10. Section 20938 Limit Prior Service to Persons Employed on Contract Date

A contracting agency may limit prior service credit (service rendered ,tG*tl‘Fejagency prior to
its contract date with CalPERS) to persons in emplolm/eukw*lth the agency on the
effective date of its CalPERS contract, or amendrﬂe,m— {6 contract. This benefit can be
provided in the initial contract or by amendme t fer agencies that provide 0% prior service
and now wish to provide all or a portion of prior service credit to current employees only.
This option may also be applied the removal of an exclusion of a member group or
classification.

Employer Cost~~  Valuation required.
) ber Cost: None.

11. Section 20965 Credit for Unused Sick Leave
This benefit is mandated for pooled plans.

Unused accumulated sick leave at time of retirement may be converted to additional
service credit at the rate of 0.004 year of service credit for each day of unused sick leave
(i.e., 250 days of sick leave equals one additional year of service credit).

The employer must report only those days of unused sick leave that were accrued by the
member during the normal course of employment. Additional days of unused sick leave
reported for the purpose of increasing the member's retirement benefit are prohibited.
Most safety member formulas limit the member benefits to a maximum of 90% of final
compensation. The addition of this benefit does not increase the maximum percentage
allowable.

This section applies to members whose effective date of retirement is within four months
of separation from employment and who retire after the effective date of the contract

amendment.

PERS-CON-40 (Rev. 10/15) 1



secTion_F | _ PAGE NO. =

s e s o P ]

Employer Cost: Valuation required for non-pooled plans only.

Rough Estimate:  Impact on Employer Normal Cost:
e 0.1% to 0.2% of payroll for all groups
impact on Total Employer Contribution Rate:
o .0.2% to 0.6% of payroll for all groups

Member Cost: None.

12. Section 20996 Military Service Credit as Prior Service /

—

—
Employees, who are/were on a military leave at the fi ~the agency contracts for
CalPERS coverage and return to employment Mncy within six months after
discharge from active military duty, can receive service credit for the period of their
absence. If the agency provides this—benefit, former employees employed by other

CalPERS employers would als eligible to claim service credit. The agency would be
liable for the cost.

Employeﬁ: . No valuation required. Actual costs will emerge in future valuations.
Member Cost: None.

//
13. Section 21020.6 Public Service Credit for California Senate Fellows, Assembly,
‘ Fellowship, Executive Fellowship, or Judicial Administration

-

Fellowship Programs P

.

A member who was employed on or after October 14, 1991 under the California Senate
Fellows, Assembly Fellowship, or Executive Fellowship programs may elect to receive
service credit for that public service prior to-retirement. A member who was employed on
or after January 1, 2003 under the Judicial Administration Fellowship program may elect
to receive service credit for that-public service prior to retirement.

Employer Cost: N6 valuation required. Actual costs will emerge in future valuations.

Member Cost: Individual calculation required. After the contract has been amended,
= the member may obtain cost information by contacting the Employer
Account Management Division.

_‘/-'

—

14. Section 21022 Public Service Credit for Periodggtlzaﬁﬁ'/

This provision is mandated for pooled plans.
A member may receive up to one year of public service credit for each period of layoff

from gﬂ;ﬂﬂy ent on or after January 1, 1981. To be eligible to receive the service credit,
}&member must meet the following conditions:

PERS-CON-0 (Rev. 10/15) 12



secTioN_T! _paceNno._ 8 __

4001.5 Sick Leave - All employees are provided paid sick leave benefit. Sick leave is
defined as the time an ‘employee is absent from work due to illness or injury, or to
undergo medical, dental or optical examinations or treatment, or for family purposes
that meets the following criteria:

o Care of an eligible family member who is incapacitated because of illness or
injury and definitely requires personal care. The length of an absence for this
purpose shall be limited to the time reasonably required to ejther provide
care or to make other arrangements for such care. For the pirpose of this
subsection, an ehglble family member is the employee’s spouse, child,
parent, grandparent, domestic partner (as defined by Section 297 of the
California Family Code), or domestic partner’s child. Additionally, under
‘this subsection, an eligible family member is any other close relative or child
who resides with the employee.

o To transport an ehglble family member to and from a local hospital for
medical treatment or operation, including childbirth.

o Tobe in attendance during serious medical treatment or operation, including
childbirth, performed upon an eligible family member.

Sick leave of three days is available for part-time employees at the beginning of each
twelve-month period. There is no carryover of sick leave for part-time employees. For
full-time employees, sick leave is accumulated at the rate of one day (8 hours) per
month, up to a maximum of 130 days, during months the employee is working or on
authorized paid leave. Sick leave will no longer accrue when an employee’s
accumulated sick leave balance equals 130 days (1040 hours). Sick leave is

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 43



used in increments of no less than one-quarter hour.. A record of accumulated sick
leave and sick leave used will be maintained at the District’s administrative office.

It is your responsibility to notify your supervisor as soon as possible, and when
reasonably possible, no later than one-half hour after the start of the work shift, if you
are unable to come to work due to illness or injury. If the illness lasts more than one
day, you must keep your supervisor notified of your condition and estimated return to

work.

The District may request a doctor’s certificate clearing you to return to work if, in the
sole discretion of the District, the illness or injury so merits. A doctor’s certificate may
also be required on any absence exceeding three work days. The District may
periodically evaluate your ability to return to work with your physicians, and with
Worker’s Comp or SDI if applicable.

When applicable, the District will coordinate its sick leave benefits with Worker’s
Compensation benefits (Section 4001.7) and with State Disability Insurance (SDI)
(Section 4002.1). If you receive Worker's Comp or SDI payments, you must report
them in writing to the Accounting and HR Specialist for proper accounting and
coordination. Under such circumstances, you will be credited with the equivalent
amount of sick leave. In no event will you receive more in total compensation from the
District and the insurer than your regular wage.

In the event you become ill or incapacitated longer than your accumulated time off
(including vacation), health, dental and life insurance benefits will remain in effect as
long as the terms of the benefit policy in effect allows. Any employee share of benefit
premiums, if applicable, will be deducted from your paycheck from the District. When
such is no longer possible, you must pay any employee share to continue the benefit

coverage.

4001.5aKin Care Leave - Full-time employees may use a portion of their accrued sick
leave as Kin Care Leave to care for immediate family members who are sick. You may
use up to half of the sick time accrued per calendar year (up to 6 days) to care for a sick
family member, regardless of the seriousness of the illness. Family members covered
include parents, children and spouses. Kin Care Leave will not accumulate from year to
year. You must provide as much notice as possible to request Kin Care Leave. If the
leave exceeds one day your supervisor must be kept informed.

4001.5b Termination and Sick Leave - You will not receive days off in lieu of sick leave
when terminating from the District. However, as a reward for low sick leave usage,
terminating employees who have worked for the District for ten or more years (who are
not retiring) will be reimbursed by cash in an amount equal to the total accumulated
sick leave x 35% x most recent hourly wage.

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 44



— “secTioN_F1__paceno. L0 __

4001.5¢ Retirement and Sick Leave - Retiring employees who have worked for the
District for ten or more years may choose in writing at least 30 days prior to
employment end date, one of three options:

1) Cash in an amount equal to the total accumulated sick leave hours x 35% x most
recent hourly wage

2) Conversion of 100% of accumulated sick leave hours to additional service credit
for retirement purposes (subject to the District’s CalPERS contract and any other
requirements imposed by CalPERS)

A portion in cash and a portion as service credit, the sum of which may not
exceed 100% of the accumulated hours. The cash portion may be any percentage
up to 35% (for example 20% cash and 80% service credit). The cash portion may
not exceed 35% of the total accumulated hours of sick leave times the most recent

hourly wage.

When an employee is approaching retirement, the employee should consult with a
representatlve from CalPERS to learn how the service credit provision works, as
well as any limitations or requirements.

4001.6 Bereavement Leave - Regular employees are eligible to receive up to three days
pald leave at any one time when they are absent from work due to death of a member
of their immediate family. For this purpose, immediate family includes the following
individuals for the employee, the employees spouse, or the employees domestic
partner: mother, father, grandmother, grandfather, or a grandchild, son, son-in-law,
daughter, daughter-in-law, niece, nephew, brother, or sister.

4001.7 Worker’s Compensation: Work-Related Injury - Workers’ compensation
insurance is paid by the District and protects you if you are injured while performing
assigned duties on the job. All employees are covered by the District's Worker's
Compensatlon Insurance. You must report any work-related i injury or illness
immediately to your supervisor. Work-related illness or injury will be treated in the
manner prescribed by the Worker’s Compensation Insurance carried by the District.
This includes immediate diagnosis and treatment at a hospital or emergency room if
necessary, and follow-up care with appropriate physicians.

You will be placed on a Workers” Compensation Leave if temporarily and completely
disabled from work for more than five days. A doctor’s written certificate of disability
is required. ~While on Workers’ Compensation leave, you are required to provide
periodic updates on your medical condition to the Superintendent or General Manager.
Prior to returning to work, you must provide a written release from your doctor that
permits you to return to work and indicates any restrictions to full duty. As discussed
above, Worker's Comp benefits will be coordinated with the District’'s sick leave
benefits (see Section 4001.5).

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 45



) secrion T paceno. L

4001.7a Return to Work Policy - In an effort to minimize serious disability due to on-
the-job injuries and illnesses and to reduce Workers’ Compensation costs, the District
has developed a Return To Work Program with its insurance provider. The program
will be implemented by a team comprised of your supervisor, the District’s claims
representative (from ACWA JPIA), the medical provider, the injured employee, and the
General Manager. All team members will be asked to take an active role in returning
the injured/ill employee to a productive status.

Supervisors will assist by directing the employee to appropriate care and assisting in
proper reporting of the injury or illness while maintaining a positive and frequent flow
of communication with the injured worker. They will also assist in reducing lost
production time by arranging work meeting “light duty” restrictions, as needed, The
Supervisors and General Manager will work with the JPIA claims representative to
assist with the assessment of the employee’s ability to return to work. Together they
will encourage the treating physician to release the injured employee to work as soon as
possible, with appropriate work limitations and restrictions. By this joint effort, the
District will help the injured/ill worker recover at a more rapid rate, gain production
for wages paid, minimize the employee’s wage loss, and reduce workers’ compensation
costs.

If you are injured and subject to this policy, you will have certain responsibilities. You
must engage in the interactive process. After your first appointment with a physician, a
Return to Work Recommendations Record (or other documents provided by the
physician) should be provided to your supervisor. Whenever possible, the District will
provide you with work within your restrictions, if any. Once you are released to light
duty, you should report to work immediately.

Once you are back at work, you are responsible for:

o Working within the physical limitations set by the physician at all times and
performing only those temporary duties assigned to you by your supervisor;

o Letting your supervisor know if you are having any difficulties performing
your assigned tasks;

o Telling your supervisor in advance if you must miss work for a medical
appointment; and

o Ensuring that your supervisor knows of any changes in your work
restrictions you learn from your doctor.

If you do not report to work (light duty or regular work) when you are released, you
may not be eligible for temporary disability payments or wages.

4002 Disability Insurance, Leaves and Leave Donation

4002.1 State Disability Insurance (SDI) - The District is a member of the State
Disability Insurance program which provides short-term weekly benefits in the event

HBMWD Employee Handbook Updated January 2018
Page 46



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT SECTION,?E_&__, PAGENO._\
To: Board of Directors

Date: August 16, 2018

From: Chris Harris

RE: RFP for Actuarial Services for OPEB Valuation

Background

Along with most all other agencies, HBMWD provides Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) as part of the total
compensation offered to attract and retain the services of qualified employees. This is in addition to CalPERS
pensions. In general “OPEB” includes retiree healthcare, life insurance, and deferred compensation. HBMWD
provides only retiree medical insurance and imposes specific restrictions for this post-retirement benefit.

Agenc Retiree Health Care Benefit Timeframe

$640/capped contribution Hired prior to 2004 — No limit (9 employees)
HBMWD No spousal benefit Hired after 2004 - 10-yr limit, or Medicare

eligible

No capped contribution

10yrs = 50% premium tiered up to . . -

20yr = 100% premium Until Medicare eligible

No spousal benefit

No capped contribution

100% coverage for retiree, spouse, and Until Medicare eligible

dependents

No capped contribution

>10yrs but <20yrs = 2% premium for each year

City of Arcata FuEeytes Until Medicare eligible
>20yrs = 3% premium for each year of service

No spousal benefit

- No capped contribution
- 20/80 contribution split, with specific Until Medicare eligible
| requirements

City of
Eureka

JPIA $500/month each for both retiree and spouse Until Medicare eligible

Similar to the CalPERS pension liability, the OPEB benefit creates a future liability for the District. In order to
calculate this future obligation, the services of an actuary are used to forecast what this amount may be in todays’
dollars. The standards and frequency for these calculations are established and governed by the Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), with Statement 45 (GASB 45) being the prior standard for all OPEB valuations.
Effective June 15, 2017, GASB 45 was eliminated and replaced with Government Accounting Standards Board
Statement Number 75 (GASB 75). '



SECTION_E- 2, PAGE NO. 2=

GASB 75 is very similar in that it establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of OPEB
expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and required supplementary information
(RSl) in financial reports. In addition, the new GASB 75 also establishes a more robust disclosure of the assumptions
used in the valuation, defines the discount rate to be used, and requires more frequent valuations.

Discussion

In the past, the District was required to contract with an actuary every three years to perform the necessary
computations to comply with the reporting requirements. With GASB 75, this requirement is now every other year.
Staff recently issued a RFP for a standard OPEB valuation with the added additional requirements:

e Calculate the OPEB liability with a reduction of the District contribution to the retiree health care.

e Calculate the OPEB liability with an elimination of the District contribution to the retiree health
care.

e Calculate the impact of the changing employee demographic and changing CALPERS retiree
demographic (Classic = 2.0% at 55, PEPRA = 2.0% at 62).

These additional requests will provide the Board additional information to evaluate any potential changes to retiree
healthcare coverage. Once the OPEB analysis is complete and reviewed (deadline October 15™), staff will provide
additional analysis to the Board regarding the post-retirement benefit.

Staff forwarded RFP’s to the following agencies:
David Becker, James Marta & Company, LLP
Ted Price, Govinvest, Inc.

Josh Giosa, Price Paige and Company, Inc.
Denise Harris, Bartel Associates, LLC

Recommendation

Prior to the Board Meeting, staff will receive and review the RFP proposals — response deadline is August 10", Staff
will provide a response summary at the Board Meeting. After discussion, staff will recommend that the Board
authorize staff to enter into an engagement agreement with the selected agency for the required
computations and disclosures for GASB 75.

Attachments

RFP for Actuarial Services



SECTION_ L ZL_ paGE NO. 2

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Request for Proposals

for

Actuarial Services to value Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) in compliance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75 (GASB 75).

INTRODUCTION

The Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Board of Directors is requesting proposals from qualified
consultants for Actuarial Services in accordance with the included specifications, terms, and conditions
shown in this Request for Proposals (RFP). Prospective respondents are advised to read this information
carefully prior to submitting a proposal.

Proposals must be received via USPS or email by 5:00 pm on August 10", 2018.

Mailed proposals should be addressed to:
HBMWD - Actuarial Services RFP
ATTN: Chris Harris
PO Box 95
Eureka, CA 95502-0095

Emailed proposals should be addressed to:
harris@hbmwd.com

(Subject line: “Other Post-Employment Benefits Actuarial Services™)

Questions may be directed to the Business Manager, Chris Harris (harris@hbmwd.com).



SECTION T 2_paGENO.Y____
GENERAL INFORMATION

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD) is seeking proposals from qualified professional
actuary firms to provide services to value Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) in compliance with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75 (GASB 75) for inclusion in the District’s
CAFR as of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2020, with consulting available for the entire timespan,
including for the year-ended June 30, 2019.

Said valuations must be performed in accordance with generally accepted actuarial standards of practice
promulgated by the Actuarial Standards Board and based on the actuarial assumptions and methods
prescribed by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) Board. The required
services and performance conditions are described in the SCOPE OF WORK section of this document.

There is no expressed or implied obligation of HBMWD to reimburse responding firms for any expense
incurred in preparing proposals in response to this request.

During the evaluation process, HBMWD reserves the right, where it may serve Humboldt Bay
Municipal Water District’s best interest, to request additional information or clarifications from
proposers, or to allow corrections of errors or omissions.

HBMWD reserves the right to retain all proposals submitted and to use any ideas in a proposal
regardless of whether that proposal is selected. Submission of a proposal indicates acceptance by the
firm of the conditions contained in this request for proposal, unless clearly and specifically noted in the
proposal submitted and confirmed in the contract between Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District and
the firm selected.

To be considered, a proposal must be received by 5:00 PM, August 10™, 2018. Please see the
INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBMITTING FIRMS in this document for further information.

DISTRICT BACKGROUND

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District was formed in 1956 pursuant to the California Municipal Water
District Act. The District is a Special District, a form of local government in the State of California. A
five-member elected Board is the governing body of the organization.

The District was created to develop a regional water system to provide a reliable supply of drinking and
industrial water to customers in the greater Humboldt Bay area of Humboldt County. Current facilities
and operations of the District include:

The R.W. Matthews Dam which forms Ruth Reservoir in southern Trinity County

The Gosselin hydro-electric power house at R.W. Matthews Dam

The John R. Winzler Operations and Control Center

The Lloyd L. Hecathorn Turbidity Reduction Facility

Additional storage and treatment facilities

Two separate and distinct pipeline systems which deliver treated drinking water or
untreated raw water to the District’s customers

& B

The District supplies treated drinking water on a wholesale basis to seven municipal agencies in the
greater Humboldt Bay area. The District’s wholesale municipal customers are: the City of Arcata, the



SECTION_T. PAGENO._2___

City of Eureka, the City of Blue Lake, Fieldbrook CSD, Humboldt CSD, Manila CSD, and
McKinleyville CSD. The District previously supplied untreated, raw water on a wholesale basis to
industrial customers on the Samoa Peninsula. The District is hopeful to provide this service again in the
future. The District also provides direct retail water service to approximately 200 customers who reside
outside the boundaries of other municipalities.

HBMWD contracts with the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) to provide
retirement benefits. To be eligible for District-paid retiree health benefits, an employee must:

1. Retire from the District

2. Be eligible for CalPERS retirement benefits upon retirement from the District (in accordance
with the District’s CalPERS contract)

3. Have a minimum of ten years of service at the District prior to retirement.

The duration of retiree health benefits provided by the District, subject to the requirements above,
depends on the date an employee was hired by the District. For all full-time regular employees hired by
the District prior to July 8, 2004, the District will pay the medical cost premium during retirement,
subject to a maximum of $640 per month, without a specific time limitation as to how long this benefit
will be provided during a retiree’s retirement. For all full-time regular employees hired by the District
after July 8, 2004, the District will pay 100% of the medical cost premium during retirement, subject to
a maximum of $640 per month, for a maximum of 10 years or until the retiree reaches age 65,
whichever comes first.  The District’s health insurance plan is available, depending on the plan
provider, to retirees after age 65 if the entire premium is paid by the retiree.

SCOPE OF WORK

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District is seeking proposals from qualified firms interested in
providing actuarial services to the District for valuation of OPEB offered by the District. The primary
objectives for this actuarial valuation include:

1. Ensure compliance with GASB 75.

2. Determine OPEB related valuation and related roll-forward data for June 30, 2018 and June 30,
2020.

3. Prepare necessary information for inclusion in the District’s audited financial statements for the
FYE June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2020. This includes drafting in its entirety the note to the
financial statements for inclusion into the District’s financial statements that conform to all of the
requirements of GASB Statement 75; and all of the required supplementary information required
by the same.

4. Calculation of ongoing OPEB obligation and unfunded liability using different scenarios:

a. No change in the District contribution to the retiree’s health care premium.

b. Reduction of the District contribution and/or maximum duration to the retiree’s health
care premium.

c. Elimination of the District contribution to the Retiree’s Health Care Premium.

d. Projection of impact of changing age demographic and changing statistics of CalPERS
retirement plans (Classic vs. PEPRA) of District employees.



SECTION_L 2 PAGENO. (o

5. Provide consulting as needed related to the District’s OPEB liability for FYE June 30, 2018
through FYE June 30, 2020.

6. Assistance in implementing any new GASB statements and other financial pronouncements
related to OPEB and providing ongoing professional consultation.

7. Deadline for completion: October 15, 2018.

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

The respondent’s proposal must include a Project Plan for the actuarial services engagement to be
performed under this RFP for the valuation of Other Post-Employment Benefits. The Project Plan
should include, at a minimum, the following:

1. Approach and methodology for the valuation

2. Approach and methodology to include compliance with GASB standards
3. Data requirements from the District

4. Identification of Project Plan milestones

5. Schedule for project completion and issuance of report

6. Valuation report elements to include:

Actuarial present value of total projected benefits

Actuarial accrued liability

OPEB assets

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability

Normal cost

Annual required contribution as a dollar amount and as a percentage of Payroll
Annual OPEB cost

Net OPEB obligation

Summary of data used for the valuation

Summary of actuarial methods and assumptions

Financial notes to be included in the District’s audited financial statements in the GASB
prescribed format

AT PR Mo e o

7. Describe the governmental experience of the firm including the specific details regarding
experience in the area of actuarial valuation services related to OPEB.

8. Provide a list of municipal government references where the firm has provided OPEB actuarial
valuation services in the past thirty-six (36) months. This list should indicate the names and
contact information of finance officers in these municipalities.

9. Provide information regarding staffing including the experience of the individuals who will be
assigned to the engagement. This should also include each individual’s relevant experience with
municipalities and preparing OPEB actuarial valuations. Also, include information as to the
annual training plan of the firm related to governmental services.



SECTION_T 2&_ PAGE NO. Tt

10. Provide the proposed cost of services. The District requires a firm, fixed fee for the actuarial

valuation services for the two terms.

PROPOSED TERM OF CONTRACT

The proposed term of the contract is two terms, up to and including OPEB actuarial valuation data to be
used in the District’s audited financial statements as of June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2020. The District
may extend this agreement for an additional two terms.

SCHEDULE FOR SELECTION

Deadline for submittal of Questions: August 3, 2018

Response to Questions: August 6, 2018

Deadline for submittal of Proposal: August 10, 2018

Interviews (if necessary): August 15, 2018
SELECTION CRITERIA

The District will evaluate the information provided based on the following selection criteria:

S kAR

Responsiveness of the proposal to the scope of services requested
Potential to benefit the District

Prior experience in providing similar services to other special districts
Qualifications of the firm, and in particular, the assigned principal
Cost effectiveness

Information will be evaluated by: ~ John Friedenbach, General Manager
Chris Harris, Business Manager
Becky Moyle, HR & Accounting Specialist

INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBMITTING FIRMS

1.

Examination of Proposal Documents: By submitting a proposal, the prospective firm represents
that it has thoroughly examined and become familiar with the services required under this RFP,
and that it is capable of delivering quality services to the District in a cost-effective and service-
oriented manner.

Questions/Clarifications: Please direct any questions regarding this RFP to Chris Harris,
Bgsmess Manager, at harris@hbmwd.com. Questions must be received by 5:00 p.m. on August
87, 2018.

Submission of Proposals: Complete written proposals must be submitted in sealed envelopes or
received via email no later than 5:00 PM on August 15, 2018, to the address below. Proposals
will not be accepted after this deadline.

HBMWD — Actuarial Services RFP
ATTN: Chris Harris

PO Box 95

Eureka, CA 95502-0095

Or emailed to: harrls@hbmwd com with the subject line “Other Post-Employment Beneﬁts
Actuarial Services”.



SECTION L2 _ PAGE NO._&__

Retirement Policy Requirements

ACWA JPIA permits employers to provide qualifying employees with post-employment health
benefits. Employers are required to establish and maintain a Retiree Policy that meets the
requirements established by JPIA and the Insurance Carriers. JPIA staff does not retain each
employer's retiree policy information, but may do so upon request to ensure plans are
administered consistent with employer policies. All retirement policies require member Board
approval and must be presented to JPIA at implementation or when changes are enacted.

JPIA has established base requirements for Retirement Policies. Employer policies may be
more or less generous, so long as they do not violate the requirements provided here. JPIA has
not set a minimum years of service requirement. This is at the discretion of each member
agency's Board. Employer policy must be documented and adhered to without exception. The
following is a summary of JPIA retiree health plan requirements:

= Employee must be at least age 50 at the time of retirement. Exceptions to the
minimum age requirement are not available for early disability retirements.

= Retirees must meet years of service and age requirements in employer’s written
policies to be eligible for retiree coverage.

= Employer must contribute at least 25% of the retiree only premium for the least cost
plan for which the retiree is eligible. (If the employer is on the Incentive rating
system, the employer must contribute 50% of the retiree only premium for the least
cost plan for which the retiree is eligible.)

* Retirees may not reimburse the employer for the employer share of the premium.
This is considered “self-pay” and is prohibited in all JPIA plans, except in the case of
COBRA.

* Employer contributions for the retiree’s dependents may be at any level.

= Employees must enroll in the plan they wish to retire into during the Open Enroliment
period prior to retirement, unless the employer's policy offers Open Enrollment
annually to all retirees.

* There can be no lapse in coverage between the date of retirement and the date
retiree benefits begin. The employee must transfer from active status directly to
retired status. The employee may not go from Active to COBRA to Retiree benefits
eligible.

= |f at any time a retiree is removed from the policy, he/she will not be eligible for
reinstatement.

= Employer may provide a Surviving Spouse Policy. This should be documented
clearly in employer policies.

There are many options when constructing a Retirement Policy. It is imperative for an
employer, in the process of implementing a new policy, to be aware that JPIA will not enroli past
retirees who are not currently enrolled in the employer's health plans at the time of transition in
JPIA health plans. However, once a policy is in-force the employer should apply

Revised 7/30/2017
8



secTion £ pacENo.]

oo 0

MCKINLEYVILLE MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
McKinleyville Middle School Conference Center
2275 Central Ave
McKinleyville, CA 95519
July 25, 2018- 6:00 p.m.

Agenda

All meeting rooms are ADA accessible.
Electronic devices should be turned off during the meetings.

I.Call to Order

II. Roll Call (Board Secretary)

.
Salute the Flag

IL.
Review/Approval of Minutes -~ June 27, 2018

III.
Public Comments

Time will be reserved for the general public to address the MMAC on any matter within
the Board’s jurisdiction, excluding those items on the agenda. Comments are
limited to 3 minutes.

As to matters on the Agenda, an opportunity will be given to address the Board when
the matter is considered. Comments are limited to 3 minutes. Letters should be
used for complex issues. The Board Chair may limit the public forum to thirty
minutes (30) initially, and continue any remaining appearance beyond the thirty
minutes at the end of the regularly scheduled business of the day.

Iv.
Discussion/Action Items

1. Report from Arcata/McKinleyville Fire Department. Listen and take

___appropriate action. —— — —

”@iver protection statement draft. Review and take appropriate action. } l



8ECTION L 2_pacE N0,

Report from Sheriff’s office. Listen and take appropriate action.
4, Dog ordinance. Listen and take appropriate action.
-2-

W

5. Humboldt County Public Health Department presentation on needle exchage
programs. Review and take appropriate action.
6. Future agenda requests

VI. Event Announcements and Board General Comments

VII. Adjournment

Postings of this Agenda are at the Humboldt County Library, McKinleyville Branch,
the office of the McKinleyville Community Services District office; electronic
agendas are sent to the Mad River Union, and forwarded to all Board members
and interested members of the public,



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIC
Water Task Force gECTION-E-‘i@.. PAGE NO.

July 31, 2018 2-4 pm

HBMWD Office — 828 7" Street, Eureka

WATER TASK FORCE

The Water Task Force (WTF) is an ad-hoc advisory group comprised of two
representatives from HBMWD and two representatives from each of the District’s wholesale
customers. One representative is from management and one representative is an elected
official. Alternates may also be present. The purpose of the Task Force is to work with,
and provide input to, HBMWD on important matters affecting the District or the regional
water system. The adopted Purpose Statement is attached.

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

2. OVERVIEW OF WATER TASK FORCE (given new members)

3. IMPACTS OF MARIJUANA CULTIVATION IN MAD RIVER WATERSHED
a) Overview of regulatory program to address adverse effects
b) Discussion re: ideas/actions to address in Mad River watershed including financial
support to CDFW Enforcement Team

4. WATER RESOURCE PLANNING
a. Brief introduction and background (given new Task Force members)

https://www.hbmwd.com/water-resource-planning

b. Status report re: progress on top-tier water use options:

i. Local sales
ii. Transport/transfer
ii. Instream flow

Pt



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water Districd 1o\ T4} paceNo. |

| o

Water Task Force
Purpose Statement

COMPOSITION

The Water Task Force is an ad hoc advisory group composed of the
following representatives:

a. The Board President and one management representative from the
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD)

b. one Board/Council representative from each of the District’s wholesale
Municipal Customers as follows:

City of Arcata

City of Blue Lake

City of Eureka

Fieldbrook Community Services District

Humboldt Community Services District

Manila Community Services District

g. McKinleyville Community Services District

X WL

c. One management representative from each of the District’'s wholesale
Industrial Customers (if applicable to matter at hand.)

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Task Force is to work with HBMWD to consider and/or
evaluate matters of a regional and significant nature within HBMWD'’s
jurisdiction. Examples of such matters may include;

A) Consideration of new, larger-scale water marketing or sales
opportunities;

B) Consideration of new safe drinking water regulations or other
regulatory requirements which may trigger significant new treatment
requirements;

C) Consideration of Special Facility additions to HBMWD’s system which
are of regional interest; and

D) Consideration of important service or pricing provisions during
wholesale contract renewals.

E) Consideration of other matters as deemed necessary.

The Task Force-is advisory in nature and shall have no decision-making
authority.



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water DistricdecTion £4{}; paGE NO._

Water Task Force
Purpose Statement

ACTIVITIES
Typical activities in which the Task Force may be involved with include:

A) defining important issues and questions which should be addressed;

B) evaluating engineering, economic, environmental, legal or general policy
considerations (whichever are relevant for the issue under consideration);

C) preparing reports and recommendations to each of the participating
agencies’ governing bodies regarding particular decisions/actions prior to
HBMWD's final consideration of such decision/action;

D) preparing recommendations as to the cost and/or revenue sharing
mechanisms which should be included in new or modified wholesale
water contracts.

OPERATION

The Task Force will be moderated by the HBMWD. General staff support and
coordination will also be provided by HBMWD.

Meetings will be scheduled by HBMWD as needed at HBMWD’s Eureka
office. Meeting agendas will be prepared by HBMWD (with input from any
Task Force member), and will be distributed and posted at least three days in
advance of the meeting.

Representation of at least one formally appointed task force member by a
majority (5) of the task force agencies constitutes a quorum. Each agency
participating in the task force has one vote which may be cast by either of its
formally appointed members. Actions of the Task Force must be approved
on the basis of majority vote, provided a quorum is present.



-
SECTIONZ-_pAGENO._ | __

To: Board of Directors

From: Samantha Ryan

Date: August 9, 2018

Subject: Potential Peninsula Community Services District (PCSD) Retail Water Service Transfer

3 sfe sfe ok sk o sfe ofe she s she sk o sk ok sk ofe sk s sfe sk ofe o sk o she sk o ok sk she sk sk sk sk sk sk ke ok ok sk she ofe e e e ok sk sk ok sk skoskeofe sk sk sk skl ok

Background:

On November 7% 2017, Measure Z was passed, creating the Peninsula Community Services District (PCSD).
A key element of the financial viability of the new PCSD requires them to assume responsibility of the retail
water customers and related infrastructure currently existing within the new PCSD boundaries from
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD). An agreement between PCSD and HBMWD is needed
for this transfer of assets. Staff is requesting guidance from the Board regarding the agreement the District
should pursue given HBMWD’s investments in infrastructure and capital replacement revenue from
customers within the new PCSD boundaries. These investments and revenues are described below.

Investments in Infrastructure:

In 2012, HBMWD applied for and was awarded a FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant' to replace old and
deteriorating Techite pipes located on Old Navy Base Road, Lincoln Avenue, Bay Street, and Lindstrom
Avenue. The total project cost to replace these lines exceeded $4.5M. Of the total cost, $2.8M (61%) was
grant funded and the remaining $1.7M? (39%) was funded through Advanced Charges to the District’s Muni

customers.

All of the replaced pipes on Bay Street and Lindstrom Avenue can be specifically allocated to the customers
of the newly formed PCSD:

TOTAL PORTION FUNDED PERCENT OF
PROJECT BY MUNIS MUNI FUNDING

Bay St & Lindstrom Ave - Pipe $ 630,317 $242,722 14 %
Expense

0Old Navy Base Rd. & Lincoln Ave - $ 1,688,111 $ 650,058 37%
Pipe Expense

Unallocated Expenses* $2,227,135 $ 857,625 49%
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 4,545,563 $ 1,750,405 100%

*Unallocated Expenses are difficult to separate because they are not categorized by specific location (engineering, permitting, administration and
construction costs such as mobilization and traffic control).

Capital Replacement Revenue from Customers:

HBMWD has been collecting capital replacement charges via the monthly retail water bills since
FY2009/10. As of August 2018, $113,423 will have been collected from the customers being transferred to

PCSD.

1 FEMA-1731-DR-CA, Project #0035, FIPS #023-91000
281,750,405 allocated: $1,220,911 Construction Expenses, $529,494 Engineering Expenses



SECTION S PAGENO.___ 2

Discussion:

There are several factors to consider when potentially transferring retail water customers and infrastructure
to PCSD

e The amount of the funds to be requested from PCSD

e The means/timeframe to collect these funds

First, the amount to request from PCSD needs to be determined. The chart below shows different options
that could be pursued by HBMWD. The factors taken into consideration include the pipe infrastructure, the
resources it took to install the infrastructure®, and the capital replacement revenue previously collected from
customers within the new PCSD area.

14% of PCSD Capital
1 PCSD Allocated Unallocated Replacement Total Request to
Expenses PCSD
Expenses Revenue
Option A $242,722 $242,722
Option B $242,722 $120,067 $362,789
Option C $242,722 <-$113,423> $129,299
Option D $242,722 $120,067 <-$113,423> $249,366

Next, the terms of payment from PCSD needs to be determined. Considerations include any funds PCSD is
able to contribute at the onset of the transfer, the timeframe required to recoup the costs (given the current
capital replacement charges), and whether HBMWD is going to be requested to perform administrative tasks
for PCSD. Based on these factors, staff finds five options to be viable:

1. Payment in full at the time of asset transfer.
No payment at time of transfer, instead HBMWD continues to collect capital replacement revenue
until funds are recouped.

3. Partial payment at time of transfer, HBMWD retains the capital replacement revenue until funds are
fully recouped.

4. PCSD makes set payments over a specified timeframe (for example $249,366 over five years =
$4,156/month).

5. Another alternative suggested by the Board.

Staff Recommendation:

Of the many options listed above, staff recommends that the Board approve a dollar amount and which
payment plans staff could take into negotiations with PCSD. During negotiations, if PCSD counters with yet
another option, staff would bring that offer back to the Board for further discussion.

3 14% of the unallocated expenses based on Bay Street and Lindstrom Avenue pipe expense being 14% of the total
expense for the project.



Engineering



uoRelodio) apeI0 @

SSRHIARDY [V LAl ¥SYL

Lo | ebeg

SUISSIN @ & NOMOUUEWEY SESE  MOY30(@AS] EMOY mmmmmen

oM Butewey) [2anu)

VOM EMOY EEEEEEE  HOUT O (8457 BUUPWOY  me—

dnues|g pue ispyaung

SJEOY wzgamw

Em» wmw Je uonei0isay pue Bupeif Buiy

adojs ,_mcm_u UBLIBM 1€ {0100 UOJSOIR [Bul EISU}
: PEOY ¥8e.) UBLEM 3ABd YANEY

dnueetsy pus uonEICISSY ' GMINEH ‘8119021 Au

0w W v'n

95BUd UOISZIION | AMNEH "V B1-By-40

edig 3dgH jsaL ainssaig
ey abuer (1

i odidIdip
add

odid i 7

AR T

wadmes |gz-

Buss0s0 JoNy PEN_QMINEH ‘8L190-Z1

6uueg 7@ 12 —_— —_— g
PieA SHO 18 euy ucpueqe pus deg : S
881D USLBA UO BU] Uopueqe pue deg w
E6+ZZ "EIS A pUB UMOpINYS S
[+
£6+2Z Uen o) &a OAd IEISU) E. 9
00+0L W 91 6} adid DA IS} puB houes L s
€6+22 €15 U 80 MBU 10} m_uﬁ“.m.m..vm- 8
EB+ZE "E18 U] olL Aplpog 8
[
00+01 "B Ui & Mo 10 aBARDXY z
0040} =I5 U AL afbpog 0
: H : uopoaLuod Biaqpung e aof
61591 PUB SUORINOD € AMNEH '21-190-E) A — -

BLPOZL]  81-100-2h | %0

81400-4t!

8119014 | %0

BHR00L| 8119060 {%0

8110080
9119050 ! _ 810040 {%0_

i vei-Bnv-zo| 1

! vaLunr-gz| vai-unrsz|%001
<$.§_.i_ vaL-unrpt {5004
| vaL-idv-0e ! vaL-ity-+z %00l

“Bldesiz! 9i-des-lz {%0
8)-d850z;

81420-50| %0

veLnr-og (%001

81-dos-02 | %0

21-dos6l|  8k-deg-6l %0 m
g1-des-g _ a1-deg-g1 [0
audoszt)  gidesal %o

a1-dog-zy. |

81-Bv-20 | %0

.2.9&5_ vl m;:a %004
veInrgl ) ¥ 8LANr-0L | %001

| v8i-unrgi _ <w—.c=_..mr 19600}

lllla

819020

81-190-£0 %0
8119020 | %0

8190-10]  81700-10}%0

g1-des9z|  8)-des-9z (%0

Eaumé: 81-ds5-g) %0

8oz 150
Tnmm.vw %0
814551 190

a1-8nv-6z|  gy-Bnv-62 %o
a1-bmy-gz|  g1-Bnv-ez %0
e.a_.a.m& J81-Bnv-sz %0

vELnr-La

v8Linr-zz %001

!ii,l

nzcwmo pue JsIyouUng _ 0Ll

sietod mzm>w oSLv

Piek SS9 Je uopeicises pue Bupes6 jlewd | oyl

qS ¥8910 UaLem ® _o...Eeu uojsose _m,E sy “ mn:.<

peay 0010 UoLBM 91Ed Yaled ﬁ gzuy

oo e wa s
Kaneq scid
Wewidinb3 azgqop

edid 34QH 1581 enssaud | 0oL
seidepy s6uen FeIsul | OLALY
adid jaupue ; 052LY

edid moin | ozzyy

nsmwo J0190puog g _ oLz
adid I Pue 1:a | 0L0LY

ok peograq pLe o | 0EDIY
M W ape9 pue ._m.o_u_ c~o—<

pretgyo e o uopueqE pue %o | oozy
48010 usEM :o ou :oﬂ:mnm pue nmc o8y
8+- "EIG O puE umopInyg i 094LY

ucqoas edid mau Ise) pue ysnid _ 080y

8+cz U Bp o .om_mui.__m_m_.__..uﬁ yauesy | 001y
00+04 1 9 0) ckd DA UEISU] PUR YauBIL | 0204Y
£6+2Z €18 Ul e Mau 10} 2w>muxm i 090V
€642z Bs U AL slouod | ovory

00+01 "8IS U1 BIL PUB UMOPIAYS | 0SZLY
00+0} "BIS L) 37 M3 10} 2jeAEDXT , 050LY
8,,2 BIS Ul 3L eoupod | OvZLY

:gumccco m._U.DH —_—m ' mu_?_mm ;ng negsuy| ~ [vi:]9A"3

n-__ann__u u.!..—z ‘l g!n—.—

| 819072 YaI-idv-z %0 6y vzh
I 90 oo aedwon  |uogeang  |uogeing
8107 Joqn | 810 190190 - | 8102 | 8102 1snbimy | IZEN usiud ueig o Buueway | eubuo suieN Ayagoy a1 Aumov]
501 81-Bny-20 _ noAeT anpayag ajssern Buissou0 Joary pep

] onNz9w Jﬂ\\ﬂ/zo_._umw



sEcTIONS_| . paGeE NO. |-

NCRA COMMERCIAL LICENSE

THIS COMMERCIAL LICENSE (“License”) is entered into as of the 15 day of July, 2018 by and
between the NORTH COAST RAILROAD AUTHORITY, a legislatively created state agency
(“Licensor™), and, HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, a California

Municipal Corporation (“Licensee™).

Premises

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein Licensor hereby Licenses to Licensee, and
Licensee Licenses from Licensor, the real property and any improvements thereon located near
the Cities of; Arcata, County of Humboldt, State of California (“Premises”) consisting of a 57 x .
25" area of land located at APN 504-201-004, together with a non-exclusive access area
approximately 550’ x 20" located along the Kobel/Annie Mary Branch Lead, on or near 7270 West
End Road, consisting of land for the purpose of installing and maintaining an electrical
switchgear facility with surrounding housing and fencing, and access, as depicted on Exhibit A,
attached to this License and incorporated into it by this reference.

Effective Date
This License shall take effect on uly 15, 2018 (“Effective Date™), and supersedes any prior License

existing between the parties or their predecessors.

Term
This License shall be for a of term fifty (50) years (“License Term”) from the Fffective Date, and
shall automatically renew for successive five (5) year terms thereafter, as provided in Section 11

hereof, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

Termination for Rail Transit Activities

For the purposes of this License, “Rail Transit Activities” means that Licensor requires the
premises for the actual physical construction of railroad bedding, tracks, and related
improvements needed or required by Licensor for the restoration of railroad transportation
services and infrastructure. Either party may terminate this License by giving a sixty (60)
calendar months written notice. Licensor may require Licensee to remove any or all of Licensee’s
Alterations upon termination, pursuant to the Section 24 below. LICENSEE HEREBY
EXPRESSLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO RECEIVE BENEFITS UNDER
FEDERAL AND STATE UNIFORM RELOCATION ACTS (UNITED STATES CODE, SECTION
7260, ET SEQ.) AS A RESULT OF LICENSOR'S USE OR POSSESION OF ANY PORTION OF

THE PREMISIS.

/%MWﬂr@:M

Licensee

1. Use
The Premises shall be used by Licensee solely and exclusively for installing and maintaining an

electrical switchgear facility with surrounding housing and fencing, and access, as specified on
Exhibit “A” (“permitted Use™). Licensee shall not use the Premises for any other use other than
the Permitted Use without Licensor's prior written consent, which consent may be withheld by
Licensor in its sole discretion.

Restriction on Use

File # NCRA-KAMBranch-1001 . 1
License — Humboldt Bay Mlml(:lpal Water stmcl



SECTION_]\ }) ,PAGE NO._2--

E Captions. All captions and headings in this Lease are for the purposes of reference and
convenience and shall not limit or expand the provisions of this Lease.

h. Third Party Beneficiaries. The Indemnities specified in Section 9 who are not
expressly parties to this Lease shall be deemed third party beneficiaries under this Lease
for purposes of enforcing any rights to indemnification and insurance granted in Sections
14,15, 16, and 17 of this Lease, and shall be entitled to seek attorney’s fees and costs as
provided in Section 29 above and dispute arising from the enforcement of said rights.

i Brokers. Licensor and Licensee are separately responsible for payment of any broker's
commission or finder's fee incurred by that party's engagement or acceptance of the
services of a broker or agents by said party. Licensor and Licensee agree to indemnify,
defend and hold the other party harmless from and against any claims and suits made hy
any broker, agent or other person claiming a commission or other form of compensation
against the other party by virtue of having dealt with Licensor or Licensee, 2s the case
may be, with regard to this Lease.

§. Counterparts. This Lease may be entered into in counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original but both of which rogether shall be deemed a single agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or have caused to be executed, this
Lease on the day and year first above written.

Licensor: Licensee:

North Coast Railroad Authority Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
828 7 Street
Eureka, CA 95501

By o }‘W %T;S\/ By: m“’"
Mitch Stogner Executive Directdr NCRA Print Name:_Sher) WD

Ticle: P¥ esident -
Dare:__1-240~ \6 Date. _ =18 - (¥

Name: J. Briace. Rupp

Tiﬂt:_g_ﬁxt&fagfl[@éu&(
- Dae: 2-(B-78

“If Licensee is a corporation, two corporate officers must sign on behalf of the corporation as Jollows. (1) the chatrman of the board,
president or vice-president, and (2) thesecreravy, assistant secretary, chief financial officer, or assistant treasurer

File ¥ NCRA KAMBranch-100] . 18
License ~ Humboldt Bay Municspal Water District



EDMUND G. BROWN JR. * MARK S. GHILARDUCCI

GOVERNOR 7 SECTION’- Q’ I C DIRECTOR
C al OES 2enm PAGENO, |

QOVERNOR'S OFFICE
OF EMERGENLY SERVICES

July 23, 2018

Mr. John Friedenbach HBMWD, AU -3 2018

General Manager

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
P.O. Box 95

Eureka, CA 95502

Subject: Project Subapplication Waiting List
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program
FEMA-4308-DR-CA, February 2017 Storms
Cal OES PJ0014, HBMWD Collector Mainline Redundancy Project
Subapplicant: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, FIPS: 023-91000

Dear Mr. Friedenbach:

The California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) received and reviewed your
subapplication requesting funds from the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP). Cal OES has
placed your grant subapplication on a waiting list to be submitted to the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) if funding becomes available.

Cal OES is authorized to discuss your subapplication only with the Authorized Agent, Primary
Contact or Alternate Contact. If the subapplicant wants Cal OES to communicate with anyone other
than the listed contacts, such as a consultant, we need written authorization on official letter head or

by email.

We appreciate the time and effort you expended applying for this grant and we encourage you to
continue to apply for future hazard mitigation projects.

Should you have any questions, please contact Matt Medland, Hazard Mitigation Grants Specialist, at
916-767-2974 or matt.medland@caloes.ca.gov.

Sincerely,
==
Ron Miller

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Manager

_geesner SRR, 3650 SCHRIEVER AVENUE ®* MATHER, CA 95655
( @ ) RECOVERY SECTION ® HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM
A Traview oot PHONE: (916) 845-8200 * FAX: .(916) 845-8388

www.CalOES.ca.cov




SECTION _;ILQL PAGE NO. _J____

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO BOX 95 » EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-2918

FAX 707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EMAIL OFFICE@HBMWD.COM

Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHER!I WOO, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
BARBARA HECATHORN, DIRECTOR
MICHELLE FULLER, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER LOCAL MATCH FUND
JOHN FRIEDENBACH
COMMITMENT LETTER

June 27, 2018

California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services
Hazard Mitigation Grants Program Unit

3650 Schriever Avenue

Mather, CA 95655

RE: DR-4344-0040 Subapplication Funding Match Commitment Letter

Dear State Hazard Mitigation Officer:

As part of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program process, a local funding match of at least 25% is
required. This letter serves as Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District’s commitment to meet
the local match fund requirements for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program.

SOURCE OF NON-FEDERAL FUNDS: LOCAL OTHER PRIVATE STATE
AGENCY AGENCY NON-PROFIT AGENCY
FUNDING FUNDING FUNDING FUNDING
< O O O
NAME OF FUNDING SOURCE: | HBMWD |
FUNDS AVAILABILITY DATE: I June 27, 2018 |

PROVIDE EXACT MONTH/DATE/YEAR OF AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

FEDERAL SHARE AMOUNT REQUESTED: | $2,742,750 I
MUST MATCH $ AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SUBAPPLICATION

LOCAL SHARE AMOUNT MATCH: | $914,250 |
MUST EQUAL A MINIMUM OF THE 25% FEDERAL SHARE REQUESTED

FUNDING TYPE: | Cash from municipal customer water rates |

EXAMPLES: ADMINISTRATION, CASH, CONSULTING FEES, ENGINEERING FEES,
FORCE ACCOUNT LABOR, AGENCY PERSONNEL, PROGRAM INCOME, ETC.




SECTIONTL\ ) PAGENO. 2 _ -

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO BOX 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-2918

FAX 707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EMAIL OFFICE(@HBMWD,COM
Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHERI WOO, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER

BARBARA HECATHORN, DIRECTOR A N A L
MICHELLE FULLER, DIRECTOR O i,)\ \ 6/ |

GENERAL MANAGER

JOHN FRIEDENBACH

LOCAL MATCH FUND COMMITMENT LETTER

April 27, 2018

California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services
Hazard Mitigation Grants Program Unit

3650 Schriever Avenue

Mather, CA 95655

RE: DR-4344-0040 Subapplication Funding Match Commitment Letter

Dear State Hazard Mitigation Officer:

As part of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program process, a local funding match of at least 25% is
required. This letter serves as Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District’'s commitment to meet
the local match fund requirements for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program.

SOURCE OF NON-FEDERAL FUNDS: LOCAL OTHER PRIVATE STATE
AGENCY AGENCY NON-PROFIT AGENCY
FUNDING FUNDING FUNDING FUNDING
[ O O [
NAME OF FUNDING SOURCE: | HEMWD |
FUNDS AVAILABILITY DATE: | May.15,2018 |

OVIDE EXA‘(.:TMO‘N{Q/DATE/YEAR OF AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

FEDERAL SHARE AMOUNT REQUESTEDY | $2,686,500 |
MUST MATCH $ AMOUNT}’ROVIDED IN SUBAPPLICATION

LOCAL SHARE AMOUNT MATCH: $895,500 / |
—WIOST EQUAL A MINIMUM OF THE 25% FEDERAL SHARE REQUESTED

FUNDING TYPE: | Cash from municipal customer water rates |

EXAMPLES: ADMINISTRATION, CASH, CONSULTING FEES, ENGINEERING FEES,
FORCE ACCOUNT LABOR, AGENCY PERSONNEL, PROGRAM INCOME, ETC.

If additional federal funds are requested, an additional local match fund commitment letter will
be required.



SECTION_ )| €. PaGE NO.__[ .
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO Box 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESsex 707-822-2918

FAX 707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EMAIL OFFICE(@HBMWD.COM
Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHERI WOO, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
BARBARA HECATHORN, DIRECTOR
MICHELLE FULLER, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

PROJECT MAINTENANCE LETTER

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
PO Box 95
Eureka, CA 95502-0095

RE: DR-4353-0083 Project Subapplication

Dear State Hazard Mitigation Officer:

This is to confirm that Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD) is committed to
perform the necessary maintenance for the entire useful life of this project (50+ years) once
completed. The Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District is allocating an annual budget of $250
per year which will allow maintenance to occur as needed to ensure the items that remain after
demolition of the single line crossing, including new valves, remain in good repair and
operational.

ENTITY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE: | Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

PAST MAINTENANCE TASKS INVOLVED:

HBMWD has inspected the single line crossing throughout the life of the structure
approximately once every 10 years at an estimated cost of $10,000 per inspection, meaning
that maintenance costs before mitigation averaged $1,000 per year.

FUTURE MAINTENANCE TASKS INVOLVED:

The new valves that would be installed would be placed on the District’s annual valve
inspection schedule. It is estimated that as a part of this annual inspection, 5 hours per year
($250/year at $50/hour) would be spent inspecting, exercising, and repairing the new valves.

| FUTURE MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE: | Annually |

| FUTURE COST OF MAINTENANCE: | $250 Annually \

| SOURCE OF FUTURE MAINTENANCE FUNDS: | Municipal Water Customer Rates |

-



SECTION J[€._,PAGE NO. e

Please contact me at (707) 443-5018 or friedenbach@hbmwd.com with any questions.

Sincerely,

John Friedenbach
General Manager



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WE%'%TQGH? 2.

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO B0X 95 « EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-2918

FAX707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EMAIL OFFICE@HBMWD.COM
Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHERI WOO, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
BARBARA HECATHORN, DIRECTOR
MICHELLE FULLER, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

LOCAL MATCH FUND COMMITMENT LETTER

August 16, 2018

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
PO Box 95
Eureka, CA 95502-0095

RE: DR-4353-0083 Subapplication Funding Match Commitment Letter
Dear State Hazard Mitigation Officer:

As part of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program process, a local funding match of at least 25% is
required. This letter serves as Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District’s (HBMWD) commitment
to meet the local match fund requirements for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program.

SOURCE OF NON-FEDERAL FUNDS: LOCAL OTHER PRIVATE STATE
AGENCY AGENCY NON-PROFIT AGENCY
FUNDING FUNDING FUNDING FUNDING
X ] L] O
NAME OF FUNDING SOURCE: Municipal customer water rates supplemented

with loan funds as needed

FUNDS AVAILABILITY DATE: | September 1, 2018 B

FEDERAL SHARE AMOUNT REQUESTED: | $2,039,250 I

LOCAL SHARE AMOUNT MATCH: | $679,750 |

FUNDING TYPE: ] Municipal customer water rates ]




SECTION') |, PAGE NO. Ea

If additional federal funds are requested, an additional local match fund commitment letter will
be provided.

Please contact me at 707-443-5018 or friedenbach@hbmwd.com with questions.
Sincerely,

John Friedenbach
General Manager



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHERI WOO, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
BARBARA HECATHORN, DIRECTOR
MICHELLE FULLER, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

PROJECT MAINTENANCE LETTER

August 16, 2018

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
PO Box 95
Eureka, CA 95502-0095

RE: DR-4344-0370 Project Subapplication

Dear State Hazard Mitigation Officer:

secTioN | £ pacE No...

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 SEVENTH STREET, PO B0X 95 * EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 ESSEX 707-822-2918
FAX 707-443-5731 707-822-8245

EMAIL OFFICE@HBMWD.COM
Website: www.hbmwd.com

This is to confirm that Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD) is committed to
perform the necessary maintenance for the entire useful life of this project (50-years) once
completed. The Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District is allocating an annual budget of
$10,000 which will allow maintenance to occur as needed to ensure the R.W. Matthews Dam

Spillway remains in good repair and operational.

ENTITY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE: [ Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

PAST MAINTENANCE TASKS INVOLVED: HBMWD currently performs annual
inspection and maintenance consisting of
an inspection the entire spillway floor and
walls and implementation of repairs as
required. The annual inspection also
consists of mapping and tracking all cracks
and repairs in our Geographic Information
System (GIS). We also have the floors and
walls of the spillway surveyed every other
year to make sure that the walls or floors

are not moving.

s i s



section. 3\ _pace No. 52

FUTURE MAINTENANCE TASKS INVOLVED: It is anticipated that future inspections and ]
maintenance will largely consist of the

same activities, with any new structures
added to the annual inspection and
maintenance task list.

FUTURE MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE: Annually with topographic surveys
performed biannually.

FUTURE COST OF MAINTENANCE: { $10,000/Annually

SOURCE OF FUTURE MAINTENANCE FUNDS: \ Municipal Water Customer Rates B J

Please contact John Friedenbach, HBMWD General Manager at 707-443-5018 or
friedenbach@hbmwd.com with questions.

Sincerely,

John Friedenbach
General Manager



secTion X paGE NO.

AR e, o e

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 SEVENTH STREET, PO Box 95 ¢« EUREKA, CALIFORNIA 95502-0095
OFFICE 707-443-5018 Essex 707-822-29018

FAX 707-443-5731 707-822-8245
EMAIL OFFICE(@HBMWD.COM
Website: www.hbmwd.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SHERIWQO, PRESIDENT

NEAL LATT, VICE-PRESIDENT

J. BRUCE RUPP, SECRETARY-TREASURER
BARBARA HECATHORN, DIRECTOR
MICHELLE FULLER, DIRECTOR

GENERAL MANAGER
JOHN FRIEDENBACH

LOCAL MATCH FUND COMMITMENT LETTER
August 16, 2018

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
PO Box 95
Eureka, CA 95502-0095

RE: DR-4344-0370 Subapplication Funding Match Commitment Letter

Dear State Hazard Mitigation Officer:

As part of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program process, a local funding match of at least 25% is
required. This letter serves as Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District’s (HBMWD) commitment
to meet the local match fund requirements for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program.

SOURCE OF NON-FEDERAL FUNDS: LOCAL OTHER PRIVATE STATE
AGENCY AGENCY NON-PROFIT AGENCY
FUNDING FUNDING FUNDING FUNDING
X O] L] ]
NAME OF FUNDING SOURCE: Municipal customer water rates supplemented

with loan funds if needed

FUNDS AVAILABILITY DATE: | September 1, 2018

PROVIDE EXACT MONTH/DATE/YEAR OF AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

FEDERAL SHARE AMOUNT REQUESTED: | $5,000,000

MUST MATCH $ AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SUBAPPLICATION

LOCAL SHARE AMOUNT MATCH: ‘ $1,666,667

MUST EQUAL A MINIMUM OF THE 25% FEDERAL SHARE REQUESTED

FUNDING TYPE: | Cash from Municipal customer water rates




secion ) ¥ pace No._j_[‘_-_

[ S

If additional federal funds are requested, an additional local match fund commitment letter will
be provided.

Please contact John Friedenbach, General Manager at 707-443-5018 or
friedenbach@hbmwd.com with questions.

Sincerely,

John Friedenbach
General Manager



SNV 3215 TINd
m lw) _”l~ NO HONI & STnsvaw
Sm UYd T1VD5 JIHAWED
awn
o= . . ! (FTITEVITR0CaT NOIDIS V3D SIIVAS T .
= oY (3715 ¥3dvd L1 X 41) ,0-08 3 b - 19 9 S SONIGIING YO QAUINDIY SIIVAS DNDIUVA u._.n_zunw..us uzOnumnm.w‘:z oL
8 > (3215 ¥3dvd  ¥E X, 7T) ,0-0F = b 13 TWIS .
_—— — — = T (VITTTEVL L R0LgN NOIDTS ¥3d) S3ovdS
W NV1d 31IS d3SOd0OuUd . |- T ¥ € e L SONIGTHNG YOd ATVINGTE STOVIS DNDIIV TTISSTOV 40 YIGWNN TVEOL
ZEITAVLOFOIES
cm WOTIE ‘A00) DNINOZ VAVIYY 40 ALID H3d) "Su3 +1 HLIM SLO1 504 GYINDIY 1 STOVAS DNINEVA TIHHIA IO
9 < %05 40 WAWINIW ¥ "S¥V2 01-€ HUIM S107 04 AIVINDIY St 533vdS DNDIEYA TTIIHIA 40 %600+ 10 WNWINIW Y
o
zZm iiﬂ-!.;u y Y 14 05 005 ¥34 L :WnWhYW
2 “\/ et SO
! | BTV SFO9ES MO,
T00-19+-L0S \ \ VIV YOO U3d GIINGIY STHWAS INDISYA 30 HITWNN
\ .- _ \
v — \ \ (BIETS NOIDE3 3002 ONINOZ VIVIUY 40 ALD ¥3d) J0IuaHL
™ - o \ .. ___ NOLDVY¥S ¥O 533¥d5 IDIHIA OT H3V2 ¥0d A3TIAOYd 3T TIVHS I0¥dS DNDINYE TIDOH0LOW INO 20 WAWINIW Y
X 4 \ =7 4 \ 101 IHL N) 53OVdS DNDISYA FTDIHIA IHL, OL SS300¥ AAINOYd
8| @ i e 1 - AVHL STISIY 3WVS THLAZ GISSTOV NV IUNDNLLS ¥ 40 IINVEIND NIVW THL SVAN GIV01 ALLNIINIANGY
[} ! - . oy L \ SIDvds DNPINV IDAYOLOW JQIACY4 TIVHS STIVES ONDIYY TTDIHIA TUOW UO OF HLIM 10T DNDIYVE ¥
m 8 ! = \u%al \ IS2IVAS TDAIUOLOW 3O UITWIN WNWINIW
Rl j o 8 .
= S\ - NOISIADY STH.L WOUH ONLLIINSE SINIWAOTIATA SHL
23 i - \ boo-152-L0§ TIV 20 435N TIV OLTIEVHYAY 32 TIVHS SIOVIS FHL ‘S3O¥dS TUOW YO ¥NO4 TYLOL SINIWIHINOITY QANITWOS
2|3 W —~ \ \ JHLNIHM K13LVVEIS GALAWOD SIS SNOIIVA THL YO SINIWHINGTS THL IO WNS FHL J0 INDUId
2 AN ] Nisva/ dNod X \ £ 0L g>NAEYE 38 AWV INFWIHINDIE WAWINIW 3HL ‘SINTWIN3AIT DNINIOIGY OML YO 'INTWITT3AIA
eIzP ! f — 3oVNIviQ \ \ \ FIONIS ¥ NI 535N TVLLNIQISTYNON THOW UO OML 404 AIQIAON TUV SIILITOVS SNDIEVA LNIOT IHTHM
m| e OISR —— X SIS INYNLIAIINW
" 5|89 ! ! $o st N \ \
vl ! ! ] (535vds DNINHYd = iGI50doNd vIoL
ﬂ W M VTo-152-L0S 1 ! \ 31DIHIA 30 9605) (535¥dS 31IIHIA OF AYTAZ YO VS 1)
m \ \ EE F4:QTUINDIY SIOVAS TIAFYINDIY SIDOVES TTIOYOLOW WAWINIW
g m m - 3 b TDAS WIWINIW ¢ TTIOGGRT VIRl e VLAOL
S|z3 [T S— — e e e e e e e o v e e e, . I OIOU WIBL S :q3UINDIY STOVAS DNDINVE WNWIXVW
2 = 7/ [} a a9 s mar v sy N\ ++:GIYINDIY STNGS £2:02YINDIY STOVYS DNINUVE WAWINIW
m | 3 BT
. t
4 T . ] (W) S3IVYS DNDIYYA
55 / TTTTIF D~ = oz K ety e || oorumrune
£ ! N == . R £10-152-L0S = 14 05 608/24 BS 620
H b ! b\ ) 2 SE—
4 & ! b N A o ._.._VE AR e S TN
5 . . - v
jula] / A . N 8i53vds CNIW) STOVAS DNDIIVA oNigiing
gn __ceviaans A =2\ LR SRR,
122 .8, TIV13d N¥1d 3015 335 ! i \ SI>VdS
e f 3 I ! 3 3, \ IS DNDIYV 14 05
IE I A |/ \ aMINDIY a3uind3Y TvIoL oNIqNG | # oNIGTING
20 ! w ! WioL WI0L
m > ! % i e
] W i E { .. ) 22
28 / i e (928 S SONIGND) SISATYNY DNDIUVd
>
a
& % GTvds DAY S HTBI0Nd WIAL
\ IIHIA 30 %05 (STIVdS TVIHIA 0T AUIAT 804 IOV O
s X  :QTHINDAY SOVAS 5:aVINDIY STOV45 IDIOYOLOW WNWINIW
= N\ TG WAWINIW e asey VIOL
0$ € T3040t WIol 4T1:Q38INDIY SIVAS DDV WOWIXYW
5\ o [GIUINDIY STvds O :GIYINDIY STOVAS DNIIHYE WRWINIW
kA \ nmu?iv umwwm.\m onDIgYy
R v (RN SvaS DRDIYY. e | b DONIGUNG
,/ ,.W ... Ve = {4 DS 00R/14 B3 1’61
\ 5
E= Ry N 5T SIS DDV
\ o i53vas a3 Da vy 43w | €ONIQING
\ ' 8= 14 05 198/14 Os ¥B'HT
| e
ZE\ SRR ma.xszu S35vds ONDINY
) . = 14 b5 505/14 Bs oobe sobT
Y. \ £:52oves CNIW) ST3vdS DNIIEYd TONIaTINg
THrE > o €= 14 55 508/1d bs ooYe
i i ot s,
5w Eis s isTavas i Svis DbV ars | LoNIGUNE
§odz2 \ e = 14 D5 008/4d BS LTL
Zn 2o (- \ sadVAS
i Em \ DI DNINUVd 14 DS
2 en o ., \ a3Y¥INOIY aIYINDIY VIOL SNIZTING | # DNIGNG
2 =g T e Y 1 | viIoL TviOoL
Soxm Lo Yo | \
s %% / dl \ 1C0pt
8 22 of o] ]s]] \ __ (t2g’ez’s SONIATING) SISATYNY DNDIUVd
z B ol b ol
“
|

i
7~oN 30w BT Noloas

UORLZUOYING UILM SNOISTA DY NVETNT 3NoYUM 1afod 12430 AuR 10§ Led 10 3Oym ) pIsnal 3q 10U [|2ys PUR SNDISTA DUIES NVIIAT IO Audoid ay3 5] ‘aapases d jo uese ‘waiy UB|SIp pue 523p| AYL PUR WAUNDOP SIY1 SINIWNIOA 40 I5N3Y




zQ Ry AL .
S _H— YVE TS IHaVID .
i B e s &
ALY : «7a DNIGTING 7IVL3IA NVid 311S a3s0doyd
sz :
g
an |
52 %, SNIGTINg _ o _
& _ o .
: 7 VHdSY (3
s ! i | ams@ | 40 30A3 XOUddY .._IJ“ c
B4 ! : . i . aNILNo 1 [
izl M ; ) ' S3DVdS DNV - 2004 | )
EEE + : | Dualexns y (O oo | A |z
783 SommoyAuy ol By - E==Al 35VHd S| T t3svhe i |a
2 o 'w yooaLn o o i ] =
E g2 & ! < & .“:ﬁ D5y | L O.. ENRIALIO0S ! -
£33 HE [ C - = NOIDWYLXE /
ER(Co A= o v, g 11 AUVIIIXOY \\ i
42|20 7 : e FUNLNA () !
T 4 / \ AYLN Mgy~e Semal .
-l M o Py MANSNI SR ™ | e 1Y
m MM _.. o Z_<<< LI ide ...ﬂ v _.OI.ON
gl g WO/~ O g o
zg7 s iy
£z 1 LNINd1OO0d
i o INOWWILXT |
Zm | Aayrixnvia)
23 \ g X
22 66 Wd 9 ¥3d NOLLYDOT i 1 3 —vauve
c 2 S9L Y0 059 ¥3d |/ j —0-07 & a3y
29 AVM 40 LHDIYN dMwWaH ,0f A Sy =
3 2 ! 1NNR4LOO0Z ; / =
M wn \ .__,_ L 4 uz-n-—-:m [uO~§ .__ n.v
g ) i a3aN3wWY 17 g
£ Pl o e
\ \ ou._ m w 3 g @
I { & cC
i (ayn> HsMd) § =
1 ! | vM3ais H o
i . 3LTWNOD v s
\ H T9ISSINY | Z
/ S (N) AT3SYHd z fa}
1 : \ £ 2
! H (53dvds +) s 5
T / |/ DNDIuvd £
i3t € i \ |/ IvHdsy &
W.um HE _._”.r. AT3svHd SIDVAS
i o ! P i . lq DNDIYYY
920 ! Alg mox.ﬂ
z 3 M DINVL IDVIOLS { e A ] 2 - Al 3 d
5 go ot e f 173 '
3 isd— — S _ 8t
§ 2z 6L
i 1ailon mus_..wla [NolLoas 3
R R s o g
oveb="13 NS INO> . d HIvaLAT et
Yot #14 == p—ata ! 43— g————i—1} ——r
IYMTaNn~ ¥ P \
“dd A_MN ad | L i Ll o43g zs._::_ucg:E?E.u..ﬁ}.fer_&;ou_ofs N:OX ._. Emmn-wmmmumam:s._::cbiguﬁ: “A0M 0 Ut ue te ‘URsay uB|sap pue SERPY IY3 PUT IUBLNDOP SYL ISLNIWNDOG 3O ISNIY




FINANCIAL




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Fund Balances at July 31, 2018

Account Fund Balance at Month End

U.S. BANK ACCOUNTS

- Commercial Account - General Fund Account
- Money Market Account {DWR Contract for SRF Loan)
- Certificate of Deposit (DWR Contract for SRF Reserve)
- CalPERS (UAL} Pension Trust

Subtotal

HUMBOLDT COUNTY:

- Investment Account
- DWFP Reserve (in accordance with Ordinance 16)
- M5RA Reserve (Municipal Supplemental Reserve Account)
- SRF Loan Payment
- ReMat Account
- 1% Tax Account
Subtotal

LA.LF.

Cash on Hand

TOTAL CASH

Less: Encumbrances & Reserves (Funds Dedicated for
Specific Purposes and Projects)
RESTRICTED
Municipal Customers PF2 Prior Year Reconciliation

Year-Ended Restricted Encumbrances per Ordinance 16, Section7.2.7

1% Tax Account
Municipal Customer Adv. Chrg. - Collector 1 Pump Motors

Municipal Customer Adv. Chrg. - LMG Domestic Reservoir Roof
Municipal Customer Adv. Chrg. - Replace Ruth Bunkhouse
Muncipal Customer Adv. Chrg - SCADA System Upgrade
Municipal Customer Adv. Chrg. - Blue Lake/FGCSD River Crossing

Municipal Customer Adv. Chrg. - Surge Tower Replacement
Municipal Customer Adv. Chrg - FEMA HMG - Redundant Pipeline

Municipal Customer Adv Chrg - FEMA HMG - Three Tanks Seismic
Retrofits

OWR Reserve Fund for SRF Loan

DWR Contract Payment for SRF Loan for DWFP (Drinking Water
Filtration Plant-PF1 Charges from Munis)

CalPERS (UAL) Pension Trust

SUBTOTAL RESTRICTED RESERVES (Net Position)

UNRESTRICTED:
Board Restricted:
Paik-Nicely Development
DWFP Reserve
MSRA Reserve (Municipal Supplemental Reserve Account)
PG&E REMAT Deposit
PG&E REMAT Reserve {County Fund)

Unrestricted Reserves

SRF Loan Payment

Municipal Customer Accumulation for Debt Service for US Bank
Ranney & Techite Project Loan Payment

General Fund Reserve

SUBTOTAL UNRESTRICTED RESERVES (Net Position)

Total Net Position

@00

@OeO®

®

® ©

@ 0O O

secnon‘jﬂ%_, PAGENO._/___

AT 7-31-18 AT 7-31-17
207,203.62 957,977.60
163,175.21 161,483.98
547,336.94 547,336.94
655,177.20 0.00

1,572,892.97 1,666,798.52
1,802,284.64 2,787,560.40
234,232.42 230,074.69
428,703.81 422,976.28
95,168.35 48,785.07
273,840.46 16,743.77
773.59 0.00
2,835,003.27 3,506,140.21
1,637.56 1,641.51
650.00 650.00
$ 4,410,183.80 5 5,175,230.24
(34,731.45) (398,281.58)
(40,750.00) 0.00
{773.59) 0.00
0.00 (100,000.00)
0.00 (625,000.00)
{403,365.00) (403,500.00)
0.00 {401,000.00)
0.00 {200,000.00)
0.00 {36,345.00)
(260,245.00) 0.00
{255,000.00) 0.00
(547,336.94) (547,336.94)
(163,175.21) (161,483.98)
(655,177.20) 0.00
(2,360,554.39) (2,872,947.50}
{4,158.00) {4,158.00)
(234,232.42) (230,074.69)
(428,703.81) (422,976.28)
(27,000.00) (27,000.00)
(273,840.46) (16,743.77)
{95,168.35) (48,785.07)
(84.12) (14,954.45)
(986,482.25) (1,537,590.48)
(2,049,629.41) (2,302,282.74)
(4,410,183.80) (5,175,230.24)




SECTION, )31 PAGENO. 2%

aunr - judy 159133 41v1 (1)

9L 90V Ll $§ %L 919'v29'8% eSS0 §  ZE'PSS0L9 $ SLdi3o3y V1oL
9 il % 000'00€ SgEZH'LL G8'ETY 1L (e) @94 JueINsuU0D $$9) ANNIATY LYNTY
LB'OEY'L0S $ %l 222°900°L% 98'SYE'VIY $ 98'SYEviy ¢ SINNIN TVLOL
6E9P'SL %L L08'z8l ZEPe9'TL Zeve9'zlL V1IN
9E'¥bs'Z) %L Z6E'vLL ST 1156'L1 ST LIS'LL aso Y00dga3iA
£6°68€'92 %L 629901 0€'1¥2'02 0 LrL0L asd ITUAATINIOW
8v'L6L'g %01 89102 $9°081°2 90812 as2 viINvIA
1£'692'92 %, £EE'2L0°) 11°886'69 L1'886'69 aso 1aioannH
80°'858'92¢ %L 62Z'6LL'E €£°9/1°€1T geolL'sle WIIHENT 40 ALID
0.'G8Z'G6 $ %L ¥v0'12E' 1S 16°L10'68 $ 167.¥0'68 $ VLVOdY 40 ALID
000% 10/A10# 0$ 000% 000% AVINLSAGN] V101
00'0% i0/AIC# 0$ 000% 000% 1O1M1S1a HOgHYH / TVIHLSNANI
S1dI303d LOVHLINOD 3TVSTTOHM|
67°195°68 $ %L ¥6£'899°L$ LoveL'vZL S L9VLVCL $ 11a3y¥o z 4d vlol
000 %0 000°G28 000 000 SAXVL %l
S1d1303y XVv1|
15°¥£5'89 $ %8I 000'525$ 89'22£'96 $ 89'27E'06 $ SANNIATY TVHINIAD TVLOLENS
¥9'8G5'¥ $ %8l 00005 05Zv8'8s 05'2¥8'8% (39vd LXAN 33S) SNO3NVTIIISIN
80°5£8'6 % 000'0z2 98'%08'2 987082 LYINZY 13N STTVS ¥IMOd
¥L'LEL'YS %SGE 000's22 65°199'6/ 65°/99'6L SNOILYHIO 8 "INIVIN "O4 1OVHINOD dSDH
LLe %0 000'0¢$ L (Y] (1) 1S343INI
SIANNIATY TvHINTD
z6'920'1Z $ %6 ¥6E'8LES £6°L9P'82 $ ¢c6'19v'se $ SITVS MALYM TIVLIH TV.LOLENS
2692012 $ %6 ¥6€'81€S$ £6°191'82 $ c6lov'se $ STTVS "3LVM IW1Td
(z3d VIA SHINOLSND OL AINYNLIY) SLdIFOTH SNOANVITIOSIN|
LI-LE-L LV 139and 139ang 81-1€-L IV S1d1303d
TVLOL ALA 40 % TYLOL ALA AT0r

{%EE'8 - HLNOW T) 810T “TE AINT LV
LDIY1SIT ¥ALYM TYdIDINNIN AYE LTTOGINNH



SECﬂOMJQ?_G_(_, PAGENO. 3 __"

MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPTS

JULY YEAR TO DATE
Administrative
Parking Lot Rent $25.00 $25.00
Employee Telephone 0.00 0.00
Employee Gas 0.00 0.00
Retirees' Reimbursement of Health Insurance Premium 7,561.77 7,561.77
COBRA Vision Ins & Admin Fee - Retiree 236.17 236.17
COBRA Dental Ins & Admin Fee - Retiree 94.65 94.65
Water Processing Fees 30.00 30.00
Hydrant Rental Deposit 0.00 0.00
Meter Instaliations 0.00 0.00
Retail Connection Charge 0.00 0.00
Mainlfine Connection Charge 0.00 0.00
Right of Way Fees 0.00 0.00
Special Event Liability Insurance 0.00 0.00
ACWA/IPIA Retrospective Premium Adjustment 0.00 0.00
ACWA/IPIA Insurance Claim 0.00 0.00
Dividend Check (Principal Life) 277.68 277.68
Bad Debt Recovery 0.00 0.00
Miscellaneous Payments for Copies &/or Postage Costs 1.12 1.12
Diese! Fuel Tax Refund 0.00 0.00
Park Use Fees 75.00 75.00
Sale of Surplus Equipment 0.00 0.00
Sale of Scrap Metal 284.90 284.90
Reimbursement for safety appare! 6.00 6.00
Reimbursement for District Hats 0.00 0.00
Refund of DMV Fees - Lithia 58.00 58.00
Refund - FedEx 2.21 2.21
Ruth Area
Use of Ruth Cabin 90.00 90.00
RLCSD-Water System Permit Fees 0.00 0.00
Ruth Area Water Use Permit 100.00 100.00
Buffer Strip Right of Way License Fee 0.00 0.00
Ruth Buffer Strip PG&E Right of Way Fees 0.00 0.00
Ruth Sale of Merchantable Timber 0.00 0.00
Ruth Sale of Surplus Gravel 0.00 0.00
Don Bridge Lease 0.00 0.00
Miscellaneous
Other 0.00 0.00
Total Miscellaneous Receipts $8,842.50 $8,842.50
OTHER RECEIPTS or GRANTS
CalEMA Blue Lake/Fieldbrook Pipeline Crossing 0.00 0.00
Quagga Grant 2015/16 on behalf of RLCSD* 2,689.18 2,689.18

* Not included in PF2 Credits. No charges were expended by HBMWD.
Claim for expenditures was submitted by HBMWD on behalf of RLCSD.



SECTION_J34_ PAGE NO. _%___
.

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
AT JULY 31, 2018 (1 MONTHS - 8.33%)

JULY YTD TOTAL % OF TOTAL
EXPENSES 7/31/2018 BUDGET BUDGET 7/31/2017
PAYROLL:See next page for detail
Total Compensation $184,350.95 $184,350.95 2,272,615 8% $176,825.06
Taxes/Benefits 317,156.52 317,156.52 1,647,903 19% 116,813.57
TOTAL PAYROLL $501,507.47  $501,507.47 3,920,518 13% $293,638.63
SERVICE & SUPPLY
o&M
Engineering $1,263.00 $1,263.00 75,000 2% $2,924.756
Maintenance & Repairs - General 6,320.79 6,320.79 45,000 14% 8,843.14
Materials & Supplies - General 4,360.86 4,360.86 43,000 10% 0.00
Tools & Equipment - General 2,154.95 2,154.95 5,000 43% 0.00
Safety Equip. & Training - General 250.23 250.23 20,000 1% 0.00
Maintenance & Repairs - TRF 0.00 0.00 13,000 0% 95.00
Materials & Supplies - TRF 0.00 0.00 42,000 0% 0.00
Safety Equip. & Training - TRF 0.00 0.00 2,000 0% 0.00
Lab Services 320.54 320.54 13,000 2% 0.00
Auto Maintenance 3,108.62 3,108.62 40,000 8% 1,596.37
Radio/Comm. Maintenance 783.58 783.58 10,500 7% 512.65
USGS Meter Station 0.00 0.00 7.800 0% 0.00
Ruth Lake License 0.00 0.00 1,500 0% 0.00
A&G
Accounting Services 0.00 0.00 25,000 0% 0.00
Legal 558.00 558.00 28,000 2% 139.50
Professional Services 0.00 0.00 20,000 0% 450.00
Insurance 0.00 0.00 105,000 0% 0.00
Telephone/internet 4,795.76 4,795.76 53,000 9% 4,862.36
Office Building Maintenance 774.10 774.10 16,500 5% 1,301.16
Office Expense 1,252.98 1,2562.96 40,000 3% 3,414.20
IT & Software Maintenance 3,451.38 3,451.38 29,000 12% 0.00
Travel & Conference 434.59 434.59 22,000 2% 36.25
Dues & Subscriptions 978.94 978.94 19,000 5% 665.29
Technical Training 0.00 0.00 14,500 0% 5,188.00
General Manager Training 0.00 0.00 3,000 0% 210.00
Safety Apparel 0.00 0.00 3,000 0% 0.00
County Property Taxes 0.00 0.00 1,100 0% 0.00
Regulatory Agency Fees 4,450.36 4,450.36 114,000 4% 2,962.80
Ruth Lake Programs 0.00 0.00 5,000 0% 0.00
Miscellaneous 2,689.18 2,689.18 11,500 23% 164.37
TOTAL SERVICE/SUPPLIES W/OUT POWER $37,947.84 $37,947.84 827,400 5%  $33,365.84
POWER
Essex Pacific Gas & Electric $54,469.70 $54,469.70 609,094.00 $54,589.75
Fuel For 2 MW Generator 0.00 0.00 0.00
Subtotal Essex Pumping $54,469.70 $54,469.70 609,094.00 9% $54,589.75
All Other Pacific Gas & Electric 5,903.24 5,903.24 71,720 5,348.06
POWER EXPENSE SUBTOTAL $60,372.94 $60,372.94 $680,814 9% $59,937.81
TOTAL SERVICE/SUPPLIES WITH POWER $98,320.78 $98,320.78 $1,508,214.00 7%  $93,303.65
PROJECTS, FIXED ASSETS
& CONSULTING SERVICES $246,703.90 $246,703.90 $8,557,693.00 3% $71,998.71
TOTAL OPERATING $846,532.15 $846,532.15 $13,986,425.00 6% $458,940.99
DEBT SERVICE - SRF LOAN (1) $0.00 $0.00 $547,337.00 0% $0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $846,532.15 $846,532.15 $14,533,762.00 6% $458,940.99
DEBT SERVICE - US Bank $0.00 $0.00 $162,200.00 0% $0.00




~
D

(o]
=
Ll
(O]
2 _ .
00815076 %456 91'690°425- 1+ L05'105- %56 91'690%Z5- [+ 405'105- awoaur 3aN
00°8150Z6'- %256  9re9otzs L¥L0S'10S- wise 91'690°Z5- 1+'105°105 awou) Areupio 19N
_ 00815026 %6 9169025 ¥ L05'105 wise 91'690'25 [¥£05'10S | asuadxg 1ejol
= 00'BIS0Z6' %56 91690525 1505108 %LS6 91'690425 1105105 | SLJINZE IIAOTINT T SINVIVS 12101
m 96’1 LT6EY'] %9 66'S0SHIE  60vC6Z0E %E96 66'S0SH1E  s0bZ670E S1I4IN3E JIAOIIWI - 8S1 12301
o 96'€97'96 %106 9960012 1 eS8 %106 9960012 1LvE681 ) SWBLAg BUI0 -8 '3 1EI0L
w 00°€20°] %z'88 sz'se - 0z'sL %z'88 szs8 B 0z'st dva safojdws - 7
00SI£L1 %258 262ht'l 9zL€7') %58 Z6Zbb'l 9z1€7'1 “su) Amgesiq wiag-6uoT- g9
9652612 %506 6¥'18¥61 szzzyel %506 6% 18b61 SzzzYel “Sup "dUWo SIINOM - 651
SwaURg PO -8 T
0085225 %066 00'108'222 95854522 %066 00'108°22Z 95854522 SyBLSE TUBLIAINSY - g 3 IEI0)
00'8b6'1 6% %686 00'152'572 95858722 %686 00157522 9sgspzze sosUadx3 SyId 1oL
009esZIZ %866 0000020z 0029102 %866 00000202 00ELY'10Z 2] PApUNJUNFSA3d - 2191
00Z10'62Z %1'L6 00'152°E2 9558117 %16 00'157°E7 9558117 Su3d - usg dw3 - 191
sasuadxg Su3d
00'009°0E %0701 000557 001009 %0z0! 000557 000097 UOBNQIIUC) 1USIA 25T - 9
siyauURg UGN - Y g
000SE"L %206 05219 ze's55 %L06 052Z19 ZE'S5s uoisiA-'8 3
00'66E'6E %062 STESTE YI'ELST %062 STE8TE PI'ELST 1ewsq- g3
00'112ELL %968 8566219 9£Z8E'SS %968 BS66L19 9£Z86°SS 3419 1231PaN - '3 1ej0L
00EIlY %00 sezve 000 %00 SUTYE 000 J9UI0 - 3411 3 1PN - '3
002286 %29 £8'106°L 61Z69°€ %o €8'106'2 61269 122APaIN 3212y - 229
00'91SHE %96E 00002 8I'6L %9'6E 00002 8l'6L VSH-E21
00'092°059 %296 00'sse’es 6601915 %196 00'SSEES 66019'tS 34117 |e2pa aakoidws - 791
2419 1PN - 3
SLI4INIE FIAOTING - 851
YOOZ 1852 %86 LI'E95°607 8EE8S861 %86 LI'E9S'60Z 8E'EB5B61 ISNIdX3 TIOUAVd - 00 12301
YO'1E9'80Z %618 ze's8e°1 EVZETHI %618 z6s8E°LL erzezsl asuadxg xey 3/d 19koidwz - 072
005197222 %66 ST1L1261 S60SEHE! %656 SZTLL1Z61 S60SEb81 sobes 3 SaLEIEs - 1 | 2101
00°051°E %0001 05792 0529z %0001 05292 05292 $994 [BLEIAID3S - 40
96'650'57 %00L £€80417 000251 %002 £80L1°T 00'025'] uonesuadwiod J0321a - 80
000001 | %Sv8 99916 9rvie %58 99916 9rviL [ENUBIBLIA LIYS - £0
000001 | %Lb6 19915 8Z'68 %L 6 L9915 87'68% Aepiorysabes - 50
00'000'18 %2001 000529 BEE9L'9 %2001 000529 8E°E9L'9 Aapuers-sabem - 50
00'000°0E %6'(8 00054t £E'8ES') %6 L8 0005l £EBES] awipano-sabem - €0
YOZIE'SE %E'L6 PE'S88°9 08'869'9 %EL6 PE'S88'Y 088699 awgedsabem - 70
00'€01°S£0T %296 SZ'526Z21 06'E0E'991 %Z9%6 ST'SZ6Z¢1 06'0E°991 Jeinbay-sabesm - [0
sabem 9 sauepes - | |
ISNIdX3 TIOUAVd - 00
S1I4INIE FIAOTINT 3 SAVIVS
asuadxg
asuadx3/awodul LeupiQ
196png [enuuy 196png jo o 196png ara 81 Inr 196png 10 % 1wbpng 81 mmr )
810z Ainf

SaunypuadxF Jipusg dafoidwig  Aiees
PLysia 19rem jedprunpyy Aeg 3ploquiny



secno»f;)é’é_t_ PAGE NO. _A__

00°0

00°0 00°0C 000 000 0070 00°0 SUOTINGTIIUOD pue saxel isAordumy
€EBES'T 00°2¥ Ve LL [4 807081 S°¢ 112484 T LV €8€E S'6 88187 12 G L6D IT Aed 38N
€E°BES'T 00°Z¥ peTLL Z 807 08T S°€E v zie cT Ly E8E S'6 88°L8T 17 GZ L6 T Leq ssoxn psasulpy
€ETBES'T 00°Z¥ peLL Z 80°08I S°€E IS ARARA 1 LV E8E S°6 88°L8T 74 qZLeb TT Aeq ssoig Te30]
€Z°LOV'T 00°GE P2 LL Z 807081 S°e TP ¥ET 9 LV E€8E g6 88°L8T 4 ST PP¥ 0T SWTIABAQ
0T TET 00°L 00°0 00°0 00" 8L 9 000 00°0 01" €4 T SWTL Tqneg
Aeg ssoan
sjuswisnlipy pue soxe] ‘sabey saiorduy
8T DL sanoyg 8T 1np SANOH 8T 100 Sanoy 8T Tnr S3anoy 81 1O SInoH 8T 1np sanoy 8T Tnp SaN0H
TYIOL 8% 99 2 Zs IS AdLFS
8102 ATup

Aeg swtiasa0
30Ta3sTA I83eBM TedToTuny Aeg IpToqumy

B1/L0/80



secnon&,ﬁéi_‘mes NO._ 7.

"pasieyd Bulaq ase s3d9foid pasueuly asayy

104 321A95 31g2p [enuue 8y) AjuQ "sieaA QT Jano Buldueuly yym papuny Ajjesed uaaq aaey s123(oud Juswade|day suyadid 3yl pue ¢ 10309(j0) Asuuey ay ‘uoiippe U]
'$92.N0S Jay0 Aq papuny s103foud Jo Sunsy 3y sI ) s399(0ud [ende) saa0Auie) pue D s309{0ld WS)SAS [BlISNPU| “) S33IAISS Suninsuo) g [euoissajold ‘) s1I9foud [euded

"LYS'8YE TS 2B sadleyd Jawolsnd enloe By} ‘€69°£55°gS 18 paladpng ale saunypuadxa s1aloud (g0 Y1 AIYm

%€ 002°956°S €5°8v9°€8T €5°8v9'E8T :S1J3r04d 1V.1idYd 1v10L
%0 LEV'66T'S 69'82.91 69'82/°9T 2D IV10LaAS
%0 LEO'VZLT 00'0 00°0 $934eyD "ApY - UelD YINIH Aq papun [ $S8301d VdIN- ANZT
%0 000096 000 000 3y 1BNSY '3 S981eYD "ApY - JUBID YINI4 AQ papuny [ aduelsissy uopaniisuo)  Suippig ‘Yo I3 - 1uawadejday Jamo] 28.ng
%T 00v'S1S'T 69'82L°9T 69'874°9T saBJeyd "ApY 13 SIUeID YINIL g v8 doid Ag papund | Buissou) 1oy gsID4/aeT anig|
(4Mg) saainos 13130 Aq papuny s1afoid )
0 0 00°0 00°0 -8 1v1014ns
{41/MQ} Z 403904 33114 DA S12W035N) [odidUNYY 03 pabipy) spafosd ‘g
%TT €92°952 ¥8'616'991 ¥8°616'99T 'V 1Tv10l149ns
%0 €T0'80€ 000 00°0 $934BYD APY 13 JUBID VINT4 Ylim papund Allered ssa004d Yd3N- ANZT
%0 000'0ZT 000 000 T 9seyd - Juawade|day Aejay an29301d 0IpAH Yiny
%0 0009 000 000 juswade|day Sulicoiy Suip|ing |0J13u0) Xass3
%0 0SsLy 000 000 wawdinb3 uonejunwwo) Sup|ing J2331Al [RMISNPU] JO4 JO1BIBUID
%0 00S°€0T 00'0 00'0 Alojusnu| sjued/SI1010W J03I3[|0)
%8L 00S'v1Z ¥8'6T6'99T 8616991 7’7 dwnd - T 401330 adejday
135ang 13ang 8T0Z/1E/L S3ASN3IIX3 ;
40 % V101 AlA Anr _ S133r0¥d TV.1IdYD I




SECTION, /24 PAGE NO._5__

%0 szL'8vy 000 000 'S1I3r0oYd S13SSY aixid 1viol|
%0 052'62 000 00°0 :g1v1019ns
%0 0s7'6 000 000 4Mg uoilod - T 8Seyd SSdf 22ejday - xassy
%0 0sL't 000 000 UOIHOd 41MA - dnmjoeg SHJ0MIBN SANEBIISIURUPY 1§ [OJIUOD) - XB553]
%0 0sz'CT 000 000 juswadejday ppis dwing Ajod-N
(42MQ) Z 103204 3214g DIA siauso}sn) oddrunyy 03 pabioy) s3Iafold g
%0 SLY'6TY 000 000 ¥ 1v10L8NS
%0 00009 000 000 21em1ogs |eloueuly pue SuluNolay
%0 00001 000 000 wa3isAg Suiualsi] PAIsIssY vaAy - AP0 exaing
%0 0SZ'9 000 000 s19Indwo) aAieSILILPY OM] Bde|day - IO ©alng
%0 0SL°T 000 000 1207 23e.403S JUIRd B IO CJPAH Yiny
%0 005°C 000 000 40O |0J3U0) JI[NEIPAH 3189 133 O4pAH yIny
%0 000v 000 000 sguysiuing asnoyjung yny
%0 005°C 000 000 [2poway woouysep DH Yiny
%0 0sZ’9 000 000 Jo3eaot auri Aunn
%0 00S°TT 000 000 awdinb3 uoneuqyed 1@ Suissy |ead3)3
%0 00S‘T 000 000 WwinnoeA 19314 vdaH
%0 005°C 000 000 wswdinb3 Buidinias 193)4
%0 000y 000 00’0 walsAs Anueo ajqenod
%0 00S°T 000 000 1835 3pIy-4iy (3ant) woog) § Hun
%0 0SZ'vT 000 000 JOYEDIPU| JUSWIOW PeOT - (3ans) woog) § Hun
%0 000°0S 000 000 T uun asejday
%0 005°€ 000 000 ysaq 2wouosi3 Josiuadng suopesad - xassy
%0 00S°t 000 000 saey) suonesadp aoejday - xass3
%0 05Z°ve 000 000 41A\Q UoILod - T 9seyd sSdn a2ejday - xass3
%0 0520t 000 000 IBuIge) JanIas JaIndwo) ade|day - xass3
%0 0SL°L 000 00’0 uoILOd Mg - dnydeg SHI0MIBN BAIIRIISILIWIPY ¥ |0JIUD) - X355
%0 00S°C 000 000 s49indwo) waisAg [osuo) sae|day - xass]
%0 SeL'Y 000 000 sJandwio) aanensIuIWPY om] 3de|day -xass]
%0 005681 000 000 apes3dn jesu132|3 T J01I3|0)
135and 139ang 8T0C/1E/L SISNIdX3 {4m8) Z 101204 311d DIA SI3WOISN) [Iy 03 PabIoy) s1I3foid Y
10 % V101 Q1A Anr _ S13SSv aaxid “if




secnoh(_/_é_@, PAGE NO. _ﬁ___

%t 098°69% LT'v188 LTV18'8 :$1231f0Hd FINVNILNIVIN IVLOL
%0 0SZ'ey 000 000 g 1vi019ns
%0 00501 000 000 SOA|BA 2UNSSaud dyoeg WasAs [edjwsy) adejday - 4y4
%0 0SLvT 000 000 sjuswnIIsu| ANjenp Ja1epn 4y
%0 0sz'L 000 00°0 AlojuaAU| sped uoleluSWINIYSU| A)jenD 4918 441
%0 0SszZ'0T 000 000 7 9seyd - sagjddng 340138y aajep anbaonw 441
%0 00S 000 000 IS J0JRIBUSD) - {Y ||
{41/MQ) T 103904 2314d DiA S12W0ISN) [DdiFIUN 03 pabioy) spafold Kl
%T 019'9zy L1718 LTV18'8 W 1violans
%0 017’1 000 000 uoiadsu) aneA J28ung ||[amoH - 0JpAH yiny
%0 00s‘s 000 000 adid 881ey3s1q AYd Jieday - oapAH yiny
%0 000°0T 000 000 saaJ] SuiAg/peaq anoway - ealy Suipunouns g OH Yyiny
%0 0S/2°€ 000 000 3]0d 1amod j|eisu| - DH yny
%C 00008 05°€89°T 0S°€89T aoueuayuiein Aemids yiny
%0 000T 000 000 uonaadsu| woog Soq
%0 000°s 000 000 103esadQ Joquir} pasuadn]
%0 0059 000 000 UBWIRIEqY ysnug - e yiny
%0 000'2LT 000 000 [13M 3pouy J1poyie) g6z ae|day
%0 00S°C 00'0 000 Aiojuaau| sseug avi4 pea
%0 000 000 000 suodeag Alajes Adusdiaw3 199]4 adejday
%0 00S°C 000 000 s1npold 121ua) suoneisdg AdusBiawg paiidxg adejday
%0 000°s 000 000 sJieday juied 323|4
%S 000°0S 68299C 68°199°C Jieday AsusSiaw3 saueusiuien
%0 0059 000 000 LOI199}0.4 JIPoy1e)
%0 0059 000 000 {eAoway 924 paseasiq 3 pJezeH
%0 00s’s 000 000 BIIAIS JO]RIBUIG)
%ET 000°6T SEVLEY BEVLE'Y Ww3)sAg 03u0) apnjou o3 sazepdn 34emyos 1 Woddns [edjuyda))
%0 000°0T 000 000 UoI1RIGI|ED MOJ4 1919 Autjuiell
%0 000V 000 000 DIUBUBIUIBIAl WISAS 21119313 ANET
%t 08221 0’88 0v'88 2oueuanuleln aujjadid
%0 00S°L 000 000 SUOI332301d Wsijepuen/A1undas § 10133(|0D
139ang 13sang 8T0Z/1E/L SISNAdXT (iM8) Z 101904 321d DIA S13W0)SN) |]Y 03 PaBIDY) Y|
0% V101 alA Anf S173r0dd IINVNILNIVIA ‘Il




secTion’.L2L pageno. /O__

%S 8S1°820'T 02°S06°€ES 0Z°S06'€ES SIJIAYIS ONILINSNOD B TYNOISSII0Hd TVLOL
%0 801°€69 000 000 D 1v1018ns
%0 8017'€69 000 000 URIS MO|4 WeRJ}s-u|
(i4ma) sazinos 13y30 Aq papung s1afoid -3
%0 0ST'6T 000 000 ‘8 vLoians
%0 005’ 00°0 000 uoRiod 41M@ - Buluies) auoiq|
%0 0S2°91 000 000 IueuUIRIA WRLSAS BULIO|YD
(41MQ) g 103207 3311d DIA S13UI03SN) fodIUNYY 03 pabany) s1afold g
%LT 005'STE 02°506'cS 0Z°S06'€S 'V 1v1018NS
%0 000°0T 000 000 499u18u3 Aages weq Joyd HYId
%0 000°c 000 00°0 (7T Hed) manay Arajes weq DYI/(HINSSA)oday Sulionuoy 19 ddueljj2AING Al3jes weq DY
%0 0002 000 000 Sujuueld- as101ax3 dols|qe] dy3 DY¥3d 0JpAH Yy
%0 0s0°Z 000 000 uoRJIadsu) asueuajulRN/[EILIDF|T 1BARY 0JPAH YIny
%0 000'ST 000 000 22Ue)sISSY IduBURIUIRIA AemjidS yIny
%0 00s‘9 000 000 uoideadsu} 93pLig Aemipds yiny
%9 000°0€ 0Z'S06'T 0C'S06'T suoned|ddy jueis
%0 000°'S 000 000 3ujuue|d saoinosay Jotep
%00T 000°05 00'000°0S 00°000'0S uonnqLIIuOD Isn.| uolsuad Syvd|
%0 000°s 000 000 ue|d swaldeuepy J91BMPUNOID - YINOS
%0 000°s 000 000 uoneINp3 dlgnd
%0 000°0T 000 000 uofieynsuo) asuejdwo?) yay - 3210 eyain3
%00T 000°C 00°000°C 00°000°C 1ueus Apeay s1ewy|) Adueasasuo) jelseo) 4o Juauodwo) - weiSold Sulojuciy aung
%0 009t 00'0 00'0 LNy - WalsAS UONBWIIOM SAIN|IDEH/SID
%0 000¢T 000 000 w21sAS uoneULIOU| SANIIRL/SIO
%0 000‘TT 000 000 U] WSAS J11SBWOQ pUE |eulsnpu|
%0 0009 000 000 uonenjead aujjadid |euisnpu)
%0 000'se 000 000 A3AINg pue JuelUlR Jeg |SARLD) X3553
%0 000°0T 000 000 Asang [euo235-55017) JAALY PRI X8553
%0 00s’e 000 000 uoiHod 4Mg - Sutuiea) auocug|
%0 000'€ 000 000 Sujuieay 193s9] Mojpioeg
%0 00501 000 000 Sujuiely Jejuyay
%0 0SL'L2 000 000 Buiuies) asemyos vavds/|ouod)
%0 00S'Z 000 000 uonedyIus)/8unsa ) suel)
%0 00T'9¢ 000 000 wBWuUopuUepY |[9M SULIOHUOW € 10193]10)
%0 000"t 000 000 153) Ae[9y pue ASAInS Ysejd 2y g 10193}
139ang 13oang 8T0Z/TE/L S3ISN3IdX3 (4Mm8) Z 101204 32114 DIA SI3UI0ISN JIY OF PaBIDYYD Y
40 % TVLOL QLA Anre _ SIDIAUIS ONILINSNOD 8 TYNOISSIA0NUd "Hi|




SECTION g__a?_f_TPAGE No. Ll __

_mﬂ 8YE'98T‘T 12'546°62T TT'SL6°62T {rueg sn) ja195 3qag Supnjoxa siawoisn) 03 pasiey) je3o) Pafoid 2dd|
[%0 SYE'TLE'9 69'8229T 69'82L9T (santasay fsaliey) paoueapy/sueoy/sjueln) Sa2iN0s JSYIO WOy papund s1afoud ssa|
_xm €69°4SS'8  06'€0L'OVZ 06°€0£°9b2 “TIVLOL ANVYD S1D3r Omﬂ_
_.xo 005995 00°0 000 TVLOL S103rO¥d YIANOANYYD 8T/LT02 _
%0 00S‘€0v 00'0 000 23 1v10449ns
%0 00S'€0V 000 000 sadiey) paoueApy [ asnoyjung yiny aoejday
(4m8) s22.n05 13430 Aq papund sp3foid )
%0 000'sT 000 000 ‘dviolans
%0 000sZ 000 000 uoiod 31 M@ - WalsAg @due|(|aains 0apIA Y1
(41M@} Z 103204 23144 DIA S13UI0ISN) JodidIUNIA 03 pabipy) spafoid g
%0 000'8ET 000 000 ‘¥ 1vL014nNsS
%0 000's 000 00°0 UoIOd 4G - WS1SAS 2dUBI[jBAINS 03PIA Y1
%0 000°0€T 000 000 uawade|day aajep auljuienf
%0 000°€ 000 000 Japoway 22140 wapuajuiadng
(3M8) Z 102204 23144 DIA S12WOISN) (1Y 03 PaBIDY) Y
l13sang 135ang 8102/1€/L S3SNIJX3 _ S10310Hd Tv1idvd I
10% V104 QLA Ane 8T/LT0Z WOY4 S1D310Ud HIAO-A¥YVY) |
%0 0sz‘ss 00°9€€ 00°9¢€€ ‘S12310dd W3ILSAS TVIHLSNANI TYL0L
%0 000°SL 000 000 22 vL0l1dns
%0 000'SL 00°0 000 9Sd 18 IS\ J3AIY pINgay -
(4mg) seaunos 1ay10 Aq papund s399foid )
%E 0SZ'€l 00'9€E 00'9¢€ ¥V TV10LENS
%E 0SZ'eT 00'9€€ 00'9€€ SYIUON MO|J-mo7 Buling (9 uoiels duwing) uoneis dwng [euasnpu) 03 Alddns Jajep uleluB -
1395and 1395ang 8T0Z/TE/L S3ISNIdX3 (4M8) Z 103204 3314d DA S13W0ISN) [IY O3 PaBIDY) Y|
40 % IviOl aiA Ans _ S1J3r0dd INALSAS TYINLSNANI “Al




secnon%o?_&_, PAGENO. /3. _

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Expenses by Vendor Detail

08/03/18
July 2018
Memo Amount

101Netlink

Ruth Data Link/Internet -160.00
Total 101Netlink -160.00
Advanced Display & Signs

Ruth Spillway Bridge closure signs -83.49
Total Advanced Display & Signs -83.49
Advanced Security Systems

Ruth Hydro Quarterly Alarm System Monitoring _-76.50
Total Advanced Security Systems -76.50
Almquist Lumber

paint for inventory -178.52

Pump 1.2 Motor installation -50.13

Spillway repair B -49._33
Total Almquist Lumber -277.98
AT&T

Ruth HQ

TRF

Essex office

Eureka office -38.99

Ruth Hydro

Valve Building Samoa

Ruth HQ -23.04

TRF -7.43

Essex office -431.94

Eureka office -6.45

Ruth Hydro -170.62

Valve Building Samoa -101.43
Total AT & T -779.90
AT&T

Eureka/Essex Landline -35.12

Arcata/Essex Landline -35.13

Samoa/Essex Landline -235.65

Blue Lake Meter Signai -60.68

Eureka Office Modem -1583.07

Eureka Office Alarm -88.63

Samoa Booster Pump Station -88.14

Valve Building-Samoa -1563.07

Eureka Office -360.46

Essex Office -904.35

TRF -152.46

Ruth Dataline -148.67
Total AT&T -2,415.43
AT&T Advertising Solutions

white page listing -21.00
Total AT&T Advertising Solutions -21.00
Cal-Pac Machine & Hydraulics

Machine work for Collector 1 Pump 1.2 installation -980.00
Total Cal-Pac Machine & Hydraulics -990.00
City of Eureka

Eureka office water/sewer -7318
Total City of Eureka -73.88
Coastal Business Systems Inc.

Eureka office copy and fax machine ~ -908.73
Total Coastal Business Systems Inc. -908.73

Dama 4



SECTIOM, é& PAGE NO. /-2

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

08/03/18 Expenses by Vendor Detail
July 2018
Memo B Amount

Dale H. Davidsen

Spillway repair -63.92
Total Dale H. Davidsen -63.92
Dave Perkins

auto mileage reimbursement - Spillway Improvement -21.85

auto mileage reimbursement -47.96

auto mileage reimbursement -190.70
Total Dave Perkins ~260.51
ESRI, Inc

Annual GIS Software Maintenance Support for Essex Office -4,061.92

Annual GIS Software Maintenance Support for Eureka Office _ -312.46
Total ESRI, Inc -4,374.38

Eureka-Humboldt Fire Ext.,Co, Inc

Essex Fire Extinguisher maintenance -25.99
Total Eureka-Humboldt Fire Ext.,Co, Inc -25.99
Eureka Oxygen

cylinder rental -108.20
Total Eureka Oxygen -108.20
Eureka Readymix

Repair and Upgrade Line Shed 6 . -2,337.87
Total Eureka Readymix -2,337.87
Fastenal Company

Ruth Spillway repair -97.17
Total Fastenal Company -97.17
FEDEX

ship lab samples -320.54

ship Ruth Hydro Panametric sensor for repair & adjustment ~ -16.08
Totat FEDEX -336.62
Ferguson Waterworks

Humboldt Bay Retail Meters -1,669.47

Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD Meters -1,669.47
Total Ferguson Waterworks ~3,338.94
FleetPride

Unit 10 repair -184£
Total FleetPride -184.16
Friends of the Dunes

Coastal Conservancy Climate Ready Grant for Coastal Dune V... -2,000.00
Total Friends of the Dunes -2,000.00
Frontier Communications

Ruth HQ -51.39

Ruth Hydro/Ruth Dataline . -163.70
Total Frontier Communications -215.09
GHD

(102801) Grant Submittal - Matthews Dam Spiliway Investigation -532.70

(102865) General Engineering - Essex -100.50

(102865) General Engineering - Essex -1,162.50

(102802) Blue Lake/Fieldbrook River Crossing -15,718.75

(102800) Grant Submittal - Single Line Siough Crossing -1,372.50
Total GHD -18,886.95

Nemma



SECTION(‘_/f_d_—_, pacE N0, /Y

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Expenses by Vendor Detail

08/03/18
July 2018
Memo Amount
Harbor Freight Tools
Ruth Spiliway Repair -41.16
Total Harbor Freight Tools -41.16
Hensel Hardware
maintenance shop supplies -46.15
painting supplies ~ -39.99
Total Hensel Hardware -86.14
Henwood Associates, Inc
Consultant Services Agreement -920.84
Total Henwood Associates, Inc -920.84
Humboldt Fasteners
Ruth Spillway repairs -440.35
Total Humboldt Fasteners -440.35
Humboldt Redwood Company, LLC
Mt Pierce Lease site -266.79
Mt Pierce Lease site ~ -286.79
Total Humboldt Redwood Company, LLC -533.58
Industrial Electric
Collector 1 Pump 1.2 Motor replacement -296.98
electrical shop supplies -59.53
Total industrial Electric -356.51
JTN Energy, LLC
Consultant Services Agreement -920.84
Total JTN Energy, LLC -920.84
Keenan Supply
maintenance supplies -196.17
Total Keenan Supply -196.17
Larry Raschein
Travel Advance - JPIA Leadership training -302.59
Total Larry Raschein -302.59
Lisa Newel
auto mileage reimbursement -19.40
Total Lisa Newell -19.40
Mario Palmero
Essex safety supplies -51.09
lab supplies -18.54
vehicle maintenance -1.40
Essex computer supplies -19.19
Essex maintenance -17.00
Travel Advance - JPIA Leadership training -132.00
Total Mario Palmero -239.22
Matthews Paints, Inc.
pressure washer repair -145.42
Total Matthews Paints, Inc. -145.42
Miller Farms Nursery
chainsaw & weedeater maintenance -26.92
* replace 4000 watt Honda generator -2,154.95
-2,181.87

Total Miller Farms Nursery

Nawma n



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Expenses by Vendor Detail

SECTIONSL2. page No. LD

08/03/18
July 2018
Memo B Amount

Mission Linen

maintenance supplies -163.03

Uniform Rental -451.14
Total Mission Linen -614.17
Mitchell, Brisso, Delaney & Vrieze

Legal Services Eureka - June 2018 -558.00
Total Mitchell, Brisso, Delaney & Vrieze -558.00
Napa Auto Parts

maintenance shop supplies -113.21
Total Napa Auto Parts -113.21
Network Management Services

Essential Care Server Support Service for Eureka office -214.20

Essential Care Computer Support Service for Eureka office -291.00

Guard-IT Security Service for Eureka office -139.99

Recover-IT Backup Solution -438.00

Domain Management - -3.00
Total Network Management Services -1,086.19
North Coast Railroad

TRF Fiber Optic Lease Fee -1,890.13
Total North Coast Railroad -1,890.13
North Coast Unified Air Quality Mangement

Essex Annual Permit Renewal Fee -2,104.61

Ruth Hydro Annual Permit Renewal Fee -455.62
Total North Coast Unified Air Quality Mangement -2,560.23
North Valley Labor Compliance

Blue Lake/Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD river crossing -8925.40
Total North Valley Labor Compliance -825.40
Northern California Safety Consortium

membership fee -50.00
Total Northern California Safety Consortium -50.00
O&M Industries

Eureka office HVAC maintenance -80.00
Total O&M Industries -80.00
Pacific Gas & Electric Co.

Ruth Bunkhouse

Eureka office -366.65

Jackson Ranch Rectifier -15.35

299 Rectifier -97.02

West End Road Recifier -123.98

TRF -4,115.17

Ruth Hydro Valve Control -23.98

Ruth Hydro -23.26

Samoa Booster Pump Station -998.39

Samoa Dial Station -26.93

Essex Pumping 6/1 - 6/30/2018 -54,469.70

Ruth Bunkhouse -113.51

Eureka office

Jackson Ranch Rectifier

299 Rectifier

West End Road Recifier

TRF

Ruth Hydro Valve Control
Ruth Hydro

Samoa Booster Pump Station

Nama 4



sscnou_(_/:{”_ﬁ_,mss No./6

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Expenses by Vendor Detaill

08/03/18
July 2018
Memo B Amount

Samoa Dial Station

Essex Pumping 6/1 - 6/30/2018
Total Pacific Gas & Electric Co. -60,372.94
Pacific Paper Co.

Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD/Blue Lake River Crossing notificatio... ~  -84.54
Tota! Pacific Paper Co. -84.54
Pacific Water Resources

Replace Collector 1 Pump and Motor 1-2 -165,407.27
Total Pacific Water Resources -165,407.27
Peterson Tractor Co.

rental of generator for TRF -2,667.89
Total Peterson Tractor Co. -2,667.89
Pitney Bowes

postage meter supplies -61 .8:_3
Total Pitney Bowes -61.83
PitStop Cleaning"

Eureka office cleaning -120.00
Total PitStop Cleaning’ -120.00
Platt Electric Supply

Collector 1 Pump Motor 1.2 replacement -127.54
Total Platt Electric Supply -127.54
PPG Architectural Coatings

pipeline maintenance -43.23
Total PPG Architectural Coatings -43.23
Recology Arcata

Essex Garbage Service -383.07
Total Recology Arcata -383.07
Recology Humboldt County

Eureka office garbage/recycling service -85.40
Totai Recology Humboldt County -85.40
Redi-Rents, Inc

Superintendent Office Remodel -212.28

Collector 1 Pump 1.2 motor installation i -47.92
Total Redi-Rents, Inc -260.20
Renner Petroleum

John Deere tractor fuel -18.62

cardlock fuel - pumping & control -395.70

cardlock fuel - water quality -395.70

cardlock fuel - maintenance -395.70

cardlock fuel - customer service -395.70

Ruth bulk fuel -423.99

Ruth Hydro bulk fuel -423.99

Essex bulk fuel ~ -2,986.38
Total Renner Petroleum -5,435.78
Ruth Lake C.S.D.

Quagga Grant expense reimbursement B -2,689.18
Total Ruth Lake C.S.D. -2,689.18

Lp TP ~



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Expenses by Vendor Detail

SECTION U”%PAGE NO.

s o e e et

LA

08/03/18
July 2018
Memo - Amount

SHN Consulting Engineers & Geologists

Aerial Photos for trench monitoring report -336.00
Total SHN Consulting Engineers & Geologists -336.00
Sitestar Nationwide Internet

Essex Internet -52.90
Total Sitestar Nationwide Internet -52.90
Springville Safety/Supply

safety supplies -123£>
Total Springville Safety/Supply -123.15
Streamline

Website maintenance membership fee -450.00
Total Streamline -450.00
Sudden Link

TRF Internet -105.34

Eureka office Internet -204.95

Essex Internet -124.95

Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD Internet -271.02
Total Sudden Link -706.26
Sunnybrae Ace Hardware

Unit 3 supplies -27.48

Total Sunnybrae Ace Hardware

T.P. Tire Service, Inc
repair flat Unit 13
Tire for Unit 156

Totai T.P. Tire Service, Inc

TechnoFlo Systems
Collector 2 Meter Calibration - Balance owed on invoice

Total TechnoFlo Systems

The Mill Yard
Ruth Spillway repairs
Repair & upgrade Line Shed 6
Chlorine Building siding repair

Total The Mill Yard

The Times-Standard
Essex Times-Standard subscription

Total The Times-Standard
Thrifty Supply
pipeline maintenance
Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD leak repair
Total Thrifty Supply

Times Printing
Blue Book Dividers

Total Times Printing

Trinity County General Services
Pickett Peak site lease

Total Trinity County General Services

-27.48

-15.00
-191.74

-206.74

-179.17

-179.17

-673.95
-38.13
-2.25

-714.33

-294.99

-294.99

-45.17

-126.14

-171.31

-415.01

-415.01

25000
-250.00

Mama &



Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Expenses by Vendor Detall

secno#—l’% paceNo. /&

08/03/18
July 2018
Memo Amount
Trinity County Solid Waste
Ruth HQ dump fees -14.75
Ruth Hydro dump fees -14.75
Total Trinity County Solid Waste -29.50
Underground Service Alert
Annual Membership -683.&5
Total Underground Service Alert -683.95
USTI, Inc
Humboldt Bay retail eBills -3.68
Fieldbrook-Glendale CSD eBills -8.32
utility bill cards -118.00
Annual Maintenance Renewal -1,896.00
Total USTI, Inc -2,026.00
Verizon Wireless
General Manager -38.03
Customer Service -46.25
Operations 2 -0.56
Electrician -0.18
Unit 6 -18.74
Unit 6 -18.74
Operations 1 -0.18
Total Verizon Wireless -122.68
TOTAL -296,806.47

Nama 7



PUBLIC

AGENCY |
RETIREMENT
SERVICES

DA DC SECT) 'ON_ZQAPAGE NO.../ .

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Account Report for the Period
PARS Post»Employment Benefits Trust 7/1/2017 to 6/30/2018

John Friedenbach
General Manager

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

828 Seventh Street
Eureka, CA 95501

H.B.MW.D. JuL 18 10

Account Summary
Beginning Balance as Ending
of Balance as of
Source 7/1/2017 Contributions Earnings Expenses Distributions Transfers 6/30/2018
PENSION $0.00 $600,000.00 $5,689.74 $250.99 $0.00 $0.00 $605,438.75
Totals $0.00 $600,000.00 $5,689.74 $250.99 $0.00 $0.00 $605,438.75
Investment Selection
Source
PENSION Moderate HighMark PLUS
Investment Objective
Source
The dual goals of the Moderate Strategy are growth of principal and income. It is expected that dividend and interest income will comprise a
PENSION significant portion of total return, although growth through: capital appreciation is equally important. The portfolio will be allocated between
equity and fixed income investments.
Investment Return
Annualized Return
Source 1-Month 3-Months 1-Year 3-Years 5-Years 10-Years Plan's Inception Date
PENSION 0.06% 0.92% - - - - 4/9/2018

Information as provided by US Bank, Trustee for PARS; Not FDIC Insured; No Bank Guarantee; May Lose Value

Past performance does not guarantee future results. Performance returns may not reflect the deduction of applicable fees, which could reducé returns. Information is deemed reliable but may be subject to change.
Tnvestment Return: Annualized rate of retum is the retum on an investment over a period other than one year multiplied or divided to give a comparable one-year return.
Account balances are inclusive of Trust Administratior, Trustee and Investment Management fees

Headquarters - 4350 Von Karman Avé., Suite 100, Newport Beach, CA 92660  800.540.6369  Fax 949.250.1250 www.pars.org



OPERATIONS



Memo to: HBMWD Board of Directors . l
From: Dale Davidsen, Superintendent SECTTON_\EQ;PAGE NO.
Date: August 1, 2018

Subject: Essex/Ruth July 2018 Operational Report

Upper Mad River, Ruth Lake, and Hydro Plant

1. The flow at Mad River above Ruth Reservoir (Zenia Bridge) was 2.7 cfs on July
1st and flow steadily decreased all month to 0 cfs on July 29%,

2. The conditions at Ruth Lake for the month of July were as follows:

a. The lake level on July 31st was 2645.95 feet which is:
1. 3.2 feet lower than June 30% , 2018
2. 0.05 feet higher than July 31st, 2017
3. 2.38 feet lower than the ten year average
4. 4.85 feet below the spillway

3. There was 0 inches of recorded rainfall for July 2018 at Ruth Headquarters.

4. Ruth Hydro produced 192,000 KWh in July. The hydro plant was online all
month with 1 shutdown and 395 KWh lost.

5. On July 1* the discharge from the lake was 54 cfs which was the high for the
month. The low flow was 41cfs on July 31st.

Lower Mad River, Winzler Control, and TRF

6. The river at Winzler Control Center reached a high recorded flow of 114 cfs and
a level of 21.2 feet on July 1. Over the month, the river flow decreased to 61cfs
and level of 20.8 on July 31st.

7. The domestic water conditions were as follows:
a. The monthly turbidity average was 0.19 NTU, which meets Public Health

Secondary Standards.

b. For the month of July, we pumped 319.007 million gallons at an average
of 10.544 MGD.

c. The ma)fiimum metered daily municipal customer use was 11.825 MGD on
July 227,

8. The Turbidity Reduction Facility was offline for the summer in July.



10.
11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.
17.

18.

July 2™ — Maintenance staff did the 90 BIT inspections SECTIOM_)ﬁ(]};PAGE NO. <_’-2j_..-
July 6% — Humboldt County DHHS did our annual Cal-ARP inspection.
July 10% - NCAQMD did the annual inspection of our generators, and mobile
diesel equipment.
July 11" - NCAQMD inspected the generator at Ruth hydro.
July 17" — A maintenance crew went to Ruth to start demo on areas needing
repairs on the spillway.
July 18®

a. We held or quarterly SB 198 safety meeting.

b. Maintenance finished installation of pump 1-2.

c. Poured concrete approach apron at LS 6.
July 23rd - 26™ — Maintenance went to Ruth to do demo and prep on areas
needing repairs on the spillway
July 30™ — 90 day crane inspection
July 31% — Staff and Stillwater Science did the annual dredging of the channel
up stream of PS 6.
Current and Ongoing Projects

a. Spillway repairs

b. Ruth Bunkhouse remodel — Waiting for contract and performance bonds

from contractor
c. Assist with Mad River Crossing Project as needed.



SECTION Jﬁéﬂ_mee NO. _%_._

19497 Aem|[1dG e

Sny Jesp
0T UOI1BAS|] B)BT ~nemr

3
‘8T0T UONEAD|3 3NE] ——

Y
‘£ T0Z Uo1EAd|] e

aleq

=R = =
N o 2 = = o = o] o 00 ~ ~ [22] w = w w N N = =
S ~ N S~ = ~ o ~~ (Y] S~ ~ S~ ~ ~J ~ (=)} S~ [9,] ~ B ~ S~ ~ S~ S~ S~ =
w =~ = ~ N [ I o] = N [ ~ | N ~ N ~ [\0] = (o] = N [ o ~
(=] [<)] N o -} £ = ~ w @ [¢)} N w wu - ~ W o (<)) N o] wn = (o)} N (X} (Fa} [l
_ A ; ) A L | i - L L L L ! L : 0'Sz9z
|
0'0€9¢

_ 7 0°5E9T

0°0¥9T

0°st79¢

2

- 0'059¢

/J - 0°899¢

00992
L

uoneAl|3 avel yiny |
- o = 0'999¢




Flow at Zenia Bridge

Mad River at

Zenia Br 2017, cfs ‘

6000

5000

Mad River at

Zenia Br 2018, cfs

Ten Year Avg
2008 - 2017

4000

SECTION\J 5. PRGE NO. 4

- OE/TT
- 91/T1
§i Z/at
8T/T1
- /11
I 1z/ot
- /01
- €2/6
- 6/6
9z/8
- 21/8
62/L
- ST/L
- T/L

- LT/9
€/9
o0z/s
- 9/s
- Tely
8/v
sz/€
TT/€
9/t

/e

- 62/1

- ST/1

sJ2 - moJ4

T1/T

Date




L

sscnon;[gﬁ_k_, PAGE NO.

LT, - €8, 98elany
AR INWINY [BILI0ISIH

98esany
SABINWND JBIA 0T

aAlBINWNY
8T-LT JBDA JDIBM cmeems

aAIlR|NWINY
LT-9T JED 1)\ e

1O

dag gny Inr unf Aey Ady ey qa4 uer 29Q

8T0C-LT0C 194 1818 - |[Bjuley Yiny

114

ov

09

08

00T

ozt

sayou)




secnon)/;_éx_, PAGE NO. _(ﬂ____

$J0 ‘Mmoi4
JBAIY BAY JBBA QT oo

s§2 ‘a8pug
66¢C 18 MO|4 8TOT

sj0 ‘a8pug
66¢ 18 MO|] LTQT ===

U ‘]oAsn
19n1y BAy Jeap 0T

H
‘BTOT 12497 JoAIY

B
"LT0Z [9A37 JONY ——

SJ9 ‘MO|4 1oAY

a1eq
- [ = =
N N = L [ o = O oo o0 ~ ~l (s3] wn H w w N N - =
e N S~ = ~ (e] ~ [Le] e e e ~J ~ ()] . (¥,] ~ i-9 e T R e e d
w e e S R . - ] = N | e T e S | © R S () | N - o | ol
o o N co £y = ~ w o [=)} N o (¥} = ~ w o (o)) N oo (%] Ll [<)] 54 Vo] (%] Lol
O i § i : .( 3 3 § i i i i i i i L — O
Y R . 0 u 1
\ . Y ﬂ_
O T
R, 7
s i m
000S ' w M :
i
i
; |
0000T - 2 _
B
£
E
:
- ST

000sT

0000¢

000S¢ -

MO|4 pue [9A37 JAALY

ooo0g — S€

Y ‘|9As7 JoA1Y




secnondﬁéume NO. _i.-

e e et

RIVERBANK WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS
MAXIMIZING AMERICA’S ALLUVIAL AQUIFERS

DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE
OF RIVERBANK WATER SUPPLY SYSTEMS

AN INFORMATION EXCHANGE CONFERENCE

Wednesday, August 8", 2018 (9:00am — 5:00pm e
(Optional field toury— Tuegday, August 7", 2018 (2:00pm - 5:)00pm) CS (31}{ ONN}‘%
Hosted by Sonoma County Water Agency WATER
Conference venue: Westside Water Education Facility
9703 Wohler Road, Healdsburg, CA 95448
(Parking details will be provided soon) _
Convened by: American Ground Water Trust A G BN CY

[A (501(c)(3) education non-profit organization] www.agwt.org

Optional field tour opportunity
The Sonoma County Water Agency operates six radial Collector wells located adjacent to the Russian River which can
provide an estimated average day peak month capacity of 92 million gallons per day. The tour will include the Wohler &
Mirabel diversion facilities, inflatable dam, state of the art fish ladder and viewing chamber, infiltration ponds, and a tour
inside Collector Well 6 which is capable of pumping 35 mgd. The field tour will start at the Westside Water Education
Facility at 2:00pm and end at 5pm.. Tour sign-up is only available if registered for the August 8™ conference.

> u Continuing Education : =
‘ The AGWT will issue Certificates of Attendance: l
Approved for CA Drinking Water Operators = 7 contact hours = Aug. g"

Approved for CA Drinking Water Operators = 3 contact hours — Aug. 7" Field Tour

Thank you to our Sponsors:

ZINTERA (lap® [A < Hydro

cCcClhr

St SRR A\ pDBSsA BUILOING ERAFIS, INC.
® o522 tl

Soting Water Wk axylem brand {7 1Contractors | Engineers

DESCRIPTION:

An intense one-day information-exchange program about science, design, engineering and operational issues related to
extracting groundwater from unconsolidated aquifers using riverbed and riverbank alluvial aquifers to naturally filter the
source water. The program will showcase case studies from experts in design, construction and operation of riverbank
filtration facilities in the Western United States. Discussion will include the characteristics of alluvial aquifer hydrogeology
and variable hydrology in the west that influences design and operation of riverbank filtration facilities. Presentations will
include examples of current research and studies regarding the effectiveness of riverbank filtration to remove pathogens
and other contaminants of concern and the rehabilitation of aging infrastructure.

WHO SHOULD ATTEND
This program is for water resources managers and water supply consultants, engineers, designers and planners. In
addition to those interested in the state-of-the-art technical aspects of Riverbank Filtration, the program is of direct
relevance to, local & state government officials involved in all aspects of water supply decisions and long-term planning.
With increasing hydrological uncertainty, particularly with regard to surface water turbidity, the role of developing aquifers
adjacent to rivers and lakes can provide great benefits in treatment costs and supply dependability.

[ 8:00 - 9:00 REGISTRATION (Coffee, pastries and network with exhibitors) |




SEcTION \JZL PAGE NO.X-—-

o on )

9:00 - 9:15
BACKGROUND TO THE PROGRAM
Andrew Stone, American Ground Water Trust, Concord, NH

9:15 - 9:50
SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY'S RESOURCE PLANNING AND WATER MANAGEMENT INITIATIVES
Jay Jasperse, Chief Engineer, Director of Groundwater Management, Sonoma County Water Agency, Santa Rosa, CA

/" 9:50 - 10:25 i
CLASSIFICATION OF RIVERBANK FILTRATION WELLS AS GROUNDWATER N
& Dale Davidsen, Superintendent, Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, Eureka, CA and Craig Thompson, Senior Engineer, West Yost )
Associates, Davis, CA /
—~— — N — e ——
10:25 -11:00

RIVERBANK FILTRATION IMPROVING SOURCE WATER QUALITY: A REGULATORY PERSPECTIVE
Dr. Chittanranjan Ray, Director, Nebraska Water Center, Lincoln, NE

[11:00-11:15 BREAK ]

11:15=11:50
WATER QUALITY FOCUS ON RBF CASE STUDIES IN THE PACIFIC NORTHWEST
Henry C. Hunt, Sr. Project Manager, Ranney Collector Wells, Layne, Columbus, OH

11:50 - 12:25
USING A MODIFIED RIVERBANK FILTRATION METHOD TO PURIFY STORM WATER TO INCREASE MANAGED AQUIFER

RECHARGE RATES
Adam Hutchinson, Recharge Planning Manager, Orange County Water District, Fountain Valley, CA

12:25 - 1:00
CARMICHAEL'’S GRAVITY BASED RBF TUNNEL SYSTEM FOR SUPPLY FROM THE AMERICAN RIVER
Chris Nelson, Public Information Officer, Carmichae! Water District, Carmichael, CA

1:00 — 1:50 LUNCH (Included) Sponsored by |

1:50 - 2:25

RBF RUSSIAN RIVER COLLABORATIVE RESEARCH PROGRAMS WITH US GEOLOGICAL SURVEY & LAWRENCE BERKELEY
NATIONAL LABORATORY (Geophysics, flow modeling, pathogen studies, riverbed clogging and aquifer recharge)

Marcus Trotta, Hydrogeologist, Sonoma County Water Agency, Santa Rosa, CA

2:25 - 3:00
SONOMA COUNTY COLLECTOR WELL CAPACITY EVALUATION PROGRAM
Jim Warner, Senior Parther, ERM West, Walnut Creek, CA

3.00-3:35

APPLICATIONS OF SLANT WELLS TO RIVERBANK FILTRATION

Brian A. Villalobos, Principal Geohydrologist, Geoscience Support Services Inc., La Verne, CA
3:35-4:10

LAKE HAVASU CITY, AZ - RIVER BANK FILTRATION

Kevin Bral, Senior Principal Technologist, CH2M/Jacobs Engineering, Englewood, CO

4:10 -~ 4:45

HYDROGEOLOGIC AND SURFACE WATER/GROUNDWATER CHARACTERIZATION OF THE RUSSIAN RIVER FOR SONOMA
COUNTY AND THE PLANNED SCOPE OF WORK FOR AN RBF SYSTEM FOR THE CITY OF SANTA CRUZ

Nick Pogoncheff, Principal, PES Environmental, Novato, CA

[ 4:45 - 5:00 WRAP-UP and ADJOURN ]




SECTION _&/ﬂ.PAGE NO-.Q-——

REGISTRATION: MAXIMIZING AMERICA’S ALLUVIAL AQUIFERS

(Register online at agwt.org/events)

General Registration (August 8th) $275 | O HOW TO REGISTER
= Mail: American Ground Water Trust,
Employee of AGWT Corp Member (August 8th) $240 | O 50 Pleasant Street, Concord, NH 03301
Full-Time Student (ID required at Registration) (August 8th) $80 | O = Phone: (800) 423-7748 (9am-4pm
PDF of Presentations (Post Conference) — (Attendee Pricing) $30 | O f)aséi;":)(soa,) 298.6557
ihi i i i > Register on line
Exhibit Table (Personal Registration also Required) $250 | O fty ey P
Tour — RBF (Aug 7) (Must be registered for Aug 8th) $50 | O click here (if using online)
Tour = RBF (Aug 7) (Must be registered for Aug 8th) (Student) $20 | O Cancelation policy — see website
PAYMENT [ CHECK [payable: American Ground Water Trust] ITotaI S I
O AMEX O Visa O MasterCard O PO
Credit Card or PO No. Expiration
Cardholder Name
Registration Name
Title/Position
Company/ Organization
Address
City State Zip
Phone
E-Mail
. AMERICAN GROUND WATER TRUST
£ ’Lﬁ‘-'i}‘ﬁ LN Independent authority on groundwater
,fgei' L5 (Non-profit, 501 (c)(3) education organization)
l.*L "4‘-,/ )*J Ground Water Information, Awareness & Education Since 1986
\ff\ r~8 e This is what we do
it ~ Promote efficient and effective ground water management

~ Communicate the environmental and economic value of ground water
~ Showcase ground water science and technology solutions

~ Increase citizen, community and decision-maker awareness

~ Facilitate stakeholder participation in water resource decisions




secTonBD)_paceNo. L
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Ruth Hydro Production Report - Since June 1983

PG&E June 1983 through May 14, 2017

Total KWH Production | Average Monthly KWH Production
On Peak 11,630,086 28,575
Part Peak 58,575,072 143,919
Off Peak 83,856,378 206,035
Super Off Peak | 26,796,680 65,840
Grand Total 180,858,216 444,369
Pre REMAT Total Revenues $8,790,377.99
No. of Months of Operation 407.5
Average $/Kwh 0.0486
REMAT
June 2017 to June 2018

Hydro Production Payment - Beginning June 2017

2017/2018 Production KWH Totals Total No. Cumulative  Grand Total Avg
Monthly REMAT of Months  REMAT Revenuesto  $/Kwh
‘Month Day Shoulder - Night Total KWH Revenues #of Mos of Revenues Date REMAT
May 96,070.1 113,974.6 179,458.6 389,503.3 $ 30,388.07 0.5 407.5 $ 30,388.07 $ 8,820,766.06 S 0.0932
June 81,535.2 96,802.0 155,848.2 334,185.4 S 26,120.87 1 408 $ 56,508.94 S 8,846,886.93 S 0.0932
July 37,839.9 43,9786  69,926.9 151,745.4 S 14,146.42 2 409 $ 70,655.36 $ 8,861,033.35 S 0.0932
Aug 39,075.2 45,4189  71,539.6 156,033.7 $ 14,543.49 3 410 $ 8519885 $ 8,875576.84 $ 0.0932
Sept 36,363.2  42,226.0  66,220.2 144,809.4 $ 13,497.57 4 411 $ 98,696.42 S 8,889,074.41 S 0.0932
Oct 48,570.2 56,566.9 87,605.6 192,742.7 S 18,457.96 5 412 $117,154.38 $ 8,907,532.37 S 0.0958
Nov 77,4345 88,1103 138,532.3 304,077.1 S 29,180.65 6 413 $146,335.03 S 8,936,713.02 $ 0.0960
Dec 83,746.8 100,034.0 158,937.6 342,718.4 $ 32,775.44 7 414 $179,11047 S 8,969,488.46 $ 0.0956
Jan 115,215.3 130,408.9 198,873.2 444,497.4 § 42,647.97 8 415 $221,75844 $ 9,012,136.43 $ 0.0959
Feb 180,500.0 214,085.6 343,849.9 7384355 $ 70,673.06 9 416 $292,43150 $ 9,082,809.49 $ 0.0957
Mar 228,557.2 265,473.5 412,331.2 906,361.9 $ 70,797.29 10 417 $363,228.79 $ 9,153,606.78 S 0.0781
Apr 225,414.8 266,539.0 422,9504 914,904.2 $ 71,453.25 11 418 $434,682.04 $ 9,225060.03 $ 0.0781
May 84,193.8 93,770.3 150,906.1 328,870.3 S 25,887.78 12 418 $460,569.82 $ 9,250,947.81 $ 0.0787
Hydro Production Payment - Beginning June 2018
2018/2019 Production KWH Totals Total No. Cumulative  Grand Total Avg
Monthly REMAT of Months  REMAT Revenues to $/Kwh
Month  Day Shoulder _ Night Total KWH Revenues  i#of Mos of Revenues Date REMAT

June 65,605.4 77,3135 122,281.8 265,200.7 S 20,713.83 13 420 $ 48128365 $ 9,271,661.64 $ 0.0781



Aepy

judy

LVINITY UOHONPOIG A4 JUBLIND e

yorep

Alenuqga4

Yauo

Aenuer  Jaquwiadag  JagquisAop

Ym)| 98BISAY 3§ |EIIIO]SIH wmemee

13qo10

Jaqualdag sndny Ajnr

auny

“SECTION )2/ PAGENO, | o2 _

HAI SEL'TST'S
|ejo a8eJany [enuuy |eI1103SIH

000°00T -

000002

000°00€

000°00%

000005

000009 -

000'00L

000008

000006

HMI

3)e] Yyiny 1e Jue|d d143199]901pAH uljass05)
UuoIdINPOId dAIIRINWIND |BN1IY "SA |EILIOISIH




SECTION, /2. PAGE NO.___ 2

SELLER: Electric Statement|

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

828 7th Street Invoice prepared 2018-07-02 17:37:41

Eureka, CA 95501 Invoice period 2018-06

Attention: General Manager Contract reference 33R403RM
Executed 2016-10-16

PURCHASER: Payment due 2018-07-30

Pacific Gas and Electric Company Meter id LOWGAP 7 QFUNTS

P.O. Box 770000 Channel WH3 REC

Mail Code N12E Project Matthews Dam Hydro

San Francisco, CA 94177

Attention: Azmat Mukhtar

(ASM3@pge.com), Mgr. Bilateral

Settlements

Summary Invoice |

Charge Gen (kWh) Sold (kWh) TOD factor TOD $/kWh Energy (8)
Day 65,605.4 65,605.4 1.270 0.11332210 7,434.54
Shoulder 77,313.5 77,313.5 0.280 0.02498440 1,931.63
Night 122,281.8 122,281.8 1.040 0.09279920 11,347.65
Totals 265,200.7 265,200.7 0.875 0.07810622 20,713.83 |

Page 1/1



SECTION. L2/ PAGE NO. _j_é_._

u3wAed 13 anUaAsY Jelney/sisAjeuy 1epNay/3uizunoiny /o

379 Dd WOJY PAAISO3I St yIuow 104 Juswihed Y314y DUl ‘S91LI20SSY POOMUIH 19 ABISU3 NL 03 panssi Je $yIayd aretedas,

_ 80°0 S HM) 13d d10Y Papua|g Jua1n) _

- S8'ETV'TT $ | 9szrL S 95Tyl S |98v08'L $| €¥620°0 €8'ETL0Z S 0£'002'59Z
(Auno)) U] “I08sy >|mhm:m NLr s,lunin ey SO /PETT 0266L760°0  08°18Z'ZTT AHDIN
pung 18Iy poomuay 0l 9jeqay aseq 335d IunjAl | €9'1€6°T rv8617¢0'0 0S'€TE'LL AVA-QIN/H3IATNOHS
o] 3juejeg S YEY'L OTZZEETT'0  OV'S09'S9 — Nv3Id/AVa
Ahsan *05/0S pPaAIBIDY HAI/S HAI aoiyad

jds s130010u0) 9500°08 39043U0) judWAed 1|19y
10N3Y 0] PaIBJa. SAIALIS [DUOISSAfOIq

8I0Z ‘0g-1 aunf

8T/LTOTA4 spund IUNA 13 1BIAIBY 38Dd JO UOlIR|Nd[E.D



secnon;)fj _ﬁ PAGE NO.

Confidential: Documents submitted under D.06-06-066 and/or PU Code §454.5(g), and PU Code 583

5

pe

Pacific Gas and
DGAF Electric Company”

Purchase / Sales Invoice
Invoice Number: 124025

Delivery Period Start:06/01/2018
Delivery Period End: 06/30/2018
Invoice Date: 07/11/2018

Due Date: 07/31/2018

Log Number: 33R403RM
Account Code: 2320311
Meter Channel: R403RT
Contract Start: 05/15/2017

From:

Pacific Gas and Electric Company
77 Beale Street

San Francisco, CA 94105

Contract Manager: Kristy Leung
Phone: 415-973-7657
Email: kell@pge.com

Settlement Analyst: Marshall
Hutzelman

Phone: 415-973-8032

Fax: 415-973-9505

Email: MKHi@pge.com

To:

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
P. Q. Box 95

Eureka, CA 95501

Project Name: MATTHEWS DAM HYDRO
Payment Method: CHECK
Vendor Number: 1024538

Contact: Steve Marshall
Phone: 707-822-2918
Fax:

Email: ops@hbmwd.com

Payment Name Quantity Unit Amount
Energy Payment 06/01/2018 - 06/30/2018 265.201 MWh $-20,713.82
Deemed Delivered Payment 0.000 MWh $0.00
Annual Excess Energy Payment 0.000 MWh $0.00
GEP Penalty 0.000 MWh $0.00
CAISO Pass Thru T+12 0.000 MWh $0.00
CAISO Pass Thru T+55 0.000 MWwh $0.00
CAISO Pass Thru T+194 0.000 MWh $0.00

Net Total $-20,713.82
Total Amount Due to HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT on Due Date: 07/31/2018 UsSD $ 20,713.82

33R403RM | MATTHEWS DAM HYDRO | 124025 Page1of3




8102/EL/L

secmon;lzﬁ__, PAGE NO. _&....

XS|x"(8102-EL0Z) POI IU1I3]T CIPAH\POI OIPAH\SLOREIBAOND

Yuow

%f

8T0T e

QTOZ reeess

S10C

V107 ===
€107 <vv--

8T0Z - €T0Z (HM)I) uopanpoad oapAH Ajyauowy :aMINGH

vi @/
AN N ,méy eo%. &
W N X W \
0
000'00Z
. e
000°00% 5
g
[+]
000009 w
.
&
000°008 a8
(=]
3 |
000'000'T & |
s
X
L 000'002°T

£€6'28L°) 6£0°L08°) 991°120°9 181'S0E°E Zov'sve‘z 192'822' lenuuy |ejor
i e |8EAEVE 1688846 |SL6'0LS  [£28'599 9€6'09} I ki
B 771 7B 10X Y S [T T 1%/ S sevast | ... JequenoN
o |E¥LEBY  f0S6'6SL |piSuy) |SlisyL leveesL ; 199010
. f0OBPYL  fO228pL o [sov'syl  |020'Gyl 8oL6OL | lsqusjdsg
e (VEOOSL JMEGAVL  |2J60FL  lOcz'evb |ggpgoL [T isnbry
oo |SPANSL  |VOSUVL o le6S0sk T feogeyl T [GZroL vl e AIND
0es9e |eslvee Isveeyl lssO'evl [0894p) ppOZsL | T eunr
08%82¢ |vSc89 | 9egece |eoglisl 180606l T lerzgl T T T T Ren
V0616 |€€0'296 €/6'€25 _lese’0lL _ [eee'cvs cvzy | Ty
29€906  _ [00¥ 998 _|osz0s6 seg'loe . Jet8los _lsze'soo | T oiew
OEV'8EL T [ilv've8 6/g'8v8  |01'69L 0 L leso'el T Rignigad
L6V by 295916 £01°206 119'2€9 200'Ly 21296 Kighuer
8102 102 9102 5102 ¥102 £102 WUoW

8L0Z - £L0ZAD 103 (HMM) uoloNpo.d 01439313 0ipAH AjLyuop
jJo1381Q J9jep [ediouniy Aeg jpjoquiny




SECTION ‘5-&—. PAGE No' -‘ﬂﬁLﬂ-ﬂﬂ '

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Ruth Bunkhouse Remodel] Project

BID

Proposal of True North Constructors Inc.
(hereinafter called "Blddcr"), organized and existing under the laws of the State of California,

doing business as a Corporation . e

To the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District, a political subdivision of the State of California
(hereinafter called "Owner").

In compliance with your Advertisement for Bids, Bidder hereby proposes to perform all work for
the construction of the Ruth Bunkhouse Remodel Project in strict accordance with the Contract
Documents, within the time set forth thercin, and at the prices stated below.

In the event of a difference between a price quoted in words and a price quoted in figures for the
same quotation, the words shall be the amount bid. In the event that the product of a unit price
and an estimated quantity does not equal the extended amount quoted, the unit price shall govern
and the corrected product of the unit price and the estimated quantity shall be deemed to be the
amount bid. If the sum of two or more items in a bidding schedule does not equal the total
amounts quoted, the individual items amounts shall govern and the corrected total shall be

deemed to be the amount bid.

By submission of this bid, each bidder certifies, and in the case of a joint bid, each party certifies
as to his own organization, that his bid has been arrived at independently, without consultation,
communication, or agreement as to any matter relating to this bid with any other bidder or with

any competitor.

Bidder hereby agrees to commence work under this Contract on or before a date to be specified
in the Notice to Proceed and to fully complete the project and pay the liquidated damages as
provided in Articles III and IV of the General Conditions.

Bidder agrees to perform all the work described in the Contract Documents for the following unit

prices or lump sum.
NOTE: Bids shall include sales tax and all other applicable taxes and fees.

*Insert "a corporation,” "a partnership,” or "an individual” as applicable.

Part 1 ' B-7 ) Bid Docunients



SECTION.Z & PAGENO. 2

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Ruth Bunkhouse Remodel] Project
BID PROPOSAL
BASE BID SCHEDULE
/il Bid)
TOTAL OF BASE BID (From Spreadsheet) ($__475,000.00 )

TOTAL OF BASE BID IN WORDS ($_four hundred seventy five thousand dollars )

Award will be made to the lowest, responsive, responsible BIDDER. The low bidder shall be
determined based on the above E

iectiveof the project is to install 700 LF of screen. [f the Contractor is not-abie
approximately 700 L oreen in five laterals due to obstructions-encountered, additional
alternate lateral(s) shall be mstalled Onicalternative Jateral location is shown on the Contract

Plans. If addition locations are required-be ' ese locations will be
determined through consultation with the Owner and the Engineer. agrees to
W onal laterals for the umt pnces given in the ADDITIVE BID SCHED
Cl1OW.

Receipt of the 1ollowing Addendum is acknowledged:

_Addendum 1 noted

The representations made herein are made under penalty of perjury.

Respectfully submitted:
. ﬂ"’- President
Signature Title
1010975 8/5/18
License Number Date
2/29/2020

License Expiration Date

(SEAL - If Bid is by Corporation)

Bid Documents . B-8 . : \ Part 1

\\\\



SECTION.JC.3_ PAGE No.D__!

» Bond #706521P
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Premium: $8,125 subject to adjustment
Kot Bkhonss Remods) Froject based on final contract price

PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That

TRUE NORTH CONSTRUCTORS, INC.
(Name of Contractor)

5812 Green Acres Dr., Anderson, % 36007
(Address of Contractor)

a California Corporation , hereinafter called Principal, and
(Corporation, Partnership, or Individual)

DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY

(Name of Surety_)

17771 Cowan, #100, Irvine, CA 92614
(Address of Surety)

hereinafier called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto

828 Seventh Street. Eureka. California 95501 o .
(Address of Owner)

hereinafier called Owner, in the penal sum of

Four Hundred Seventy Five Thousand and No/100---- (§ 475,000.00) in lawful

mHney of the United States, for the pay;ment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind
ourselves, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the Principal entered into a
certain contract with the Owner, dated __ 16th DAY OF August 2018 _ acopy of
which is hereto attached and made a part hereof for the construction of:

Ruth Bunkhouse Remodel Project
NOW, THEREFORE, If the Principal shall well, truly and faithfully perform its duties, all the
undertaking, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of said contract during the original
term thereof, and any extensions thereof which may be granted by the Owner, with or without
notice to the Surety and during one year (inimum) guaranty period, and if he shall satisfy all
claims and demands incurred under such contract, and shall fully indemnify and save harmless
the Owner from all costs and damages which it may suffer by reason of failure to do so, and shall
reimburs: and repay the Owner all outlay and expense which the Owner may incur in making
good any default, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect.
PROVILED, FURTHER, that the said Surety for value received hereby stipulates and agrees

Contract Documents Cc4 Part 2



SECTIONY 2 PAGE NO. _fﬁ_

200 0 2 0 o}

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Ruth Bunkhouse Remode] Project

that po change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the

work to be performed thereunder of the Specifications accompanying the same shall in any wise
affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension
of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work or to the Specifications.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the Owner and the Contractor shall
abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in _4 _ counterparts, each one of which
shall be deemed an original, this _ 16th day of August ,2018 .

ATTEST:
TRUE NORTH CONSTRUCTORS, INC.

Principal N

-t

(i’acipal) Secretary

) S
. é{_ o
(SEAL) /.’E;T

5812 Green Acres Drive

(Address_)
Anderson, CA 96007

forr B

Witness as to Principal

(Address) DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY
Surety )
ATTEST: . C . .
B%d‘ L\ A RNOB T
SEE NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ‘A ttorne¥-in-Fa
Witness as to Surety 17771 Cowan, #100
(Address)

Irving, CA 92614

(Address_‘._) _

NOTE: Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Contract. If Contractor is Partnership, all
partners should execute Bond.

IMPORTANT: Surety companies executing Bonds must appear on the Treasury Department's
most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the State
where the project is located.

Part 2 C-5 Contract Documents



-~
SECTION(_PAGENO.—___

POWER OF ATTORNEY FOR
DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY
INDEMNMITY COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA
PO Box 19725, IRVINE, CA 82623 (949) 263-3300

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS that except as expressly limited, DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY and INDEMNITY COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA, do each

hereby make, conslilute and appoinl:
***Jody A. Johnson, Joseph Quillon Gibson, jointly or severally*™

as their true and lawful Atiomey(s)-in-Fact, to make, execule, deliver and acknowledge, for and on behalf of said corporations, a5 surelies, bonds, undertakings and conlracts of
surelyship giving and granting unto said Atomey{s)-in-Fact full povrer and autherity to do and to perform every act necessary, requisile or proper to be done in conneclion therewith as
each of said carporalions could do, but reserving {o each of said corporations full power of substitulion and revocation, and all of the acls of sald Attomey(s)-in-Fact, pyrsuant la these

presents, are hereby ralified and confimed.
This Power of Attomey is granted and is signed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolulions adopled by the respective Boards of Direclors of DEVELOPERS SURETY
AND INDEMNITY COMPANY and INDEMNITY COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA, effective as of January 1st, 2008.

RESOLVED, lhat a combination of any two of the Chairman of the Board, the President, Execulive Vice-President, Senior Vice-President or any Vice President of the
corporations be, and that each of them hereby is, authorized to execule this Power of Allomey, qualifying the atlomey(s) named in the Power of Attomey to execule, on behalf of the
corporalions, bonds, undertakings and contracts of suretyship; and that fhe Secretary or any Assistant Secrelary of either of Ihe corporations be, and each of them hereby s, aulhorized

to attest the execution of any such Power of Attorney;

RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the signatures of such officers may be affixed to any such Power of Attomey or to any cerlificate relafing thereto by facsimile, and any such
Pawer of Atiomey or cerlificale bearing such facsimile signatures shall be valid and binding upon the corporalions when so afiixed and in the future with respect to any bond, undertaking

or conlract of surelyship to which it is atiached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY and INDEMNITY COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA have severally caused these presents o be signed by
thelr respective officers and etested by their respectve Secretary or Assistant Secretary this 6th day of February, 2017,

By: (:Dﬁr/oa-/ %za,,e
v

Daniel Young, Senior Vice-President

e T = D

Mark Lansdon, Vice-President

A notary public or other officer completing this cerificate versifies only the identity of the Individual who sighed the
document to which this cerificate is aftached, and not the fruthfulness, accuracy, or validity of thal document.

State of California
Counly of Qrange
On Febnsary 6, 2017 before me, Lucille Ravmond. Nolary Public
Dals Here Insert Name and Tie of fae Officer
personally appeared __ ° Daniel Young and Mark Lansdon
Nama(s) of Sigaes(s)

who proved to me on the basis of salisfactory evidence lo be the person(s) whose name(s) isfare subsciibed
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that hefshellhey execuled the same in hishedihelr authorized
capacliyfies}, and that by hisherfthelr signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), o the enlityupon behalf of
which the person(s) acled, execuled the Instrument.

LUCILLE RAYMOND

Commission # 2081945 4
Notaty Public - Californla X | certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of Califomia that he foregeing paragraph is
Oranps County 2 lrue and correc.
My Comm. Expires Oct 13, 2018 VITHESS my tramd e officil scal }c(
i my frand and official seal, M%"
Place Notary Seal Above Signature £/ ¢ < iy ;.rh;(
Lucﬂlt;éyrﬁohd, Notary Public 7
CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, as Secrelary or Assistant Secretary of DEVELOPERS SUREIY AND INDEMNITY GOMPANY.- or.INDEMNITY COMPANY-OF CALIFORNIA, does hersby
cerlify that the foregoing Power of Atiorney remains in full force and has not been revoked and, fyrthermore, (itthe provisions of fhe resolulions of the respeciive Boards of Directors of

&

said corporations set forth In the Power of Afomey are in force &s of the date of this Cerificate. S ‘
16th gygAugust-~2018

0

This Certilicale is execule!j in the City of Irvine, Califotnia, this

w%%m

Cassie Jﬁr;is{ord,)\ssista-nt Sétbélary

4"

»
{
f
i

. NI

7y ATy,

'
ot
‘
e
A
&

o Y
N ‘\é
,

ATS-1002 (02/17) SR O M

z,




SECTION\_E_C_/_, PAGE NO. _ZE___

Bond #706521P

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Premium: Included in FP Bond
Ruth Bunkhouse Remode] Project

PAYMENT BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: that

_ TRUE NORTH CONSTRUCTORS, INC.
(Name of Contractor)

5812 Green Acres Dr., Anderson, CA 96007
(Address of Contractor)

a California Corporation ] , hereinafter called Principal, and
(Corporation, Partnership, or Individual)

DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY
(Name of Surety)

17771 Cowan #100, Irvine, CA 92614
(Address of Surety)

hereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District o -

828 Seventh Street. Bureka. California 95501 N
(Address of Owner)

hereinafier called Owner, in the penal sum of

Four Hundred Seventy Five Thousand and No/100——  ($475,000.00 ), jn lawful

money of the United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind
ourselves, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the Principal entered into a
certain contract with the Owner, dated ___16th DAY OF August 2018  a copy hereto
attached and made a part hereof for the construction of:

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall promptly make payment to all persons, firms,
subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the prosecution
of the work provided for in such contract, and any authorized extension or modification thereof,
including all amounts due for materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, coal and coke, repairs on
machinery, equipment and tools, consumed or used in connection with the construction of such
work, and all insurance premiwns of said work, and for all wages and fringe benefits of labor,
performed in such work, whether by subcontractor or otherwise, then this obligation shall be
void; otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

Contract Documents C-6 ) Part 2



SECTIONY 3 ¢ PAGE NO._1~__

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Ruth Bunkhouse Remodel Project

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said Surety for value received hereby stipulated and agrees
that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the

work to be performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any wise
affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension
of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work or to the specifications.

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the Owner and the Contractor shall
abridge the right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, this instrument is executed in __4__ counterparts, each one of which

shall be deemed an original, this _16th _dayof August 20 18
ATTEST:
TRUE NORTH CONSTRUCTORS INC.
o Prmc1pa1
(Principal) Secretary SN Tt
M/‘W&‘ﬁ%i
: g S TN
5812 Green Acres Dr. :‘F_l: ~

Address
i ﬁ_nderson, CA 96007

Witness as to Principal

Address
DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY
ATTEST: ‘
]25_ I 5 N_. \\Qm
Witness as to Surety Atto ct Jody A Johnson -
7771 Cowan #100
- Address
Address

Irving, CA 92614 B LTSN

NOTE: Date of bond must not be prior to date of Contract. If Contractor is Partnership, all
partners should execute bond.

IMPORTANT: Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department's

most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the State
where the project is located.

Part 2 C-7 Contract Documents



SECTION\ | 5L~ PAGE No.g—"

POWER OF ATTORNEY FOR
DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY
INDEMNITY COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA
PO Box 19725, IRVINE, CA92623 (949) 263-3300

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS that excepi. as expressly limited, DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY and INDEMNITY COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA, do each

hereby make, constitute and appoint:
** Jody A. Johnson, Joseph Quillon Gibson, jointly or severally***

as lheir trre @nd lawi] Atlomey(s)-in-Facl, lo make, execule, deliver and acknowledge, for and on behalf of said corparations, es surefies, bonds, underiakings and conlracts of
surelyship giving and granting unto said Attomey{s)-in-Fact full power ang authority to do and lo perform every act necessary, reguisite or proper fo be done In conneclion therewilh as
each of said corporations could do, but reserving b2 each of said corporations full power of subsblution and revocalion, and all of the acls of said Altamey(s)-in-Fact, pusuant to these
presents, are hereby ratified and confirmed.

This Power of Atiomey is granted and is signed by {acsimile under and by authorily of ihe following resolulions adopted by the respective Boards of Direclors of DEVELOPERS SURETY
AND INDEMNITY COMPANY and INDEMNITY COI4PANY OF CALIFORNIA, efieclive as of January s, 2008.

RESOLVED, lhat a combination of any tvo of the Chaiman of the Board, the President, Execulive Vice-President, Senior Vice-President or any Vice President of the
corporztions be, and that each of lhem hereby is, authorized fo execute this Power of Allomey, qualifying the atiomey(s) named in the Power of Atomey to execule, on behaif of the
comporations, bonds, undertakings and contracls of strelyship; and hat the Secretary or any AssTslant Secretary of either of the corparalions be, and each of them hereby is, autherized
lo attest the execulion of any such Power of Attorney;

RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the signatures of such officers may be affixed {o any such Power of Atlomey or lo any cerlificate relaling thereto by facsimile, and any such
Power of Attorney or cerlificale bearing such facsimile signatures shalf be valid and binding upon the corporations when 5o afiixed and in the fulure with respect (o any bond, undertaking
or conlract of surelyship to which it is attached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMMITY COMPANY and INDEMNITY COMPANY OF CALIFORNIA have severally caused these presents i be signed by
their raspecuve officers and aftested by their respective: Secretary or Assistant Secrelary tis 6th day of Febmary, 2017,

Sseen,
DamelYoung,SemurV':e—Prestdenl f;?;ig}) Rz

% %’ 1§, 1% o
By %S

Mark Lansdon, Vice-President 2

ko
TP

s,
a4,

o4

’,
%,

%,

A notary public or ofher officer completing this cerlificate verifies only the identily of the Individual who sighed the
document to which this cerlif cate is aftached, and not the fruthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

State of California

Caunly of Orange

On February 6, 2017 ____hbeforeme, Lucille Raymond, Notary Public

Dala Here Ieert Nama and Tile of Gre Offices
personally appeared : Daniel Yotng and Mark | ansdon
Nama(c) of Signex(s)

who proved to me on the basis of salisfactory evidence fo be the person(s) whose name(s) isfare subscribed
to the within inslrument and acknowledged to me that hefsheflhey executed the same in hisherfthelr aulhorized
capaclly(ies), and that by histherfthelr slgnalure(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the enlity upon behalf of

LUCILLE RAYMOND which the person(s} acled, execuled Ihe instument.

Commission # 2081945
Notary Public - California I | cerlify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
E true and corsecl.

S-S Orange County
] My Comm. Exelres Oet 13, 2018 [
: WITNESS my hand and official seal.
/7 Dﬂ!,a/@ GW

Signalure

Place Notary SealAhave
Lucmuﬂéydmnu Notary Public

CERTIFICATE
The undersigned, as Secretary or Assistant Secretary of DEVELOPERS SUR;EI'YAND INDEMNITY GOMPANY or INDEMNITY COMPANY-OF CALIFORNIA, does hereby
ceriify that the foregoing Power of Atioriey remains in full force and has not been sevoked and, furthermore, lhal the provisions of the resolutions ol'the respeclive Boards of Difectors of

said eorporations set forih in the Power of Atiomey are in force as of the dale of lh:s Cerificale... .

This Certificate fs executed in the Cily of Irvine, California, this 316 ER  dayol Ay gust 2018 -

@Mm/o’ /ﬁ”"’-"f,@%

Cassie Jﬁmsford , Assistant Sedtary

‘““IIII',.’

s "-.
U

?,
e&?f‘-ﬁ'-’-...@

aavlieg,

\“‘
%

aper=",

S
E

lvm’}: 4 ot

ATS-1002 (02117)




MANAGEMENT




GRASSROOTS ACTION BRIEF

TAKE ACTION ="

California Special Districts Association FPriorities

August 2018

August will be a busy month in Sacramento. When the Legislature reconvenes on August 6, legisiators will
immediately prepare for fiscal committee hearings that will be held through August 17. Floor session will
begin on August 20 and bills must pass both houses by August 31 if they are to move to the Governor's
desk to be signed or vetoed. CSDA will carefully monitor and act on all state legislation that affects special
districts.

Read on for the latest details on legislation impacting special districts and visit csda.net/take-action to learn
more.

Inside this edition of the Grassroots Action Brief:

JPA Legislation Amended to Remove Local Government Opposition. ...............ccccc.oovvecerieeee e, 2
Bill Mandates Additional CEQA Notices and Public Outreach for Projects in Disadvantaged
L0010 411 g1 3
CSDA Positions on 2018 Ballot MeasUures ... e e 4
CSDA Supports Sexual Harassment Prevention Training Legislation.............c..cocooiiiiiiien ol 5
Promote the Student VIdeo Contest!....... ... e e e e 0aD)
Other Ways to Take Action

Have an ldea for Creating a New Law, or Removing an Old Law?.......................c...oai 6

Learn, Engage, Give Feed Back, and Stay Informed ...............cccooiiiiiiiniii i 7

Contact a local CSDA representative near you!

Dane Wadlé Northern & Sierra Networks danew(@csda.net
Colleen Haley Bay Area Network colleenh@csda.net
Steven Nascimento Central Network stevenn@csda.net

Chris Palmer _ Coastal & Southern Network chrisp@csda.net

Get additional resources at the VAKE ACTION  Center online at www.csda.net/advocate/take-action Page |1




[

& TAKE ACTION <=~

California Special Districts Association Priorities

» GOVERNANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

CSDA’s long range policy priority on govemance and accountability is to enhance special districts’ ability to govern as independent,
local government bodies in an open and accessible manner. Encourage best practices that avoid burdensome, costly, redundant,
or one-size-fits all approaches. Protect meaningful public participation in local agency formations, dissolutions, and reorganizations,
and ensure local services meet the unique needs, priorities, and preference of each community

JPA Legislation Amended to Remove Local Government Opposition

Assembly Member Freddie Rodriguez has amended Assembly Bill 1912 to remove local government
opposition, including that of CSDA, the League of California Cities, and the California State Association of
Counties. While AB 1912 still places new liabilities on JPA member agencies that had not existed before, the
new requirements in AB 1912 are significantly more manageable than the original version and help protect
employees from losing their pension if a JPA were to fail.

Following the failure of the East San Gabriel Valley Human Services Consortium Joint Powers Authority that
had $19.4 million in unfunded pension liabilities, nearly 200 employees and retirees had their pensions
reduced by roughly 60 percent. In response, Assembly Member Rodriguez, Chair of the Assembly Public
Employees, Retirement, and Social Security Committee, introduced Assembly Bill 1912.

As originally drafted, AB 1912 would have assigned prospective and retroactive joint and several liability to
Joint Powers Authority (JPA) member agencies with regards to a JPA's pension liabilities. This significant
change in law would have resulted in substantial financial reporting issues and may have resulted in the
downgrading of credit ratings of JPA member agencies, impacting bond ratings, and potentially even violating
constitutional debt limits.

However, as amended on July 3, the bill now requires apportioned liability of pension obligations be
assigned to JPA member agencies, and only prior to a JPA dissolving, ceasing operations, or terminating its
contract with the retirement system. The resuit is that most member agencies will never have to report the
pension liabilities of their JPAs, as long as the JPAs continue to operate. Additionally, the apportionment of
the liabilities would be determined first by the member agencies. If they cannot agree on the apportionment,
then CalPERS would determine the apportionment. If the member agencies don't agree with CalPERS'
determination, then the apportionment would go to binding arbitration.

Prospectively, AB 1912 will require an agreement with regard to the apportionment of liability upon entering
into a contract with a pension system. However, CalPERS is already requiring joint and several liability on
new JPA contracts, with or without this bill.

Should you have any questions about AB 1912 or CSDA’s position on the bill, please contact CSDA
Senior Legislative Representative Dillon Gibbons at dillong@csda.net.

Get additional resources at the TAKE ACTION  Center online at www.csda.net/advocate/take-action Page |2




‘m - o &

?ﬁoﬁEONﬁFc TI 0 N secnon){_ LpacEN0. D

California Special Districts Association Priorities

» INFRASTRUCTURE, INNOVATION, AND INVESTMENT

CSDA’s long range policy principal regarding infrastructure, innovation, and investment is fo encourage prudent planning for
investment and maintenance of innovative long-term infrasiructure. CSDA supports the development of fiscal tools and incentives
fo assist special districts in their efforts to meet California’s changing demands, ensuring the efficient and effective delivery of core

local services.

Bill Mandates Additional CEQA Notices and Public Outreach for Projects in Disadvantaged
Communities

AB 2447 (Reves) is set to be heard the first week of August in the Senate Appropriations Committee. The
bill requires additional public outreach before concluding a CEQA review in a disadvantaged
community. CSDA is opposed to the bill.

AB 2447 requires a lead agency that is preparing an EIR or a negative declaration under CEQA for a
project with an industrial or similar land use to mail notices to disadvantaged communities within one half
mile of the project and hold a public scoping meeting.

CEQA already has robust notification requirements. A lead agency must provide public notice prior to
certification of the environmental impact report or adoption of a negative declaration within a reasonable
period in the following manners:

e Posting notice on and off site of where the project is to be conducted;
Publicizing the notice in a newspaper of general circulation;
Providing the notice to any individuals and organizations that have requested it;
Directly mailing the notice to the owners and occupants of contiguous property.

AB 2447 would additionally require the lead agency to:

» Mail the notice to the owners and occupants of property within one-half mile of a project (identified
in OEHN’s list).

» Provide the notice in any languages spoken by 3,000 individuals or five percent of the community’s
population.

» Call a scoping meeting to describe and take comments on the project. The scoping meeting would
have to be recorded and held within one mile of the project site, or if no meeting space is available,
within one half mile of a transit stop.

These new requirements will substantially increase the cost for a lead agency performing a CEQA review
to pay for additional postage, staff time, transiation services, and recording costs.

CEQA currently requires a scoping meeting only on projects of statewide, regional or area-wide
significance or projects that affect highways or other facilities from the Department of Transportation.
Current law gives flexibility to lead agencies on what defines a project as 'significant’. AB 2447 would not
only require a scoping meeting be held for many additional projects, but the meetings would have to be
held in the community, potentially adding significant costs to securing a meeting space. Special districts
conducting projects in rural and suburban areas would face a significant challenge locating a meeting
space within a half mile of public transit.

If you have any questions, or comments on how AB 2447 would affect your district, please contact CSDA’s
Legislative Representative Rylan Gervase at rylang@csda.net.

Get additional resources at the TRKE ACTION  Center online at www.csda.net/advocate/take-action Page |3



@ ?ﬁﬁﬁow ﬁ’ c T I 0 N SECTION _ja__. PAGE NO. _5@_ _

California Special Districts Association Priorities

» REVENUE, FINANCES, AND TAXATION

CSDA’s long range policy prionity on revenue, finances, and taxation is to ensure adequate funding for special districts’ safe and
reliable core local service delivery. Protect special districts’ resources from the shift or diversion of revenues without the consent of
the affected districts. Promote the financial independence of special districts and afford them access to revenue opportunities equal
to that of other types of local agencies.

CSDA Positions on 2018 Ballot Measures

This year, CSDA tracked several measures and adopted positions on four of them. Of the four for which
CSDA has a position, one was approved by the voters on the June ballot, one was withdrawn by its
sponsor, and two will go before voters in November. Let’s review the two propositions that will appear on
the November 6, 2018 ballot.

Proposition 5: Base Value Property Tax Portability

Proposition 5 or the “People's Initiative to Protect Proposition 13 Savings,” is of particular interest to
special districts that receive a share of ad valorem property tax revenue. It will generally allow those who
are over 55 years old or severely disabled to transfer their property tax base to a replacement residence,
with some adjustments depending on the value of the purchase, without regard for value, location, or
frequency.

It provides formulas for those cases where the replacement dwelling purchase price is below or above the
sale value of the original dwelling, as well as those dwellings destroyed in a disaster.

Under Proposition 13, ad valorem property taxes are generally capped at one percent, and the property’s
taxable value increases by no more than two percent per year. Generally, if the property is sold and
changes hands, it is then reassessed at full market value.

According to the Legislative Analyst’s Office, this measure would reduce property tax revenues for special
districts and other local governments by $1 billion annually over the long-term. It would also cost schools
an additional $1 billion annually over the long-term. CSDA has adopted an oppose position on this
measure.

For questions about Proposition 3, please contact CSDA Legislative Representative Anthony Tannehill at
anthonyt@csda.net.

Proposition 3: Water Quality Bond

Proposition 3, “The Water Supply and Water Quality Act of 2018,” would authorize $8.777 billion in general
obligation bonds for state and local projects in categories like safe drinking water, Sustainable
Groundwater Management (SGMA) implementation, watershed restoration, fish and wildlife habitat
conservation, and infrastructure repair.

Proposition 3 is a citizen’s initiative water bond that will appear on the November 2018 ballot. There is
only an 18% overlap in funding categories with Proposition 68, which was passed on the June 2018 ballot.

California’s recent catastrophic drought and subsequent flooding shows the need for increased funding for
water infrastructure and flood protection projects. Proposition 3 will provide millions to local agencies for
water infrastructure and environmental protection. Of interest to special districts is the money for clean
water projects, watershed protection, and groundwater management. This funding will help special
districts improve the quality of services provided to the public and meet state mandates. CSDA is
supporting the measure.

For questions about Proposition 3, please contact CSDA Legislative Representative Rylan Gervase at
rylang@csda.net.

Get additional resources at the TRKE ACTION  center online at www.csda.net/advocate/take-action Page |4




TAKE ACTION ===

California Special Districts Association Priorities

» HUMAN RESOURCES AND PERSONNEL

CSDA'’s long range policy priority on human resources and personnel is to promote policies related to hiring, management, and
benefits and retirement that afford flexibility, contain costs, and enhance the ability to recruit and retain highly qualified, career-
minded employees to public service. As public agency employers, support policies that foster productive relationships between
management and employees, both represented and non-represented.

CSDA Supports Sexual Harassment Prevention Training Legislation

In response to much publicized sexual harassment allegations throughout almost every sector of business
throughout the nation, the California State Legislature introduced more than a dozen bills to address the
issue of sexual harassment in the workplace. While some of the bills address liability issues and look to
increase penalties on harassment, CSDA has taken a support position on Senate Bill 1343 (Mitchell),
which aims to prevent sexual harassment before it begins through mandatory employee training.

Specifically, SB 1343 will require, beginning January 1, 2020, that all employers with five or more
employees provide sexual harassment prevention training to all of their employees within six months of
their hire and at least once every two years going forward. Additionally, for temporary or seasonal
employees, employers will need to provide sexual harassment prevention training within the first two-
weeks of the employees hire date. The training for employees in supervisorial roles will need to be at least
two-hours long, while the training for non-supervisorial employees must be at least one-hour long. To
assist employers with compliance, the bill requires the Department of Fair Employment and Housing to
develop online training courses and make them available on their website free of charge.

SB 1413 is currently in the Assembly Appropriations Committee and to this point has received unanimous
bipartisan support throughout the legislative process. Should you have any questions about the
requirements of SB 1413, or CSDA's position on the bill, please contact CSDA Senior Legislative
Representative Dillon Gibbons at dillong@csda.net.

> DISTRICTS MAKE THE DIFFERENCE

Districts Make the Difference was created to increase public awareness and understanding of special districts across Califomia.
The campaign website, www.districtsmakethedifference.orq provides a public place fo learn more about special districts and the
positive effect they have on their communities, while also serving as a resource for districts to download useful materials, collateral,

and information.
Promote the Student Video Contest!

It's time to start promoting the Districts Make the Difference 2018 Student Video Contest! The contest
submission period begins on August 27. Summer is the perfect time for high school and college
students to create a 60-second video highlighting how special districts truly make the difference in
communities throughout California.

Students have the opportunity to win a scholarship for their video. The first place winner will be awarded
$2,000 with $1,000 awarded to the second piace winner and $500 awarded to the third place winner. Also,
if a student is from the area of a participating chapter, their video will be automatically entered in the local
chapter division of the contest.

Students can start working on their videos prior to the submission period which will run August 27 to
September 30. Interesting and creative videos take some time to create so encourage students to start
working on their videos now. After the submission period closes, CSDA officials will select the top five
finalists and feature those videos on the Districts Make the Difference website. The public will then vote for

their favorite video throughout the month of November.

Do you know a student who may be interested? Do you know a teacher, principal, superintendent, or
school board member that can help promote the contest? Spread.the word!

Get additional resources at the TAKE ACTION  Center online at www.csda.net/advocate/take-action Page |5




GRASSROOTS ACTION BRIEF

TAKE AC TI 0 N secton | _paceno. (7

California Special Districts Association Priorities

o

There are promotional materials including a flyer, social media graphics, and sample website content
available at www.DistrictsMaketheDifference.org/video-contest.org to help you promote the contest.

The contest rules, application, and the 2017 winning videos are also available at the Districts Make the
Difference website.

Promote the contest today and your district may have a starring role in one of the winning student videos!

i N i #
r, l; I r:

www. DistrictsMaketheDifference.org

Learn more about our public outreach campaign at www.DistrictsMaketheDifference.org and engage with
us on social media:

s Like us on Facebook.com/CASpecialDistricts

s Follow us on Twitter @CA_Districts

¢ Use the hashtag #DistrictsMaketheDifference when posting your stories on social media.

¢ Download the logo to your homepage and link to www.DistrictsMakeTheDifference.org

If you have any questions about the video contest or how to better utilize CSDA’s public outreach campaign,
please contact CSDA’s Public Affairs Team at pr@csda.net.

> OTHER WAYS TO TAKE ACTION

Have an Idea for Creating a New Law, or Removing an Old Law?

Is your district facing an issue that could potentially be resolved through statewide legislation? Do you
have an idea to create, improve, or eliminate a law affecting special districts throughout the state?

CSDA is inviting our members to submit ideas for legislation that could potentially be selected as a CSDA
sponsored bill for the 2019 legislative session. Share your legislative proposal by completing and
submitting the 2019 Legislative Proposal Submission Form at www.csdaforms.wufoo.com/forms/2019-
leqislative-proposal-submission-form/, along with any supporting materials, to CSDA Legislative Analyst —
Attorney Mustafa Hessabi at mustafah@csda.net. You can also fax your submission to (916) 520-2466.

Legislative proposals should focus on furthering the interest of all types of special districts, regardless of
geographic region or type(s) of service provided. All submissions are reviewed by CSDA staff and
assessed for political implications, potential consequences, cost of implementation and more. Selected
proposals will then be presented to the CSDA Legislative Committee for final approval.

This year, CSDA'’s sponsored bill is SB 929 (McGuire), which would require every independent special
district, beginning January 1, 2020, to maintain an Internet web site, with exceptions for districts when a
hardship exists. This legislation has passed out of the Senate and is currently awaiting a vote on the
Assembly floor.

The deadline to submit a proposal is September 28, 2018. For any questions, please contact Mustafa
Hessabi at mustafah@csda.net.

Get additional resources at the VAKE ACTION  Center oniine at www.csda netadvocateftake-action Page |6



GRASSROOTS ACTION BRIEF

TAKE ACTION  =~Klrev7-

California Special Districts Association Priorities

Learn

The 2018 CSDA Annual Conference and Exhibitor Showcase website is now live, and registration is open!
Additionally, directly download the brochure for detailed information on the conference. The conference
will take place Sept. 24 — 27, 2018 at the Renaissance Indian Wells Resort and Spa. Register here!

Engage

For a limited time, CSDA is giving 20% off the first year of dues to new members. Ask for the special
application and join before August 31. Contact member services specialist, Anna Palmer, at 877.924.2732
or annap@csda.net for a summary of benefits and a dues schedule.

Give Feedback

Join an Expert Feedback Teams to provide CSDA staff with invaluable insights on policy issues. Email
marcusd@csda.net to inquire about joining one of the following teams:

¢ Budget, Finance and Taxation ¢ Human Resources and Personnel
e Environment ¢ Governance
e Formation and Reorganization e Public Works and Contracting

Stay Informed

In addition to the many ways you can TAKE ACTION with CSDA's advocacy efforts, CSDA offers a
variety of tools to keep you up-to-date and assist you in your district's legislative and public outreach.
Make sure you're reading these resources:

¢ CSDA’s weekly e-Newsletter
¢ Districts in the News
e (CSDA’s CA Special District Magazine

Email advocacy@csda.net for help accessing these additional member resources.

Get additional resources at the VAKE ACTION  Center online at www.csda.net/advocate/take-action Page |7




SECTION_[{7. PAGENO._| ___

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Office

Utility & Rate:
Business Type:
Survey Date:
Report Date:

828 7th Street

Eureka, CA, 95501

Presented To: John Friedenbach
Title: Business Manager

T: 707-443-5018

Customer Report
PG&E, A1 Program: Energy Watch 2016-2018
Office - Small (OFS) Audit Type: Assessment Phase 1
July 23, 2018 Audit #: 5401
July 31, 2018

M: Email: friedenbach@hbmwd.com

Address: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Office, 828 7th Street, Eureka, CA 95501

Project Summary - Assessment Phase 1

Total Installed Cost:
Instant Rebate: -

$816.51
$709.24

Your Final Cost:

" Estimated Savings:

Simple Payback:

Return On Investment:
Rebate % of Total Cost:
Estimated Monthly Savings:
Estimated Energy Savings:
Power Reduction:
C0,Emissions Reduction:

$107.27

0.1 years

667%

87%
$59.63
3,949 kWhlyr
1.683 kW
2,123 Ibslyr

(Calculations based on average cost of $0.24 per kWh and 18COM_IHDI_HTR rebate.)

The instant rebate is based on proposed energy savings. If the actual installation and/or energy savings vary from as
specified here within, or should PG&E determine a seperate allowable rebate amount, RCEW reserves the right to recalculate

the rebate post completion.

Program Mgr: Ben Mattio
Redwood Coast Energy Authority

633 3rd Street

Eureka, CA 95501

Tel (707) 269-1700

Fax (707) 269-1777
bmattio@redwoodenergy.org

Project Mgr: Derek Hilson
Redwood Coast Energy Authority
633 3rd Street

Eureka, CA 95501

Tel 707.269.1700

Fax 707.269.1777
dhilson@redwoodenergy.org

The Redwood Coast Energy Watch is funded by Califomia utility ratepayers under the auspices of the California Public Ulilities

Redwood Coast Energy Watch (707) 269-1700

Commission.

7/31/2018 10:07:27 AM



SEGTION KoL PAGE NO._Q.:.- |

Feasibility Study of Roof Mounted Solar Photovoltaic Options for
the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Offices

August 2018

Executive Summary

The Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (HBMWD) applied to participate in Redwood Coast Energy
Authority’s (RCEA’s) Public Agency Solar Program (PASP) in April of 2018. RCEA has worked with
HBMWD staff since then to develop a plan for energy efficiency upgrades and a solar PV installation at
their administrative offices at 828 7t Street.

RCEA recommends that HBMWD move to implement the proposed project solution which would
include:

e The addition of an electric vehicle (EV) charging station for public use, additional energy use
would be offset by lighting efficiency.

e An LED lighting efficiency upgrade office-wide reducing annual electric consumption by 18%.

s A 14.7 kW DC roof top solar PV array that would offset 90% of the 7™ Street office loads and
97% of the electricity bills.

RCEA finds that the proposed PV project would meet the requirements of the California Energy
Commission {CEC) 1% interest loan for feasible energy efficiency and renewable energy projects. RCEA
recommends that HBMWD apply for the CEC 1% loan for project funding

The analysis throughout this report includes the estimated energy use and cost increases from the
addition of an EV charging station and the energy use and cost savings from an LED lighting upgrade.
RCEA's analysis shows that implementation of these projects would deliver significant financial benefits
to HBMWD while decreasing their overall electric load and providing greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction
benefits. Table 1 below shows a summary of the potential benefits.

Table 1 Summary of RCEA's proposed solution for HBMWD's energy efficiency and renewable energy

projects.

Reduced Annual Electricity Consumption (kWh) 1,267
PV System Size (kW DC) 14.72
Annual Energy Production {kWh) 19,246
Estimated System Cost (S) $44,454
First Year Bill Savings ($) $4,644
Estimated Energy Offset from PV (%) 90%
Estimated Bill Offset from PV (%) 97%
Simple System Payback (Years) 10.1
Discounted System Payback at 5% Discount Rate (Years) 12.9
NPV of Savings at 25 Years ($) $46,652
Savings to Investment Ratio 1.05
Discounted ROl at 5% Discount Rate {%) 5%
Lifetime Avoided CO; emissions (Metric Tons) 29




sEcTION KL pagENO. D)

Introduction

RCEA began working with HBMWD as part of RCEA’s Public Agency Solar Program in May of 2018. After
an initial kick-off meeting with HBMWD staff, RCEA began its analysis of the energy consumption,
efficiency opportunities, and solar photovoltaic installation opportunities at HBMWD’s offices at 828 7t
Street in Eureka. This report will focus on RCEA’s electric load analysis, lighting efficiency opportunities,
the addition of an electric vehi:le charging station, the results of the solar site assessment, analysis of

project options, and financial analysis

During the initial kick-off meeting, HBMWD requested that RCEA analyze four potential project
scenarios:

¢ Estimate the savings available from lighting efficiency upgrades only.

¢ Estimate the eleciric load after lighting efficiency upgrades with the addition of an
electric vehicle ch.arging station at the Eureka office.

e Size a new solar array to offset remaining loads plus the additional load from the

charging equipment.
o Develop a solar arr¢ y size that maximizes the energy production on HBMWD’s office
roof space within PG:&E’s allowable parameters (110% of existing load).

Electric Load Analysis

RCEA performed an electric load analysis of HBMWD’s administrative office using utility data from the
previous 12 months of electric consumption covering the period from June 2017 to May 2018. HBMWD
receives electric service from PG&E and is enrolled in RCEA’s Community Choice Aggregation program.
The administrative offices are on an A-1 time-of-use electric rate schedule for Small General Service.
Table 2 below shows PG&E’s and RCEA’s A-1 rates and time-of-use periods used throughout this

analysis.

Table 2 Electric rates and time-oj-use periods for PG&E’s and RCEA’s A-1 electric schedule.

PG&E RCEA .
feason Delivery Rate | Genetation Rate Yomps Days Tame
Summer Peak $0.12816 $0§13564 May-Oct Mon-Fri 12pm-6pm
Summer Part- . 8:30am-12:00pm
8 I May- -
Peak $0.12816 $0..11270 ay-Oct Mon-Fri AND 6:00pm-9:30pm
Summer Off- ! Mon-Fri 9:30pm-8:30am
Peak $0.12816 $0.0§617 May-Oct Sat- Sun All Day
W'";:;:a"' $0.11022 $0.11252 Nov-Apr | Mon-Fri 8:30am-9:30pm
Winter Off- | Mon-Fri 9:30pm-8:30am
o 5
Peak $0.11022 $0.094‘.23 Nov-Apr Sat- Sun All Day

HBMWD'’s administrative office is a small to m'é;zdium sized office space approximately 3,500 square feet
in area. The office’s main electric loads are interior lighting, air conditioning, and plug loads associated
with office equipment. Exterior lighting, exhauslt fans and small kitchen appliances make up the bulk of
the remaining electric load. Table 3 below shov&,s a summary of the electric consumption at HBMWD’s

7'h Street offices.



“ECTIONKgZ«_, PAGE NO, fl )

Table 3 Annual electricity use summary for HBMWD administrative offices

Annual Electric Consumption (kWh) 21,488
Annual Electricity Costs ($) $4,931
Average Electricity Rate ($/kWh) $0.23

Consumption at this site varies between 1,400 and 2,400 kWh/month with a bill range between $350
and $560/month. Figure 1 below shows monthly electric consumption and bill amounts for HBMWD's
offices over the last year.

HBMWD Existing Electric Load and Bill Amounts

3,000

ELECTRIC BILL AMOUNT ($)

:
s
=
2
-
o
=
=
@
=
(=
[}
14
E
o
w
-
w

— s e ——

Jun-17  ful-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 lan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18

Elactric Consumption (kwh) »Total Electricity Costs (S}

Figure 1 Recent monthly electric consumption and bill amounts for HBMWD's 7th Street offices.

Efficiency Opportunities: LED Lighting Upgrade

HBMWD has significant opportunities for energy and financial savings by enacting an LED lighting
efficiency upgrade. The existing interior T-8 fluorescent lighting should be upgraded to LED lighting.
RCEA performed a lighting efficiency analysis at the 7™ Street offices on July 23, 2018. An LED lighting
upgrade could save HBMWD approximately 18% of their annual electric bill. Table 4 below shows a
summary of the available savings from an LED lighting upgrade.

Table 4 RCEA's estimate of savings available from LED lighting upgrade.

Annual Energy Savings (kWh) 3949
Annual Energy Offset (%) 18%
Annual Bill Savings ($) $716
Monthly Bill Savings ($) $60




SECTION_K ) PAGE NO.__g.__ '

The exterior lighting has been upgraded to high efficiency LED lighting, RCEA does not see opportunities
for savings in this area. Future efficiency projects could include upgrading the existing 80% efficient
HVAC unit with a higher efficiency unit.

Electric Vehicle Charging

RCEA has estimated the electrical impact of adding an electric vehicle (EV) charging station at HBMWD's
offices. RCEA used data from a charging station installed at the North Coast Unified Air Quality
Management District (NCUAQMD) to estimate and model the impacts of adding similar equipment at
HBMWD’s 7*" Street offices. The EV charging station at NCUAQMD was chosen due to the similarities to
HBMWD’s needs. NCUAQMD and HBMWD are both public agencies, they are located within a mile of
each other in Eureka, and neither currently have staff that drive EVs so the charging will be primarily for
public use. Table 5 below shows the additional loads and costs from adding EV charging.

Table 5 Estimated added electricity consumption and costs from adding EV charging at HBMWD's offices.

Annual Energy Consumption (kWh) 2493
Annual Energy Increase (%) 12%
Annual Bill Increase $588
Monthly Bill Increase $49

The added electrical load and cost from EV charging would be offset by the savings from the LED lighting
upgrade, however, this does not account for the equipment and installation costs for the EV charging
station. Installing the EV charging equipment will likely require upgrades to the existing electrical
infrastructure. Table 6 below shows the estimated costs associated with installing a pole mounted,
single head EV charging station at the 7t Street office.

Table 6 Estimated costs of installing an Electric Vehicle charging station.

Total Equipment Costs $2,924
Engineering/Permitting $3,000
Civil Drawings $1,000
Signage/Striping $650
Installation labor & materials (trenching, conduit, electrical, etc.) $5,000
Total Equipment and Installation Costs $12,574

The CEC 1% interest loan program is only for energy efficiency and or renewable energy projects that
decrease electrical load at a site. Electric Vehicle charging equipment is not eligible for this funding
source. The costs above are for information purposes only and are not included in future financial
analysis, payback period estimation or loan analysis.

Solar Photovoiltaic (PV) Site Analysis

RCEA performed a detailed solar site analysis at HBMWD's 7*" Street offices on July 23", 2018. The
offices are housed in a single-story building with a flat roof and has an azimuth of 170°, or 10° east of
due south. The flat roof is in good condition and the east end of the roof could accommodate a solar



SECTION 1{2_,_, PAGE No._é;__. !

array that would offset all the offices electric loads. The existing roof framing consists of 2” x 10” rafters
spaced at 16 inches on center. A structural assessment of the roof should be performed by a licensed
structural engineer. Installing a solar array on the flat roof will require sealing and flashing of roofing
penetrations in a way that will maintain the roof warranty.

A shading analysis was performed using a Solar Pathfinder tool which showed that the parapet roof
could cause significant late afternoon shading of the array. The useful installation area should be at least
24’ to the east of the parapet roof. California Fire Marshal guidance for solar PV installations require 4’
setbacks from roof eaves and ridges. After accounting for shading effects and Fire Marshal setbacks the
available area for installation of a solar PV array would be approximately 1,000 square feet. Figure 2
below shows the available area for installation on the roof of HBMWD's 7t Street offices outlined in
blue.

828 7th St

installation Area
Approximately

, 40’ x 26' 'l

Figure 2 Available roof area for solar PV installation at HBMWD's Eureka offices.




SECTION K&PAGE No._/l'_.‘

Project Solution: 97% Bill Offset

RCEA used industry standard methods and calculations to size a PV array that would offset
approximately 90% of HBMWD’s electric consumption and 97% of HBMWD's office electric bills. Table 7
below shows the assumptions and inputs used in RCEA’s solar PV system sizing calculations.

Table 7 Inputs and assumptions used for sclar PV array sizing.

Array Orientation (Azimuth) 170°
Array Tilt 20°
Average Daily Insolation (kWh/m2/day) 4.43
Inverter Efficiency (%) 97%
De-rate Factor (Soiling, Wire Loss, Mismatch) (%) 10%
Average Operating Cell Temperature (°C) 40
Temperature Coefficient of Power (/°C) 0.0037
Module DC Rating (Watts) 320
Manufacturer Power Guarantee (%) 98%

The estimated annual consumption assumes the LED lighting upgrade will be made and an EV charging
station will be added. Using the assumptions in the table above, RCEA calculated that 14.7 kW DC solar
PV array would offset 97% of HBMWD's electricity costs at the 7t" Street offices. Figure 3 below shows

the estimated electric usage and solar production under the above assumptions.

Estimated Electric Usage and PV Production

Monthly PV Cutput (kWh}) Estimated Electric Load (kWh)

Figure 3 Estimated electric usage and solar PV production at HBMWD's 7th Street offices with LED
lighting upgrade, new EV charging and 14.7 kW DC solar array.

RCEA’s has recent history with solar PV installations for public schools in California’s Proposition 39
program. The average installed price of a PV system, including all labor, materials, engineering,
permitting and design has been about $3.02/DC watt. This would yield a system cost of approximately
$44,454. Table 8 below shows a break down of the estimated costs for the proposed PV system.



SECTION 1{9_1;, PAGE NO. __;8./.

Table 8 Estimated costs for a 14.7 kW DC solar PV array.

PV Modules S 11,114
inverters S 5,779
Electrical/Structural Balance of Systems $ 6,668
Labor S 8,891
Engineering and Design S 4,445
Permitting and Interconnection [ 1,334
Overhead and Profit S 6,224
Total Cost $ 44,454

Table 9 below shows a summary of the proposed solar PV system including system size, annual
production estimate, kilowatt hour offset, and bill offset.

Table 9 PV system summary for proposed array at HBMWD's 7th Street offices.

PV System Size (kW DC) 14.72
Annual Energy Production (kWh AC) 19,246
Annual kWh Offset (%) 90%
Annual Bill Offset (%) 97%

Any solar PV installation will operate under a Net Energy Metering (NEM) agreement. NEM allows the
PV system owner to receive energy credits when the system produces more energy than the building
consumes and is charged their normal rates when the PV system produces less energy than the building
consumes. RCEA performs a monthly “true-up” of generation charges as part of their billing, so energy
production credits and debits are reconciled each month. PG&E performs an.annual “true-up” of
transmission and distribution charges that reconciles energy credits and debits on yearly basis. In
addition, PG&E charges a meter fee of $.65/day, this charge cannot be offset with the PV energy. A
typical annual billing cycle is shown in figure 4 below to demonstrate how credits and debits are
accounted for under PG&E’s and RCEA’s Net Energy Metering (NEM) arrangements.

Typical Annual Billing Cycle

$(100.00)
$(150.00)

$(200.00}

Figiire 4 An example of a typical annual NEM billing cycle with energy credits and debits.



SEcnonjiq_z_:pAee No,_g_‘ |
Project Alternative: Maximizing Energy Production

At HBMWD’s request, RCEA also analyzed the option of installing the largest possible solar PV array that
could fit on the roof of their offices and would still meet PG&E’s interconnection requirements. The
maximum system size allowed by PG&E'’s interconnection rules is a system that would offset 110% of
the documented electric consumption over the previous 12 months. RCEA estimates that a 17.2 kW DC
PV array would be the maximum system size that would fit on the roof and meet PG&E requirements.
Oversizing the system results in a lower rate of economic return because any kilowatt hours that are
generated that exceed the site’s consumption would only earn monetary compensation at RCEA’s
unbundled generation rates which are roughiy 40% of the total bundled rate. The economic benefits of
the over-sized system will be included in the financial analysis below.

Financial Analysis

RCEA performed a financial analysis for two project options. Option 1 includes LED lighting efficiency
upgrades and a solar PV array sized to provide 7% annual bill offset. Option 2 includes the same LED
lighting with an array that is sized to the maximum allowable limit based on roof size and PG&E
interconnection requirements. Because the cost of installing an EV charging station would not be eligible
for CEC 1% interest loans, these costs were not included in this analysis. Table 10 below shows the
assumptions that were used in RCEA’s economic modeling.

Table 10 Assumptions riade in RCEA's economic analysis of project options

Inflation rate 2%
Discount rate 5%
Electricity escalation rate 3%
Added maintenance 0.3%
Annual PV production degradation rate 0.5%

Percentage of electricity cost not due to peak demand 85%
Cost to replace inverter at year 15 $0.30/watt
System price $3.02/watt

Table 11 below shows the results of RCEA’s economic analysis. The two project options described above
are compared side by side based on several key performance indicators.

Table 11 Comparison of solar PV project options for HBMWD's 7th Street offices.

TEcHhalbey andiEeeratio 100% Bili Offset w/ LED Maximum System Size-110%
Lighting and EV Charging of Existing Consumption

PV System Size (kW DC) 14.72 17.28

Annual Energy Production (kWh) 19,246 22,593
Estimated System Cost {$) $44,454 $52,186

First Year Bill Savings ($) $4,644 $5,166

Simple System Payback {Years) 10.1 10.7
Discounted System Payback (Years) 12.9 15.7

NPV of Savings at 25 Years (3) $46,652 $50,087
Savings to Investment Ratio 1.05 0.96
Discounted RO! (%) 5% -4%




SECTIONJ -, PAGE NO. 0

Based on the analysis of the potential project options outlined above, RCEA recommends that HEMWD
move forward with a roughly 14.7 kW DC solar PV installation that would provide a 97% bill offset. RCEA
does not recommend oversizing the array to 110% kWh offset because of decreased financial payback
metrics outlined above. RCEA’s initial analysis finds that the proposed project would qualify for the CEC’s
1% interest loan program for feasible energy efficiency and renewable energy projects.

A 14.7 kW DC array installed at HBMWD's 7% Street offices would provide the following benefits:

¢ Offset of 90% of the site’s annual electricity consumption

e Offset of 97% of the site’s annual electricity bill

e Asimple payback period of 10.1 years

¢ A Net Present Value of savings of $46,652

e A 5% return on investment

o lifetime avoided CO; equivalent emissions of 29 metric tons (67,000 Ibs.)

Next Steps

This project would qualify for a California Energy Commission (CEC) 1% interest loan for feasible energy
efficiency and renewable energy projects. Projects with a simple payback period of less than 17 years
are eligible for the 1% interest loan. If HBMWD’s board resolves to move forward with the solar PV
project, RCEA will be able to prepare the technical documents required of the CEC loan application. The
next steps for HBMWD to pursue if this project is to move forward are:

e Secure Board approval
e Begin planning and basic design
e Prepare CEC1% loan application with RCEA assistance



Governing Board Resolution

Resolution No.

Resolution of

(Public Agency)

WHEREAS, the Redwood Coast Energy Authority’s Public Agency Solar Program provides technical assistance;
and

WHEREAS,
(Public Agency)

Authorizes to apply for technical assistance;
{Public Agency)

and WHEREAS the recognizes that the

{Public Agency)

Redwood Coast Energy Authority has limited funds available to provide technical assistance and that priority
consideration will be given to those Public Agencies that have a desire and willingness to seek funding to
implement feasible recommended energy-efficiency and renewable energy generation measure(s);

Now Therefore Be it Resolved, that

(Public Agency)

is willing to seek funding to implement viable energy-saving or renewable energy generation measure(s) and
therefore requests technical and project assistance to identify such measures as may be economically feasible.

Be it Also Resolved, that

(Title of Public Agency Official)

is hereby authorized and empowered to execute in the name of

(Public Agency)

all necessary documents to implement and carry out the purposes of this resolution.

Passed, Approved, and Adopted this day of -
(Month) (Year)

Signatures of Public Agency Governing Members

Redwood Coast Energy Authority | www.RedwoodEnergy.org | 633 3rd St. Eureka, CA 95501 | (707) 269-1700

County of Humboldt e Arcata e Blug lake » Eurcka e Ferndale » Fortuna ¢ Rio Dell e Trinidad e Humbolof Bay Municipal Water District






' ACWA 2018 Fall Conference & Exhibition
Zz

November 27 - 30, 2018 | Manchester Grand Hyatt San Diego

Association of Cafifornia Water Agencies

REGISTER ONLINE
Register online by November 9, 2018 at www.acwa.com to take advantage of the advance pricing.

O QO  REGISTER ON SOMEONE’S BEHALF
gg Select from a list of people affiliated with your company in your account. If the registrant is not listed, you will need to
create a Portal profile for the registrant before registering.

ADVA ()
DEAD 9118

'ADVANTAGE | STANDARD | ADVANTAGE = STANDARD
Full Conference Registration & Meals Package $699_ N/A | N/A N/A
Full Conference Registration Only (meazls sold separately) $555 $830 $575 $850

One-Day Conference Registration (meals sold separately)
Wednesday: Registration includes Welcome Reception on Tuesday evening ~OR- $320 $470 $340 $490
Thursday: Registration includes ability to purchase a ticket for Friday breakfast

et it ot vl 0 syone with  pcesdonl s ot el B
MEAL FUNCTIONS ADVANCE ONSITE
Wednesday Opening Breakfast - November 28 $45 $50
Wednesday Luncheon - November 28 N —$50 | $55
Thursday Networking Continental Breakfast - November 29 - $35 $40
ﬁrgda_y Luncheon - November 2‘; o _ . $50 - —!_ $55
Thl;rsda)TDinr-\er - November 29 I $65 . $7—O -
Friday Breakfast - November 30 : $45 ‘ $50

HOTEL INFORMATION

You must be registered for the ACWA conference in order to receive hotel reservation information and conference special room
rate. Conference special rate is available August 20 - November 5, based on availability.

HOTEL IMPORTANT DATES
Manchester Grand Hyatt San Diego For those registering for conference prior to August 20,
1 Market Place, San Diego, CA 92101 hotel information will be provided via e-mail on August 20.
RATES FOR BOTH HOTELS For those registering for. conference fr-om'A.ugust 20 to

. e November 5, your confirmation e-mail will include hotel
Single/Double $199 per night . . , ) .

reservation information and an opportunity to receive a

* Subject to taxes & fees conference special hotel rate.

Deadline for group rate is November 5, 2018

QUESTIONS? Cancellation deadline: November 9, 2018 4:30 p.m. (PST)

Contact us at (888) 666-2292 Conference terms and conditions available at acwa.com in the event section.




RREDC/RCEA



S
Redwood Coast Energy Authority ECHON'L'!-{&" PAGE NO'-Z“"“

633 3 Street, Eureka, CA 95501
Phone: (707) 269-1700 Toll-Free (800) 931-RCEA  Fax: (707) 269-1777
E-mail: info@redwoodenergy.org Web: www.redwoodenergy.org

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Office July 23, 2018
828 7th Street, Eureka, CA 95501 Monday, 3:45 p.m.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact
the Clerk of the Board at the phone number, email or physical address listed above at least 72 hours in advance.

Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, all writings or documents relating to any item on this agenda which have
been provided to a majority of the Board of Directors, including those received less than 72 hours prior to the RCEA Board
meeting, will be made available to the public in the agenda binder located in the RCEA lobby during normal business hours,
and at www.redwoodenergy.org.

PLEASE NOTE: Speakers wishing to distribute materials to the Board at the meeting are asked to provide 12 copies to the
Clerk of the Board.

OPEN SESSION cCall to Order
1. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

This time is provided for people to address the Board or submit written communications on matters not on the agenda.
At the conclusion of all oral and written communications, the Board may respond to statements. Any request that
requires Board action will be set by the Board for a future agenda or referred to staff.

COMMUNITY CHOICE ENERGY (CCE) BUSINESS (Confirm CCE Quorum)

Items under this section of the agenda relate to CCE-specific business matters that fall under RCEA’'s CCE voting
provisions, with only CCE-participating jurisdictions voting on these matters with weighted voting as established in the RCEA
joint powers agreement.

2. NEW CCE BUSINESS

2.1 Integrated Resource Plan (IRP)

Approve 2018 Intearated Resource Plan, with changes made as indicated in

attached version, and authorize submittal to the California Public Utilities

END OF COMMUNITY CHOICE ENERGY (CCE) BUSINESS

3. ADJOURNMENT

NEXT REGULAR MEETING
Monday, August 20, 2018, 3:15 p.m.
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Office
828 7t Street, Eureka, CA 95501



Redwood Coast Energy Authority SECTIONLZA PAGE NO._Z
633 3" Street, Eureka, CA 95501

Phone: (707) 269-1700 Toll-Free (800) 931-RCEA  Fax: (707) 269-1777

E-mail: info@redwoodenergy.org Web: www.redwoodenergy.org

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Office ~ July 16, 2018
828 7t" Street, Eureka, CA 95501 Monday, 3:15 p.m.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact
the Clerk of the Board at the phone number, email or physical address listed above at least 72 hours in advance.

Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, all writings or documents relating to any item on this agenda which have
been provided to a majority of the Board of Directors, including those received less than 72 hours prior to the RCEA Board
meeting, will be made available to the public in the agenda binder located in the RCEA lobby during normal business hours,

and at www.redwoodenergy.org.

PLEASE NOTE: Speakers wishing to distribute materiais to the Board at the meeting are asked to provide 12 copies to the
Clerk of the Board.

OPEN SESSION cCali to Order
1. REPORTS FROM MEMBER ENTITIES

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
This time is provided for people to address the Board or submit written communications on matters not on the agenda.
At the conclusion of all oral and written communications, the Board may respond to statements. Any request that
requires Board action will be set by the Board for a future agenda or refetred to staff.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Board and are enacted on one motion.

There is no separate discussion of any of these items. If discussion is required, that item is removed from the Consent
Calendar and considered separately. At the end of the reading of the Consent Calendar, Board members or members
of the public can request that an item be removed for separate discussion.

3.1 Approve Minutes of June 18, 2018, Board Meeting.

4. REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be heard under this section.

5. OLD BUSINESS

5.1 Offshore Wind Update

Schedule a Special Meeting of the Redwood Coast Energy Authority Board of
Directors for the end of July 2018 to discuss and approve the Humboldt Offshore
Wind Energy Development cooperation agreement.




RCEA July 16, 2018, Board of Directors Meeting Agenda
Page 2 '
g . SECTIONAA/Q_PAGE No._?____

wr—nan

6. NEW BUSINESS
6.1 Humboldt Redwood Company Power Purchase Agreement

Consent to assignment of the existing biomass power purchase agreement (PPA)

from Humboldt Resource Company, LLC to Humboldt Sawmill Company, LLC,
and authorize the Executive Director to executive all necessary documents.

COMMUNITY CHOICE ENERGY (CCE) BUSINESS (Confirm CCE Quorum)

Items under this section of the agenda relate to CCE-specific business matters that fall under RCEA’s CCE voting
provisions, with only CCE-participating jurisdictions voting on these matters with weighted voting as established in the RCEA
joint powers agreement.

7. OLD CCE BUSINESS

7.1 Energy Risk Management Plan Quarterly Report

Accept Energy Risk Management Plan quarterly report.

8. NEW CCE BUSINESS

8.1 Integrated Resource Plan (IRP)

Approve 2018 Integrated Resource Plan and authorize submittal to the California
Public Utilities Commission.

END OF COMMUNITY CHOICE ENERGY (CCE) BUSINESS

9. STAFF REPORTS

9.1 Demand Side Management Director
o July 10, 2018, Community Advisory Committee Meeting

10. ADJOURNMENT

NEXT REGULAR MEETING
Monday, August 20, 2018, 3:15 p.m.
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Office
828 7th Street, Eureka, CA 95501



. SECTION 4244 1
Redwood Coast Energy Authority = ——<—="EN0___
633 34 Street, Eureka, CA 95501

Phone: (707) 269-1700 Toll-Free (800) 931-RCEA  Fax: (707) 269-1777

E-mail: inffo@redwoodenergy.org Web: www.redwoodenergy.org

DRAFT BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Office June 18, 2018
828 7t Street, Eureka, CA 95501 Monday, 3:15 p.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Redwood Coast Energy Authority was held
on the above date at 3:15 p.m. with Chair Woo presiding. Notice of this meeting was posted
on June 14, 2018. PRESENT: Chair Woo, Vice Chair Winkler, Directors Allison, Ricca,
Wilson, Sweeney, Miller. ABSENT: Directors Fennell, Glaser. STAFF PRESENT: Business
Development & Planning Director Biondini, General Counsel Diamond, Finance and Human
Resources Director Edmiston, Power Resources Director Engel, Power Resources Specialist
Gwynn, Executive Director Marshall, Account Services Manager Slackerelli, Community
Strategies Manager Stephenson.

REPORTS FROM MEMBER ENTITIES

Vice Chair Winkler attended a documentary film screening on companies that clear-cut
forests to make wood pellets, which he said differs from local biomass energy production. Mr.
Winkler reported having a good dialog with the film producers, Ellen Golla, and Wendy Ring
which included supporting the concept of RCEA working on switching people from wood
stoves to electric heat pumps.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

Chair Woo invited public comment. No one came forward to speak. Chair Woo closed public
comment.

CONSENT CALENDAR
3.1 Approve Minutes of May 21, 2018, Board Meeting.

3.2 Approve Disbursements Report.
3.3 Accept Financial Reports.

Chair Woo invited public comment. No one came forward to speak. Chair Woo closed public
comment.

M/S: Winkler, Ricca: Approve consent calendar items.

The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. Ayes: Allison, Miller, Ricca, Sweeney,
Wilson, Winkler, Woo. Noes: None. Absent: Fennell, Glaser. Abstentions: None.

OLD BUSINESS
5.1 Offshore Wind Development



RCEA June 18, 2018, Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

Py SECTION £4/4—PAGE oD

o

Executive Director Marshall summarized the offshore wind project’s next steps and provided
an overview of the agreement'’s objectives, phases of the project's life cycle through
decommissioning and removal, detailed descriptions of Phase 1, and the lease area for which
RCEA proposes to bid.

Mr. Marshall described the special purpose vehicle (SPV) to be created during Phase 1,
which is typically a limited liability company that owns and operates a project and enables
transparent, trackable cost-sharing between project development partners. SPV creation is a
standard industry practice for energy development projects. RCEA'’s possible roles in the
SPV include having some form of owner-equity share or retaining a decision-making role
without ownership. RCEA's role will be evaluated and decided during Phase 1.

Mr. Marshall stated the project team has agreed that RCEA should be the Bureau of Ocean
Energy Management (BOEM) lease applicant, with the mtent that the lease would be
transferred to the SPV after acquiring site control. The proposed cooperative agreement
supports the lease application. The project partners are narrowing down the final lease area
to request, and are reaching out to commercial fishermen, local. tribes and environmental
groups to get additional input before finalizing’ the lease area. - -

Director Allison inquired whether the team could renew or expand the Iease should the
project succeed. Mr. Marshall replied that RCEA: or other: developers could apply for
additional blocks. He added that the demonstration: prOJect design was based on current
electrical grid capacity although the' lease area could accommodate some, but not much,
additional production. Expansion would requwe transmlssmn upgrades such as an undersea
cable to the Bay Area or upgrading the- exnstlng lines east out of the county.

Chair Woo invited public comment. Alison Jalbott of PG&E was curious why Principle Power
sank and then raised its pilot offshore wind' platform prior to be being redeployed to Scotland.

Jim Zoellick of the Schatz Energy Research Center asked what would happen if another
entity secured the lease, and whether RCEA’s offshore wind project could still move forward.

Chair Woo’ closed ‘public commeni.

Executive Director Marshall explained that Principle Power obtained permission to sink its
platform for wet storage, which the technology’s durability makes possible and was more cost
effective than transport to dry land storage. Mr. Marshall stated it is possible RCEA will not be
granted the BOEM lease, in which. case the Board might consider purchasing power from the
successful bidders. RCEA's offshore wind request for qualifications generated numerous
capable responses. Mr. Marshall stated that, regardless of the lease bid outcome, RCEA’s
efforts are helping catalyze offshore wind energy development locally.

M/S: Sweeney, Miller: Authorize staff to submit an outer-continental shelf offshore
wind unsolicited lease request to the Bureau of Ocean Energy Management,
contingent on final review and approval by RCEA Legal Counsel and the Board
Offshore Wind Project Phase 1 Subcommittee.

The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. Ayes: Allison, Miller, Ricca, Sweeney,
Wilson, Winkler, Woo. Noes: None. Absent: Fennell, Glaser. Abstentions: None.

Executive Director Marshall requested the Board establish an ad hoc subcommittee of up to
four Directors to provide input and guidance to staff, bring recommendations to the Board,



RCEA June 18, 2018, Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

Page 3 B SECTION A4A_PAGE NO. Zg_.

and engage with staff between regular Board meetings. The subcommittee would perform
these duties during Phase 1 of the project, after which the subcommittee would be dissoived.
Directors Allison and Vice Chair Winkler and Chair Woo expressed interest in serving on the
subcommittee. It was suggested that Director Fennell, who served enthusiastically on the
Offshore Wind Request for Qualifications Subcommittee, would be an excellent member.

Chair Woo invited public comment. No one came forward to speak. Chair Woo closed public
comment.

M/S: Miller, Sweeney: Establish Offshore Wind Project Phase 1 Board Subcommittee

comprised of Directors Austin Allison, Estelle Fennell, Vice Chair Michael Winkler and
Chair Sheri Woo.

The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. Ay :ee:,Allison, Miller, Ricca, Sweeney,

Wilson, Winkier, Woo. Noes: None. Absent: Fennell, Glaser. Abstentions: None.
oo

Counsel Diamond reported that she is researchlng if and/or how'a . public agency can
participate in the offshore wind project’s spetial purpose vehicle (SPV) and the cooperative
agreement language provides guidance for aﬁd allows latitude in negotiating the SPV. The
Board will consider the cooperative agreement at -a subsequent meeting and ‘Ms. Diamond
requested input or direction from the Board at this stage Hearing no comment from the
Board, Chair Woo stated she looked. forward to hearing Counsel Diamond’s
recommendations. N N

1’ =g N
Chair Woo invited publlc comment. No one came forward to speak. Chair Woo closed public
comment. :

\7,
‘\

As the Offshore Wind Energy Development Ceoperatlon Agreement was not ready for the
Board’'s consideration, Execuitive Diréctor Marshall requested the Board Chair potentially call
a special meetlng durlng eaﬂy\July to censrder the agreement. He requested the Board Clerk
poll the llrectors to find a suntabte meeting’ date '

NEW BustyEss
6.1 Fiscal Year 2018-19 Budget

Executive Director Marshall presented a staff report and presentation on the fiscal year (FY)
2018-2019 budget. The budget does not include Community Choice Energy (CCE) funded
programs, which the Board will approve, following Community Advisory Committee review
and input, at a subsequent meeting. The Board will be asked to approve budget adjustments

based on the programs it selects for funding.

Mr. Marshall provided an overview of the different transaction structures that RCEA engages
in for wholesale power procurement. He stated that a Board Finance Subcommittee would be

able to study the process in greater depth.

Chair Woo thanked Executive Director Marshall for compiling the budget report and invited
public comment.



RCEA June 18, 2018, Draft Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
Page 4 SECTION 4~*72—PAGE NO. 2

Dr. Norman Bell, an RCEA Community Advisory Committee member but in this instance
speaking as a member of the public, noted that biomass is both the most expensive
renewable energy RCEA purchases and the most controversial for the people with which he
communicates. He requested the Board keep biomass’ non-renewable aspects and carbon
footprint in mind when making power purchase decisions.

Jim Zoellick of the Schatz Energy Research Center inquired whether the 12% increase in
revenue and cost was related to wholesale power cost or load increases.

Member of the public Ellen Golla asked how much of wholesale power’s 84% of the budget
and 57% of the customer rate is going to biomass. Ms. Golla.stated there is a difference
between renewable and clean, and that biomass may be renewable but it is not clean.

Chair Woo closed public comment.

Director Miller inquired if RCEA is considering a 1/60 percent solar option and Director Wilson
requested seeing RCEA's power procurement portfollo s energy sources by dollar amount
and percentage.

Executive Director Marshall responded that the 12% revenue increases were caused by
increases in customer enroliment inthe, CommumtyChorce Energy Program; including the
addition of Ferndale at the beglnmng of 2018, as well as wholesale energy cost changes. He
stated he will provide Ms. Golla and the Board' addltlonal detail and a pie chart of the power
procurement portfolio reflecting percentage and dollar values

Chair Woo noted that no energy productron is free of environmental or public health impacts
and even solar arrays can impact. birds. D|rec\tor Wilson added that Bay Area windmills have
changed fog patterns and inland areas dry more quickly. He stated that the biomass energy
industry will persist locally because it makes sense for Humboldt County to process its own
waste Iocally while also contnbutlng to the ‘economy. Vice Chair Winkler stated he would like
to see a program mcentlwzmg homeowners switch from wood stoves to electric heat pumps
as wood stoves produce uncontrolied pollution in neighborhoods and emit more harmful fine
particles than wood waste power plants.

M/S: Wilson, Niillgr: Adopt RCEA Fiscal Year 2018-19 Budget.

The motion gassed on a unahimous voice vote. Ayes: Allison, Miller, Ricca, Sweeney,
Wilson, Winkler, Woo. Noes None. Absent: Fennell, Glaser. Abstentions: None.

Executive Director Marshall requested that the Board establish an ad hoc finance
subcommittee of no more than four Directors to study this fiscal year's budget, assist in
setting next year's budget and provide input on information the Board requires to assess the
proposed budget. The subcommittee would disband after next year's budget is adopted.

Chair Woo, Director Wilson and Vice Chair Winkler volunteered to serve on the
subcommittee.

Chair Woo invited public comment. No one came forward to speak. Chair Woo closed public
comment.



Vi.

Vil.

VIIL.

SECTIONLY/Z_ PAGE NO. _;g._
Redwood Region Economic Development Commission
Prosperity Center 520 E Street, Eureka, California 95501
Phone 707.445.9651 Fax 707.445.9652 www.rredc.com

REDWOOD REGION ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
Regular meeting of the Board of Directors
At the Prosperity Center 520 E Street, Eureka
July 23, 2018 at 6:30 pm
AGENDA

Call to Order & Flag Salute

Approval of Agenda and Minutes
A. Approval of Agenda for July 23, 2018
B. Approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting June 25, 2018

Public Input for non-agenda items

Consent Calendar
A. Acceptance of Agency-wide Financial Report: No report pending closing of Fiscal Year

Reports — No Action Required
A. Loan Portfolio Report: No report pending closing of Fiscal Year
B. Executive Director's Report

Old Business
A. Update on the Redwood Region Housing Forum
B. Update on Development of Humboldt County Comprehensive Economic Development

Strategy (CEDS)

New Business

Member Reports

Agenda/Program Requests for future Board of Directors Meetings

Adjourn

The Redwood Region Economic Development Commission will, on request, make agendas available in
appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation
thereof. Individuals who need this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or
accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact the Board Secretary at (707) 445-9651.
Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the Commission to make reasonable arrangements for

accommodations.
RREDC Cities Arcata - Blue Lake * Eureka - Ferndale * Fortuna - Rio Dell * Trinidad
Member Commnmnnity Services Districts Humboldt - Manila - McKinleyville - Orick + Orleans - Redway - Willow Creek
Agencies Humboldt Bay Harbor, Recreation and Conservation District - Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

County of Humboldt - Hoopa Valley Tribe - Redwoods Commuaity College District



